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5" June, 2024

To,

The General Manager
Department of Corporate Services
BSE Limited

P. J. Towers Dalal Street,

Fort, Mumbai - 400 001

Subject: Submission of Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24

Dear Sir/Madam,

With reference to the captioned subject and pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(1) of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we enclose herewith the Annual Report of Sayaji Hotels Limited (“the
Company™) for the Financial Year 2023-24 along with Notice of 41* Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of Members of the Company to be held on Thursday, 27" day of June, 2024 at 03:30
P M. (IST) through Video Conference or Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM™).

Kindly take the above information on record.
Thanking you.
Yours faithfully,

For Sayaji Hotels Limited
Ankur Eil‘_:ﬂﬁfé?:i‘:.
Bindal:zs®,.,
Ankur Bindal
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Encl.: As above

SAYAJlL HOTELS LTD. CORPORATE OFFICE
Address: C/o Amber Convention Centre, Bypass Rd, Near Best Price,
Hare Krishna Vihar, Nipania, Indore (MP) - 452010. | Phone No.: + 0731-4750000 | Email: info@sayajigroup.com
Regd. Office: FI C3 Sivavel Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram, Chennai, (TN) — 600117
CIN - L5M00TN1982PLC1245%2 | Phone No.: 044-29871174
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 415 Annual General Meeting of the Members of Sayaji
Hotels Limited will be held on Thursday, 27" day of June, 2024 at 03:30 P.M. IST, through
Video Conferencing (“VC7) or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to transact the

following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To adopt the Audited Financial Statements — Standalone

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 31*" March, 2024 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31% March, 2024, together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and the Auditors thereon, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To adopt the Audited Financial Statements — Consolidated

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31% March, 2024 together with the reports of the Auditors
thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 March, 2024 together with the reports of the Auditors thereon,
be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani (DIN: 00174654), who
Retires by Rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

Based on the terms of appointment, Executive Directors and the Non-Executive Directors
(other than Independent Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation. Mr. Raoof Razak
Dhanani (DIN: 00174654), Managing Director, of the Company whose office is liable to
retire at this Annual General Meeting, being eligible, seeks re-appointment and in this regard,
to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani (DIN: 00174654), who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is
hereby re-appointed as the Managing Director of the Company.”

The information required pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 is
attached herewith as Annexure 1(A).

Myr. Raoof Razak Dhanani and Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani being interested shall not vote in this
matter.




SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To appoint Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani (DIN: 10550544) as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 read with Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions,
sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Mohammed
Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani (DIN: 10550544) as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company who was earlier appointed as Additional Director in the category of Non-Executive
Director by the Board of Directors of the Company and liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to file requisite forms and to do all such acts and deeds as are
necessary to give effect to the said resolution.”

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani and Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani being interested shall not vote in this
matter.

5. To appoint Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi (DIN: 10516536) as an Independent Director of
the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as the Special Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Schedule IV to the Act and other applicable provisions,
sections, rules of the Act and Regulation 25(2A) and other applicable regulations of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Nimesh Kumar
Gandhi (DIN: 10516536) as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a
term up to 28" March, 2029, not liable to retire by rotation, who was earlier appointed as an
Additional Director in the category of Independent Non-Executive Director by the Board of
Directors of the Company and who meets the criteria for independence as provided in Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for
appointment under the provisions of the Act, the Rules made thereunder and the Listing
Regulations) and on such terms and conditions as may be decided mutually between the
appointee and the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to file necessary forms with Registrar of Companies and to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary and expedient to give effect to the
aforementioned resolution.”




6. To appoint Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as a Non-Executive
Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as the Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Schedule 1V to the Act and other applicable provisions,
sections, rules of the Act and Regulation 25(2A) and other applicable regulations of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the consent of
the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Saquib Salim
Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as a Non-Executive-Independent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term up to 31°° May, 2028 and who meets the
criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of
the Listing Regulations and is eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Act, the
Rules made thereunder and the Listing Regulations) and on such terms and conditions as may
be decided mutually between the appointee and the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be
and is hereby authorized to file necessary forms with Registrar of Companies and to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary and expedient to give effect to the
aforementioned resolution.”

7. To appoint Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani, Promoter to hold an office or place of profit in
the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 15 of Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provisions, if any (including any statutory modification or enactment thereof for
the time being in force) and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations),
the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mrs. Anisha
Raoof Dhanani, to hold and continue to hold an office or place of profit in the Company on a
remuneration Rs. 75,000/- per month only (Rupees Seventy-Five Thousand Only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to review and determine, from time
to time, the term of holding of the said office or place of profit by Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani
including her remuneration as the Board at its discretion think fit and proper and to take such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Myr. Raoof Razak Dhanani and Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani being interested shall not vote in this
matter.

8. To increase the Foreign Investment Monitoring Limit

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as the Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”), the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2017, the




Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and the rules and regulations made thercunder, as amended
from time to time and subject to all applicable approvals, permissions and sanctions of the
Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India and other concerned authorities and subject to such conditions as may
be prescribed by any of the said concerned authorities while granting such approvals,
permissions or sanctions which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company,
the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to increase the limit
of investment by the Non-resident Indians (“NRI™) and Overscas Citizens of India (“OCI”),
together, in the equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the Company, including, without
limitation, by subscription in the initial public offering in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018,
as amended, or direct purchase or acquisition from the open market or otherwise, from 10%
to 24% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company, provided however that the
shareholding of each NRI or OCI in the Company shall not exceed 5% or such other limit as
may be stipulated by RBI in each case, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby authorized to file requisite forms and to do all such acts deeds, matters and
things as may be necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.”

9. To shift the Registered Office of the Company from the State of Tamil Nadu to the State
of Gujarat and subsequent amendment in the Memorandum of Association of the
Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as the Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 12, 13, and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) read with the rules framed
thereunder (“Rules™), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™) (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to
the approval of the Central Government (Powers delegated to the Regional Director and/or
any other authority(ies) as may be prescribed from time to time), and subject to such other
approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be required under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 or under any other law for the time being in force, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for shifting the Registered Office of the
Company from the “State of Tamil Nadu” to the “State of Gujarat”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause II of the Memorandum of Association of the
Company be substituted with the following clause:

“The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Gujarat.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company be and are hereby severally/jointly authorized to file a petition before the
Regional Director, Southern Region, Chennai, under Section 13 (4) and other applicable
provisions; if any of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 30 of Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, praying for confirmation of the alteration to the Clause II of the
Memorandum of Association as stated hereinabove and do all such acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary and expedient in relation to the filing of the petition and the issues that
may be arising from time to time out of the filing of the petition and the matters as may be
necessary and expedient for the shifting of the registered office of the company; if so
confirmed/approved by the Regional Director, Southern Region, Chennai.




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT on confirmation / approval of the Regional Director,
Southern Region, Chennai, the Registered Office of the Company be shifted from “State of
Tamil Nadu” to the “State of Gujarat”, the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
be and are hereby authorized to take necessary steps to shift the Registered Office in the
State of Gujarat and within the jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds and things as may be
necessary and expedient for shifting of the Registered office of the Company as per the
Orders that may be passed by the Regional Director, Southern Region, Chennai.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorized to sign and submit the necessary, forms,
intimations, and e-forms with the relevant statutory authorities and to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Sayaji Hotels Limited

Date: 28" May, 2024 Ankur Bindal
Place: Indore Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circulars dated April 8, 2020,
April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 14, 2021, December 28, 2022
and September 25, 2023 (collectively referred to as MCA Circulars) has permitted the
holding of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC)/
Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at
a commoen venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its
circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023 and
October 7, 2023 (SEBI Circulars) has provided certain relaxations from compliance with
certain provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations).

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the
SEBI Listing Regulations and the MCA Circulars, the 41°* AGM of the Company shall
be held on Thursday, 27" day of June, 2024 at 03:30 P.M. IST. The deemed venue
of the proceedings of the 41 AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at F1
C3 Sivavel Apartment No. 2, Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram, Keelakattalai,
Kanchipuram, Tambaram, Chennai, Tamil Nadu — 600 117.

Pursuant to the Provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his /her behalf and the proxy need
not be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC or OAVM, the requirement of physical attendance of members
has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
members will not be available for this AGM and hence The Proxy Form, Attendance
Slip and Route map of AGM are not annexed to this notice.

Corporate Members and Institutional Investors intending to appoint their authorized
representatives pursuant to Section 113 of the Act to attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM or to vote through remote e-Voting are requested to send a certified copy of
the Board Resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-mail at neeleshcs2004 @ yahoo.co.in with a
copy marked to evoting @cdslindia.com and ¢s @sayajigroup.com.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the
AGM.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after
the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM
will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM
without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and




10.

11.

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
2015 (as amended), and MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing facility of
remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM.
For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronics means, as
the authorized e-voting agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote
e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by
CDSL.

Pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Annual Report including the Notice of
the AGM for F.Y. 2023-24 is being sent by electronic mode to all the Members whose
e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (DPs). The
Company shall send a physical copy of the Annual Report to those Members who
specifically request for the same at cs @savajigroup.com mentioning their Folio No./ DP
ID and Client ID. The Notice convening the 41* AGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.savajihotels.com and may also be accessed from the relevant
section of the websites of the Stock Exchange, i.e., Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE
Limited) at www.bseindia.com and the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

The relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (SS-2), in respect of the Director seeking re-appointment at this
AGM are also annexed. Requisite declarations have been received from the Director
seeking re-appointment.

Updation of PAN and other details:

SEBI vide its Circular dated March 16, 2023, mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details
(i.e. Postal Address with Pin Code, mobile number, bank account details) and
Nomination by holders of physical securities through Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2, Form
ISR-3, Form SH-13 and Form SH-14 (as applicable). Moreover, shareholders are
encouraged to register their e-mail IDs to avail online services. The said forms are
available on the Company’s website at https://savajihotels.com/investors/ and on the
website of the RTA at hitps:/linkintime.co.in/downloads.html. In terms of above
Circular, folios of physical shareholders wherein any one of the said details such as
PAN, KYC details and nomination are not available, shall be frozen with effect from
October 1, 2023 and such physical shareholders will not be eligible to lodge grievances
or avail service requests from the RTA of the Company and will not be eligible for
receipt of dividend in physical mode until the said details are furnished. Further, as per
the above SEBI circular, the frozen folios shall be referred by RTA/ Company to the
administering authority under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, after December 31, 2025. Accordingly, the
Company has sent individual letters to all the Members holding shares of the Company
in physical form for furnishing their PAN, KYC details and Nomination. In view of the
above, Members holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to go
through  the requirements on the website of the Company at
https://sayajihotels.com/investors/ to furnish the requisite details.

. Members are also requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal

address, e-mail address, telephone/ mobile numbers, PAN, registration of nomination,
power of attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the shares
are held in electronic form and to the Registrar at rnt.helpdesk @ linkintime.co.in in case
the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio number. Changes intimated to
the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s records.




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular dated January 25, 2022 has
mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while
processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from
Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/ Exchange of securities certificate;
Endorsement; Sub-division/ Splitting of securities certificate; Consolidation of
securities certificates/ folios; Transmission and Transposition.

Accordingly, Shareholders are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly
filled and signed Form ISR — 4, the format of which is available on the website of the
Company at https://savajihotels.com/investors/ and on the website of the RTA at
https://linkintime.co.in/downloads.html. It may be noted that any service request can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, all
requests for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition requests shall
be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to get inherent
benefits of dematerialization, members holding shares of the Company in physical form,
are requested to kindly get their shares converted into dematerialized form. Members
can contact Company’s RTA at rnt.helpdesk @linkintime.co.in for assistance in this
regard.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is
available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not
yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form
No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nominatiocn and record
fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or Form SH-14, as
applicable. The said forms can be downloaded from the Company’s website at
https://savajihotels.com/investors/ and from the website of the RTA at
https://linkintime.co.in/downloads.html. Members are requested to submit the said form
to their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to the RTA at
rnt.helpdesk @linkintime.co.in in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their
folio no.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one
folio are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together
with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated
share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as
possible. Members are also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.

During the 41°* AGM, Members may access the electronic copy of Register of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Act, the Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested
maintained under Section 189 of the Act and the other relevant documents and
explanatory statement, by writing in advance to the Company on ¢s @sayajigroup.com
stating their DP/Client ID or Folio Nos.
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THE INTRUCTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING
VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i)  The voting period begins on 22 day of June, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. IST and ends on 26"
day of June, 2024 at (5:00 P.M. IST. During this period shareholders of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date
20" day of June, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i1)  Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(iii)  Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required
to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all sharcholders’
resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-
institutional shareholder’s/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated
December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email 1d in their demat accounts in order to
access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:
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Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities In
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1)

3)

4)

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to
login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting
option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there
is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to
directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under
‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for
IDeAS “Portal or click at

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.isp.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member” section. A new screen will open. You will have
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to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

their

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders | your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click

securities in | on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
demat mode) | successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
login through | company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to

e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Depository | Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Participants
(DP)

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository, i.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual ~ Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with CDSL | contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual  Shareholders  holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with NSDL | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and
022 - 2499 7000

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v)

1y

3)

4

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.
Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

¢. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number
registered with the Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
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5

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com
and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be
used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding
shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have mnot updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details

OR e [If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
Date of enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
Birth

(DOB)

(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT™ tab.

(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used
by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix)  Click on the EVSN for Sayaji Hotels Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x}  On the voting page. you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the
same the option “YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

(xi}  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

(xii)  After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change vour vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.
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(xiii)

(Xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be
made available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For
Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NR1 etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the
“Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in
case of any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant
Board Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the
Company at the email address viz; neelshcs2004@yahco.co.in and
cs @sayajigroup.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH
VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER

1.

B

The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same
as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of
Company will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned
above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.
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10.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better
experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting
may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,
mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably
by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed
to express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
available during the EGM/AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the
EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid
as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders
attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

1.

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP)

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting &
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33
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All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited,
A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.
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ANNEXURE 2
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No. 04:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Schedule IV to the Act, appointment of the Non-Executive Director requires approval of
members in the General Meeting of the Company. The Board of Directors at its meeting held
on 29" day of March, 2024 has appointed Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani (DIN:
10550544) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive Director) on the Board of the Company
based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee to hold office up
to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani (DIN: 10550544) aged 70 years and graduated
from Mumbai University and is an industrialist with interests across fertilizer, hospitality &
salon, casual dining, sweets & snacks, and realty businesses that are spread pan India and
globally and keeping in view his wide experience, skills and knowledge, he seems suitable
person to be appointed as Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company.

Further, consent has been received from Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani that he
1s neither disqualified nor debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of SEBI or any
such authority or in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a
Director. The information required pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations,
2015 is attached herewith as Annexure 1(B).

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives other than
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani, Managing Director, Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani, Whole-Time Director
and Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani himself, are in any way concerned or
interested, financial or otherwise, in passing of this item.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resolution as set out in Item
No. 04 of the notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 05:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read
with Schedule 1V to the Act and Regulation 25(2A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™),
as may be amended from time to time, the appointment of an Independent Director requires
approval of members in the General Meeting of the Company. The Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 29" day of March, 2024 had appointed Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi (DIN:
10516536) as an Additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive - Independent Director
on the Board of the Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company, recommended the appointment of Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi as an
Independent Director on the Board of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years up
to 28" March, 2029.

Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi aged 57 years, is a Practicing Chartered Accountant by profession
and having an experience of about 29 years in the field of accounts, taxation, corporate
governance and looking to the wide range of experience, he seems suitable person to be
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appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company and the member of Audit
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Scheme Implementation Committee and Independent Directors Committee of the Company.

Further, consent has been received from Mr. Gandhi that he is neither disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a
Director nor debarred from holding office of Director by virtue of SEBI or any such authority.
He is independent of the management and possesses appropriate skills, experience and
knowledge.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Gandhi that he meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2013. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Gandhi fulfils the conditions for his appointment as an
Independent Director as specified in the Act. He is neither related to any director or KMPs of
the Company nor has any shareholding in the Company. The information required pursuant to
the Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 is attached herewith as Annexure 1(C).

Mr. Gandhi may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution to the extent of the
sitting fee as may be received by him, except that none of the Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are directly or indirectly concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resolution as set out in Item
No. 05 of the notice as the Special Resolution.

Item No. 06:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act. 2013 (“the Act™) read
with Schedule TV to the Act and Regulation 25(2A) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™),
as may be amended from time to time, the appointment of an Independent Director requires
approval of members in the General Meeting of the Company. The Board of Directors of the
Company, on the recommendation of the Nominaticn and Remuneration Committee, at its
meeting held on 28" May, 2024 has appointed Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN:
06611659) as an Independent Director for a second term on the Board of the Company up to
315 May, 2028.

Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala is a Chartered Accountant and Quality Control Auditor —
certified by Bureau Veritas Quality International (BVQI). Initially, Mr. Agboatwala worked as
an accountant in Ernst & Young from Dec. 1994 to June 1996. He also served as President of
the Jeddah Chapter of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and member of Saudi
India Business Forum.

From July 1996 to Sept 2000, Mr. Agboatwala worked as Finance Manager & Quality
Management Representative in Arabian Computer Projects Company Limited (formerly a
division of IBM Saudi Arabia). Subsequently, he worked as Senior Financial Officer during the
period of Oct 2000 to June 2008 in Heidelberg Middle East Group of Companies (HDMEG) in
Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. Lastly, he worked as Senior Finance Manager in Acwa Power (Dubai,
UAE) from July 2010 to May 2011.

Right now he has working in his own firm “QOasis Consulting” which has two offices one in
Mumbai and another one in Dubai. Oasis is serving as a Consultant and Business Advisors to
their clients in India as well in overseas.

19




The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Agboatwala that he meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act,
2(13. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Agboatwala fulfils the conditions for his appointment as
an Independent Director as specified in the Act. He is neither related to any director or KMPs
of the Company nor has any shareholding in the Company.

Further, consent has been received from Mr. Agboatwala that he is neither disqualified from
being appoeinted as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to
act as a Director nor debarred from holding office of Director by virtue of SEBI or any such
authority. He is independent of the management and possesses appropriate skills, experience
and knowledge. The information required pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the Listing
Regulations, 2015 is attached herewith as Annexure 1(D).

Mr. Agboatwala may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution to the extent of
the sitting fee as may be received by him, except that none of the Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company or their relatives are directly or indirectly concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in this resolution.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resolution as set out in Item
No. 06 of the notice as the Special Resolution.

Item No. 07:

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and approval of Audit Committee
and Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 28® May, 2024, the Board had
approved the appointment of Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani, Promoter to held an office or place
of profit in the Company on a remuneraticn of Rs. 75,000/- per month only (Rupees Seventy-
Five Thousand Only).

She has completed her Senior Secondary in September 1986 from Vidyakunj High School.
Further, she is engaged in managing some of the group companies of the Promoters.

The information as required in accordance with Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, as well as pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and SEBI Listing
Regulations is as under:

and particulars of the Contract or
arrangement

Sr. No. Particulars Remarks
1. Name of the Related Party Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani
2. Name of the Director or Key | Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani
Managerial Personnel who is related, if
any
3. Nature of Relationship Mrs. Anisha Raocof Dhanani is the wife
of Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani
4, Nature, material terms, monetary value | Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani shall draw

the monthly remuneration of Rs. 75,000/-
per month only (Rupees Seventy-Five
Thousand Only) which is less than the
monthly remuneration as mentioned in
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 15 of Companies
(Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014.
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Justification as to why the RPT is in the
interest of the listed entity and any
other information relevant or important
for the members to take a decision on
the proposed resolution

Mrs. Anisha Raoof Dhanani, is the
Promoter of the Company and is engaged
in managing some of the group
companies of the Promoters. Keeping in
view her experience in this industry and

contribution made by her, it would be in
the interest of the Company to appoint
her in the employment.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives except
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani, Managing Director and Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani, Whole-time
Director of the Company, are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the said resolution.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resolution as set out in Item
No. 07 of the notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 08:

In terms of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, as amended, the Master Direction —
Foreign Investment in India issued by RBI through Master Direction No. 11/2017-18 and the
Consolidated Policy Circular of 2017, as amended (together with the FEMA Rules, the “FEMA
Laws”), the Non-resident Indians (“NRI”) and the Overseas Citizens of India (“OCT”), together,
can acquire and hold up to an aggregate limit of 10% of the paid up equity share capital of a
Listed Indian Company. The FEMA Laws further provide that the limit of 10% can be further
increased up to 24% by passing a special resolution to that effect by the members of the Indian
Company and followed by necessary filings with Reserve Bank of India.

In light of the above provision, the Board of Directors of the Company has, at its meeting held
on 28" May, 2024, proposed, subject to the approval of the members by way of a special
resolution, to increase the foreign investment limit of NRIs to 24% of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resclution as set out in Item
No. 08 of the notice as the Special Resolution.

Item No. 09:

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between Sayaji Hotels
Limited and Ahilya Hotels Limited and Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited and Sayaji Hotels (Pune)
Limited and Sayaji Hotels Management Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors
under section 230 to 232 read with section 52 and 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, entire Indore and Pune business of Sayaji Hotels Limited has been
demerged and vested into Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited and Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited
respectively.

Hence, to increase ease of Operations and Management, the Company has also decided to shift
its registered office from Chennai to Vadodara.

In terms of provisions contained in Section 13(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the alteration of
the Clause II of Memorandum of Association pertaining to change of place of registered office
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of the Company from one state to another state requires approval of the shareholders by Special
Resolution passed by the members of the Company.

Approval of the shareholders is therefore sought for shifting of registered office from Chennai
in the State of Tamil Nadu to Vadodara in the State of Gujarat (within the jurisdiction of
Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad) as aforesaid.

The Board of Directors recommends passing of the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 09 of
the accompanying notice.

A copy of the Memorandum of Association of the Company together with the proposed
alterations as set out in the Resolution at Item No. 09 of the Notice is available for inspection
by members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on any working
day, except on Sundays between 11:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

In light of the above, your Directors recommend to pass necessary resolution as set out in Item
No. 09 of the notice as the Special Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Sayaji Hotels Limited

Date: 28" May, 2024 Ankur Bindal
Place: Indore Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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INFORMATION

REGARDING

ANNEXURE 1

THE DIRECTORS PROPOSED FOR

APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT PURSUNAT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS,

2015

(A)

Sr.
No.

L.

Particulars \

Brief resume of the directors

Name of Director

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani

Designation Managing Director
DIN 00174654

Age 60 Years
Nationality Indian
Qualification Bachelor’s Degree

Date of appointment

5% November, 2018 (Originally appointed on 14" November,
2013)

Nature of expertise in
specific functional
areas

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani brings a wealth of experience and
knowledge to the field of fertilizers and Hotel and
Administration industries.

His extensive experience allows him to navigate complex
challenges and opportunities within the organization which
significantly leads to organization success and growth.

Disclosure of
relationships between
directors inter-se.

Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani is relative of Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani,
Whole-Time Director and Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak
Dhanani, Additional — Non Executive Director of the
Company.

Shareholding of
directors in the
Company  including
shareholding as a
beneficial owner, if
any.

As on 31% March, 2024, Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani holds
15,27,630 Equity Shares (8.72%) of the Company.

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (including
listed companies)

a) Aries Hotels Private Limited

b) Alisha Agrophos Private Limited

¢) Kshipra Restaurants Private Limited
d) Malwa Hospitality Private Limited

e) Red Apple Kitchen Consultancy Private Limited
f) Super Civiltech Private Limited

g) Barbeque Nation Hospitality Limited
h) Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited
1) Prinite Hospitality Private Limited

j) Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

k) Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited

1) Blue Planet Foods Private Limited

m) Favorite Restaurants Private Limited
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Names of listed entities
in which the person
also holds the
directorship

a) Promoter and Director in Barbeque-Nation Hospitality
Limited

b) Promoter and Director in Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

¢) Promoter and Director in Sayaji Hotels (Indore)
Limited

Chairmanships/Memberships of the Committees of other Listed companies as on

March 31, 2024

Membership/Chairmanship into the Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

Audit Committee

Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee

Member

Stakeholder
Relationship
Committee

Corporate Social
Responsibility
Committee

Membership/Chairmanship into the Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Audit Committee

Member

Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee

Stakeholder
Relationship
Committee

Member

Membership/Chairmanship into the Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited

Audit Committee

Member

Nomination and
Remuneration

Committee

Stakeholder
Relationship
Committee

Member

Name of listed entities
from which the
director has resigned in
the past three years

(B)

Particulars

Brief resume of the directors

Name of Director

Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani

Designation Additional Director (Non-Executive Director)
DIN 10550544
Age 70 Years
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Nationality Indian
Qualification Graduate from Mumbai University
Date of appointment 29'" March, 2024

2. | Nature of expertise in | « Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani is an
specific functional Industrialist with interests across fertilizer, hospitality &
areas salon, casual dining, sweets & snacks and realty businesses

that are spread pan India and globally.

e His innovative style of functioning led him to become a
pioneer in many business segments.

¢ His valuable inputs have helped many businesses scale up
with the help of backward integration.

¢ His forte lies in formulating several successful strategies
which has shaped his businesses to reach iconic levels.

¢ He is now actively involved in rendering mentorship to the
Board of his Companies falling in his group as well as early
stage start-ups.

3. | Disclosure of | Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani is relative of Mr.
relationships between | Raoof Razak Dhanani, Managing Director and Mrs. Suchitra
directors inter-se. Dhanani, Whole-Time Director of the Company.

4. | Shareholding of
directors in the
Company  including Nil
shareholding as a
beneficial owner, if
any.

5. | List of Directorships
held in other .. . . .
companies (including a) Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited
listed companies)

6. | Names of listed entities
in which the person Nil
also holds the
directorship

(©

Sr. Particulars

~ No. |

L. | Brief resume of the directors
Name of Director Mr. Nimesh Kumar Natwarlal Gandhi
Designation Additional Director (Non-Executive — Independent Director)
DIN 10516536
Age 57 Years
Nationality Indian
Qualification Chartered Accountant
Date of appointment 29 March, 2024

2. | Nature of expertise in | Mr. Nimesh Kumar Natwarlal Gandhi is a Chartered
specific functional | Accountant by profession having an experience of about 29
areas years in the field of accounts, taxation and corporate

governance.
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Disclosure of
relationships between
directors inter-se.

NA

Shareholding of
directors in the
Company  including
shareholding as a
beneficial owner, if
any.

NA

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (including
listed companies)

Nil

Names of listed entities
in which the person
also holds the

directorship

Nil

(D)

Sr.
No.

L.

Particulars \

Brief resume of the directors

Name of Director

Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala

Designation

Additional Director (Non-Executive — Independent Director)

DIN

06611659

Age

55 Years

Nationality

Indian

Qualification

Chartered Accountant

Date of appointment

280 May, 2024

ro

Nature of expertise in
specific functional
areas

Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala is a Chartered Accountant by
profession and Quality Control Auditor — certified by Bureau
Veritas Quality International (BVQI).

Disclosure of
relationships between
directors inter-se.

NA

Shareholding of
directors in the
Company  including
shareholding as a
beneficial owner, if
any.

NA

List of Directorships
held in other
companies (including
listed companies)

a) Technogram Private Limited
b) Malwa Hospitality Private Limited

Names of listed entities
in which the person
also holds the
directorship

Nil
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

TO’
THE MEMBERS
SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

The Board of Directors of your Company, with extensive gratification is presenting the 41 Annual Report
of your Company for the year ended 31° March, 2024,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance on the basis of Standalone & Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended 315 March, 2024 is summarized as below:

Standalone Consolidated
(Rs. In Lakhs) (Rs. In Lakhs)
Previous Previous
e Current N N . .
Particulars Financial Fm:lncnal Fmrancml Financial Year
Year LS Year 31.03.2023
© 31.03.2023  31.03.2024 31.03.202.
31.03.2024 (Restate d) (Restated)
Revenue from Operations 1117632 | 1149821 | 11.17632 11.498.21
Other Income 469.96 2.675.48 486.08 315.68
Total income 11,646.28 | 14,173.69 | 11,662.40 11,813.89
Total Operating Expenditure 745916 | 8184.62 | 7,460.20 8,185.45
Profit/(loss) before Depreciation,
Finance costs, Exceptional items and | 4 147 15 | 598907 | 420220 3,628.44
tax expense
Less:
Depreciation/Amortization/Impairment 1,143.38 1,011.37 1,143.38 1,011.37
Profit/(Loss) before Finance cost,
Exceptional items and Tax Expense | 3,043.74 4,977.70 3,058.82 2,617.07
Less: Finance Costs 737.69 775.61 738.75 788.62
Profit/(loss) before Exceptional
items and Tax Expense 2,306.05 4,202.09 2,320.07 1,828.45
Add/(less): Exceptional items i i i i
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Profit /(Loss) before Tax Expense
and Share of Profit/(Loss) of the 2,306.05 | 420209 | 232007 1,828.45
Associates
Share of Profit/(Loss) of the
Associates - - (398.21) 506.55
Profit /(Loss) before Tax Expense 2,306.05 4202.09 1921.86 2,335.00
Less: Tax Expense - Current &
Deferred 484.64 1,262.67 488.20 1,281.55
Profit/ (loss) for the year (1) 182141 | 293942 | 1433.66 1,053.45
Other Comprehensive
Income/(loss)(2) (31.57) 1.05 (58.30) 21.19)
Total (1+2) 1,789.84 | 294047 | 137536 1,032.26
PERFORMANCE

The annexed Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this report and covers, amongst
other matters, the performance of the Company during the Financial Year 2023-24 as well as the future
outlook.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve cash and ensure liquidity for the operations in the coming years, directors have

considered it prudent to not propose any dividend on the shares of the Company for the Financial Year
ended on 31% March, 2024.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for
FY 2023-24 appearing in the statement of profit and loss.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As on the financial year ended 31* March, 2024, the:
e Authorized Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 32,10,00,000 (Rupees Thirty-Two Crores Ten Lakhs
Only) divided into 3,21,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

e Paid Up Share Capital

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company is Rs. 17,51,79,770 (Rupees Seventeen Crores Fifty-One
Lakhs Seventy-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Seventy Only) divided into 1,75,17,977 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each.
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During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting right neither
granted stock option nor sweat equity. Further the Company not issued any debenture bonds and any non-
convertible securities.

The Company’s equity shares are listed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company has redeemed its Unlisted 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/-
each and has extinguished the ISINs related to such Preference Shares.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

During the year, your Company did not accept any public deposits as provided under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the rules made thereunder as such and no amount on account of
principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

During the year under review the Company has not received any amount as loan from director of the
Company.

REVISION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OR BOARDS’ REPORT UNDER SECTION 131(1)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In terms of Section 131 of the Act, the Financial Statements and Board’s Report are in compliance with
the provisions of Section 129 or Section 134 of the Act and that no revisicn has been made during any of
the three preceding financial years.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Provisions of Section 186 of the Act for loans given, investments made or guarantees or security provided
1s not applicable on your Company, being in exempt list for providing infrastructural facilities in terms of
Schedule VI of the Act, except as provided in the financial statements of the Company.

UPGRADATION AND ADDITIONS

M/s. Sayaji Hotels Limited has signed and entered intc 24 (Twenty-Four) Management and Lease
Agreements for the expansion of its Brand by having new properties in Following places:

Sr. No. | Brand Name Place State
Udaipur Rajasthan
Tadoba Maharashtra
1. Sayaji Gwalior Madhya Pradesh
Khandala Mabharashtra
Lonavala Mabharashtra
Raipur Chhattisgarh
Goa Goa
2. Effotel by Taloja Mabharashtra
Sayaji Pithampur Madhya Pradesh
Sangli Maharashtra
Junagadh Gujarat
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Amravati Mabharashtra
Kevadiya Gujarat
Dahisar Mabharashtra
Latur Maharashtra
3. Enrise by Bhuj Gujarat
Sayaji Lonavala Maharashtra
Hoshangabad Madhya Pradesh
Sawer Madhya Pradesh
Dwarka Gujarat
Ujjain Madhya Pradesh
Gandhidham Gujarat
Solapur Mabharashtra
Gulbarga Karnataka

This expansion plan will lead to an addition of around 1692 new rooms into the portfolio. It aims at
strengthening and increasing presence on PAN India basis.

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench through its order dated July 11, 2023 has
approved the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between Sayaji Hotels Limited
(“Demerged Company” or “SHL”), Ahilya Hotels Limited (“Transferor Company 17), Sayaji Hotels
(Indore) Limited (Formerly known as Sayaji Hotels (Vadodara) Limited) (“Resulting Company 1” or
“SHIL”), Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited (“Resulting Company 2 ” or “SHPL”) and Sayaji Hotels
Management Limited (“Transferor Company 2”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors under
the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 52 and 66 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Upon the Composite Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all the
Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Company, together with all its properties, assets, rights, benefits
and interest therein, stood transferred to and vested in the Resulting Companies.

Both the Resulting Companies, i.c., “Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited” and “Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited”
strategically transformed into a Listed Company through the Scheme of Arrangement and “Sayaji Hotels
(Indore) Limited” obtained trading approval on 11" January, 2024 and subsequently listing its shares on
the Bombay Stock Exchange on January 15", 2024 and “Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited” obtained the
trading approval on 24" January, 2024 and subsequently listing its shares on the Bombay Stock Exchange
on 29" January, 2024.

Both the Transferor Companies, i.e., Ahilya Hotels Limited (“Transferor Company 1”) and Sayaji
Hotels Management Limited (“Transferor Company 2”) amalgamated into the Sayaji Hotels Limited
(“Demerged Company” or “SHL”).

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE
The Company has a policy and framework for employees to report sexual harassment cases at workplace

and our process ensures complete anonymity and confidentiality of information. The said policy can be
accessible through https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/policy-on-sexual-harassment.pdf.

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and towards this end, has
adopted a policy in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
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Prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under the said policy. Internal Complaints Committees has also been set
up to redress complaints received on sexual harassment.

During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment from
the women employees of the Company and no complaint was pending at the end of the year.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

As on 31% March, 2024, your Company has 1 (One) Wholly-Owned Subsidiary and 1 (One) Associate
Company which are here as under:

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company Associate Company

Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

In accordance with Section 129(3) of the Act read with Rule 8(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary and associate have been prepared
by the Company and a separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of its
subsidiary and associate company in form AOC-1 is attached as ‘Annexure - 1’ to this Annual Report.

In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the Act, separate audited accounts of the subsidiary company
shall be available on Company’s website https:/sayajihotels.com/investors/. The Company will make
available physical copies of these documents upon request by any shareholder of the Company interested
in obtaining the same and are available for inspection by any Member of the Company at the Registered
Office of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Board of Directors formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy for your Company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force), on the recommendations of the Board of Directors of the Company.
The policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy for delinecating its responsibility as a corporate citizen
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare &
sustainable development of the community at large. CSR Policy is placed on the Company’s website at
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.pdf.

In the Financial Year 2022-23, the average net profit of the Company exceeded the limits as mentioned
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, i.e., net profit of Rs. 5 Crores (Rupees Five Crores Only)
and thus the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) becomes applicable on the Company
for the Financial Year 2023-24 for the very first time.

Therefore, the Company has made expenditure of Rs. 49,83,431/-, i.e., two percent of the average net
profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years in the trusts Palghar
Memon Welfare Trust and Jan Jagrati Sevarth Sansthan as per the provisions of the Act and CSR Rules
made thereunder through cheques dated 30" March, 2024 amounting to Rs. 10,00,000/- and Rs.
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39,83,431/- respectively before 315 March, 2024. Furthermore, the detailed information is provided in
Annexure - 2 attached with the report in accordance with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

Since, the amount to be spent on CSR activities does not exceed Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs
Only), the Company is not required to constitute the CSR Committee and thus the functions of such
Committee provided under Section 135 are discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company had in place a mechanism to avoid Insider Trading and abusive self-dealing in the securities
of the Company by the Directors of the Company and other designated persons. For the above mentioned
purpose, the Company has established systems and procedures to prohibit insider trading activity and has
framed a Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report trading by insiders and Code of Fair
Practices and Procedures for disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) (“Code
of Conduct™) as per the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (PIT
Regulations), which prohibits the Directors of the Company and other designated persons to deal in the
securities of the Company on the basis of any UPSI, available tc them by virtue of their position in the
Company. The objective of this Code of Conduct is to prevent misuse of any UPSI and prohibit any insider
trading activity, in order to protect the interest of the shareholders at large.

A report on compliance of Minimum Standards for Code of Conduct and details of violation are placed
before the Board on annual basis.

The Code of conduct are available on the website of the Company at
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/Annexure 1 Code_of Conduct.pdf,https://sayajihotels.com/images
/pdf/Annexure 2 Code of Fair Disclosure.pdf.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As at 31% March, 2024, the composition of the Board of Directors was in accordance with the provisions
of Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with an optimum combinaticn of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors.

As on the date of this Annual Report, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 6 members. The
Board consists of Managing Director, Whole time Director, 2 Independent Directors and 2 Additional
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, the details of which are as under:

E]:; Name Designation
L. Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari Independent Director, Chairperson
2. Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Managing Director
3. Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Whole Time Director
4, Mrs. Isha Garg Independent Director
5. Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi Additional - Independent Director
6. | Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani Additional - Non Executive Director
7. Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal Chief Financial Officer
8. Mr. Ankur Bindal Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

32




CHANGES IN THE COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237), Independent Director,
Chairman of Company ceased to be Chairman and Independent Director of the Company with effect from
31% March, 2024 and Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari was appointed as Chairman of the Board as well
as of the Audit Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the Independent Directors
Committee.

Further, Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi was appointed as an Additicnal Director - Independent Category
w.e.f. 29 March, 2024 and Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani was appointed as an Additional
Director — Non-Executive Category w.e.f. 29" March, 2024 during the year under review.

Furthermore, the first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director
of the Company had expired on 13 February, 2024.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Independent Directors have
submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations™), they have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or
situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. Also
pursuant to Rule 6(3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. they
declared that the provisions of Sub-Rule (1) and Sub-Rule (2) of Rule 6 of the said rules has been complied
with.

The Board of Directors, after considering due assessment of the veracity of the declaration submitted by
the Independent Directors under sub section (6} of Section 149 of the Act read with sub-regulation (9) of
Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, was of the opinion that all the Independent Directors meet the
criteria of independence and have adequate expertise, integrity, proficiency and experience for discharging
their duties.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Your Company believes that a Board which is well familiarized with the Company and its affairs, can
contribute significantly to effectively discharge its role of trusteeship in a manner that fulfils stakeholders’
aspirations and societal expectations. In pursuit of this, the Directors of the Company are updated on
changes/developments in the domestic/global corporate and industry scenario including those pertaining
to statutes/legislations & economic environment and on matters significantly affecting the Company, to
understand their roles and responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business
model of the Company which enable them to take well informed and timely decisions.

All Independent Directors are taken through a detailed induction and familiarization programme when
they join the Board of your Company and are provided with induction kits which, inter alia, include the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, Code of Conduct of Board of Directors, Code of
Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and other relevant documents. Updates on relevant statutory
changes are briefed to the Directors at their meeting.
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Apart from the above, the Directors are also given an update on the environmental and social impact of
the business, corporate governance, regulatory developments and investor relations matters.

Further, during the year, presentations were also made from time to time at the Board and its committee
meetings, on regular intervals, covering the business and financial performance of the Company, business
outlook and budget, expansion plans, succession plans etc. The details of familiarization programme

attended by Independent Directors 18 available on the website at
https://sayvajihotels.com/images/familiarization%20programme%20for%20Independent%20directors.pdf.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION OF BOARD BY THEM

During the year under review, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 29" day of March,
2024 without the presence of non-independent directors and members of the management pursuant to
Schedule V of the Act and Regulation 25(3) and (4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, details of which is present in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION

Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani, Managing Director (DIN: 00174654) will retire by rotation at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting (*AGM’) of your Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
in accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Act read with Articles of Association of the
Company.

The disclosure pertaining to the director being re-appointed as required pursuant to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards — 2 is given in the
explanatory statement to the Notice convening the AGM, forming part of this Annual Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS EFFECTIVENESS

During the year under review, your Board has met Nine (9) times and details of the composition of the
Board and its Committees and of the meetings held and attendance of the Directors at such meetings are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

Further, the Company for effectiveness of Board process has adopted the Governance Guidelines which
inter alia, cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman and Directors, Board
diversity, definition of independence. Director’s term, retirement age and Committees of the Board. It also
covers aspects relating to nomination, appointment, induction and development of Directors, Director’s
remuneration, Code of Conduct, Board Effectiveness Review and mandates of Board Committees.

COMMITEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Company has 6 (Six) Committees as mentioned below and details with
respect to the compositions, charters and meetings held are given in detail in the Corporate Governance
Report forming part of this Annual Report:

e Audit Committee
e Borrowing and Investment Committee




o Nomination and Remuneration Committee
e Stakeholders” Relationship Committee

e Scheme Implementation Committee

e Independent Directors Committee

The details of Composition of the above-mentioned Committees are also available on the Company’s websit¢

https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/composition-various-committees/Committes % 200f %2 0B oard. pdf.

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

In accordance with Section 178 of the Act with Rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), details of
which has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report and
your Company has also formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“NRC Policy”) in
accordance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 for appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel, salient features of which
are hereunder:

¢ NRC shall identify potential candidates who are qualified to become Directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down in the NRC Policy and to
recommend the Board for their appointment and removal;

¢ NRC shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a Director and recommend to the Board a NRC Policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors,
key managerial personnel and other senior management person;

¢ NRC shall carry cut an annual evaluation process of the Board performance and its Committees;

¢ NRC Policy contains provisions regarding retirement and the Board shall have the discretion in retain
the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/remuneration or otherwise
even after attaining the retirement age, upon the recommendation of the NRC for the benefit of the
Company;

e NRC policy ensures that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain, motivate and promote talent to run the Company successfully and ensures long term
sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage;

e NRC policy ensures relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and shall directly linked to
their effort. performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations;

e NRC shall recommend remuneration for KMP (except WTD/MD) and Senior Management Personnel
on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee, including professional experience,
responsibility, job complexity and market conditions.

As per Section 134(3) and 178(4) of the Act, the web link of Nomination and Remuneration Policy of
the Company is https://sayajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Nomination _and Remuneration Policy.pdf.

L4
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AFFIRMATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director
and Executive Directors and Senior Management. In addition, the Company has alsc adopted a Code of
Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the
Company's website at https://sayajihotels.com/images/pdf/code-of-
conduct/Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Management 2.pdf.

All Directors and members of Senior Management have as on 31% March 2024, atfirmed their compliance
with:

e Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management
e Code for Independent Directors, as applicable.

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Managing Director regarding compliance of the codes
as stipulated above. The Certificate is appended as “Annexure — 3” to this Annual Report.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of your Company has carried out a formal annual
evaluation of the performance of the Board as a whole, its Committees and of individual directors through
a structured questionnaire, prepared after taking into consideration the guidance note issued by SEBI and
ICSI on Board evaluation, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning, Committee effectiveness,
director’s efficiency on individual basis etc.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an effective system in place for identification of elements of risk which are associated
with the accomplishment of objectives, operations, development, revenue and regulations in relation to
the Company and appropriate measures are taken, wherever required, to mitigate such risks beforehand.

The Company has specifically identified following risks and also preparing mitigation plans for each risk
identified:

Risk of business slowdown, inadequate growth and negative returns;
Risk related to cyber security;

Risk of deterioration of financial health and business interruption;
Risk of inadequate compliance;

Risk of Guest and Staff behavior; and

e Risk of impact on reputation and fraud.

e @ e o

Along with this Statutory as well as Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee during their audit
and highlight risks, if any, associated with organization and also suggest the appropriate measures, in
consultation with the management and the Audit Committee, which can be taken by the Company in this
regard. The Statutory Auditors also report to the Audit Committee of any instance of non-adherence to
the procedures and manual which may increase the risk of frauds in the organization.




The Company has in place Risk Management Policy formulated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 134(3)(n) of the Act, which is available at
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Risk Management Policv.pdf. There has been no change in
the policy during the year under review.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

Your Company firmly believes that a well-planned HRM program that is tailored to your organization and
staff can actually improve your business’s bottom line.

Our teams are integral to our business. We have embraced a culture of excellence and meritocracy to
nurture our people. We believe in selecting the right talent, training them and instilling in them the spirit
of Sayajiians. We focus on developing the most superior workforce so that the organization and individual
employees can accomplish their work goals in service to customers. We aim also at achieving advance
flexibility, innovation, competitive advantage and improved business performance.

Sayaji follows a performance measuring tocl like Balance Score Card (BSC) and Key Performance
Indicators (KPI), applicable depending on their position in the organization, by which periodical
evaluation of the employees™ performance is done based on their area of working. This also encourage
them to work hard and efficiently at all levels of work.

The Company has total number of permanent employees on roll as at 31* March, 2024 was 557 across all
its hotel units. The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is furnished in the
‘Annexure — 4’ to this Annual report.

Further, none of the employee in the Company falls under the provision of Section 197(12) of the Act and
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has established an adequate system of internal controls, with documented procedures
covering all corporate functions and hotel operating units. Internal controls provide:

e reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e the adequacy of safeguards for assets;

e assurance regarding reliability of financial statements;

e the reliability of financial controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The internal audit process provides a positive assurance to the Company about the internal financial
control, it converges process framework, risk and control matrix and a scoring matrix, covering all critical
and important functions inter-alia revenue management, hotel operations, purchase, finance, human
resources and safety. It ensures that all the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly
and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained
by the Company, the work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors and external
consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board Committees, including the
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Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during Financial Year 2(23-24.

POLICIES

The Company has adopted various policies under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and other applicable laws, which are given here below:

o Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

+ Familiarization Programme for Independent directors

¢ Material Subsidiary Policy

« Related Party Transaction Policy

+ Risk Management Policy

+ Nomination and Remuneration Policy

« Policy for Determination of Materiality

+ Policy for Preservation of the Documents and Archival of Documents
+ Business Responsibility Policy

e Policy for Procedure of Inquiry in Case of Leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (“UPSI™)
¢ Whistle Blower & Vigil Mechanism Policy

¢ Policy on Sexual Harassment

All the policies are amended as required from time to time and are available at the Company’s website
under Investor’s head which can be accessed through link: https://savyajihotels.com/investors/.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Directors of your Company, to the best of their knowledge and
ability and based upon representations from the Management, hereby confirm that:

e in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 111 to the Act, have been followed
and there are no material departures from the same;

e they have selected such accounting policies in consultation with Statutory Auditors and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs and profit of the Company at the end of the Financial Year 2023-
24

e they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

e they have prepared annual financial statements for vear ended 31¥ March, 2024 on a going concern
basis;

e they have laid down internal financial controls for your Company, which are adequate and operating
effectively; and
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e they have been devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

A statement to the effect is annexed here to as ‘Annexure-5’ forming part of this Annual Report.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the contracts, arrangements or transactions entered into during the year under review by the Company
with related parties were in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Prior omnibus
approval is obtained for related party transactions (RPT’s) which are of a repetitive nature and entered in
the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s Length. A statement on RPTs specifying the details of
the transactions, pursuant to each omnibus approval granted, has been placed on quarterly basis for review
by the Audit Committee.

Since all the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s
length basis and in ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Act are
not applicable. Thus, the disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. Further, there are no materially
significant Related Party Transactions during the year under review made by the Company with its
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, your Company has framed a policy on dealing with RPTs which can
be accessed on the Company’s website under the link:
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/Annexure 4 RPT Policy.pdf. This Policy intends to ensure that
proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions with the Related
Parties.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s Manish Joshi and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 011631C) were
appointed with your approval as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive years
at the 40" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 2" day of November 2023 to hold
the office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the Year 2028.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is part of this Annual Report.
There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their
report. During the year under review, the Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Neelesh Gupta & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (COP
No. 6846) in accordance with provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to conduct Secretarial
Audit and Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year 2023-24 whose report is attached
separately to this report as “Annexure - 6” of this Report.
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The Company has undertaken an audit for the year ended 31% March, 2024, pursuant to Regulation 24A
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for all applicable
compliances as per the said Regulations. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report duly signed by Mr.
Neelesh Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary is available on the website of the Company at
https://savajihotels.com/investors/.

COST AUDITOR

The Company is not required to maintain cost records and conduct cost audit in accordance with Section
148(1) of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 as the services
of the Company are not covered under the said rules and limits.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has been practicing the principles of good corporate governance and is committed to
maintain high standards of the corporate ethics and professionalism. The tenets of inclusiveness and
transparency are integral part of our corporate governance practices.

In compliance with the provisions of Regulations 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a report on Corporate Governance is available as a separate section in
this Annual Report.

A certificate pursuant to Para E Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, from M/s. Manish Joshi and Associates, Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached as ‘Annexure - 7’ to this Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, as part of vigil mechanism in confirmation with
Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to provide Directors and employees an avenue to lodge
Complaints, in line with the commitment of Company to the highest possible standards of ethical, moral
and legal business conduct and its commitment to open communication and to provide necessary
safeguards for protection of employees from reprisals or victimization, for whistle-blowing in good faith.

The purpose of this policy is to provide a framework to protect employees wishing to raise a concern about
serious irregularities within the Company. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company have been
denied to access to the Chairman of Audit Committee.

The details of the policy have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of
the Annual Report and is also available on https://sayajihotels.com/images/pdf/whistle-blower-vigil-
mechanism/Whistle Blower Vigil Mechanism Policv.pdf.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Para B Schedule V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Report on Company’s performance — industry trends and other material changes with respect to the
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Company and its subsidiary, wherever applicable, forms part of this Annual Report.
MD & CFO CERTIFICATION

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule 11 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company have issued a certificate authenticating Financial Statements for the Financial
Year 2023-24 which provides a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the said certificate
dated 28" May, 2024 was placed before the Board in its meeting held on 28" May, 2024 and was reviewed
and taken on record by the Board. The said Certificate is attached as “Annexure - 8” to this Annual
Report. Since there’s no CEO in the Company, therefore certificate is taken from MD and CFO of the
Company.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, requires preparation of consolidated financial statements of
the Company and of all the subsidiaries including associate company and joint venture businesses in the
same form and manner as that of its own. In conformity with the above section and Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the
Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements which are forming part of this Annual Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGOES

Your Company is continuously striving towards conservation of energy across all its units and has also
earned foreign currency in Financial Year 2023-24, complete details with regard to Conservation of
Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo in accordance with the provisions
of Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 has been disclosed in “Annexure - 9” to this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with Secretarial Standards on Board Meeting
and General Meeting, as applicable on the Company, issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which occurred between the end of the financial year 2023-24 to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form on Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE). The Company have connectivity with the depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), as prescribed by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India. Equity shares of the Company representing 98.86% of the Company’s equity
share capital are dematerialized as on 31" March, 2024. Under the Depository System, the International
Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s Equity shares is INE318C01014.
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PAYMENT OF LISTING FEE AND CUSTODIAL FEE

Your Company has paid both Annual Listing Fee and Annual Custodial Fee for the Financial Year 2023-
24 to the BSE Limited and to the depositories, i.e., National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) respectively.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS,
COURTS AND TRIBUNALS

No significant and material order has been passed by the Regulators, Courts, Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

DISCLOSURE OF PROCEEDINGS PENDING OR APPLICATION MADE UNDER
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

No application was filed for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, by any financial or operational
creditor or by the Company itself under the IBC before the NCLT.

DISCLOSURE OF REASON FOR DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF TAKING LOAN FROM BANK AND AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT

There were no instances of one-time settlement with any Bank of Financial Institution.
GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

e Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013;

¢ Issue of Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

e Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save
and ESOS;

e No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concem status and Company’s operations in future.

CERTIFICATE FROM  PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY OF NON-
DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has obtained a certificate dated 28" May, 2024 from M/s. Neelesh Gupta & Co., Practicing
Company Secretaries in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause
(10) (1) of LODR Regulations, 2015 confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Company by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any such
statutory authority and the same is annexed hereto as “Annexure — 10,

WEB ADDRESS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a), web address of the annual return as on
315 March, 2024 in form MGT-7 is hitps://sayajihotels.com/images/Form MGT 7 Website%20Updation.pdf.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the
Company to remain a fighter during this unfavorable time.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-operation your Company has been
receiving from its suppliers, distributors, retailers, vendors and others associates. Your Company looks
upon them as partners in its progress, it will be your Company’s endeavor to build and nurture strong links
with them based on mutuality of benefits, respect for and co-operation with each other, consistent with
consumer interests.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, Government
and Regulatory Authorities and Stock Exchanges for their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Indore Abhay Chitnaman Chaudhari
Date: 28" May, 2024 Chairman
DIN: 06726836
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ANNEXURE “1” TO THE BOARD REPORT

FORM NO. AOC-1

PART: A

SUBSIDIARY

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or
associate companies or joint Ventures

Name of the Subsidiary Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited
Date of acquiring Subsidiary 16.03.2016
Financial year ending on 31.03.2024
Reporting Currency INR

(In Lakhs)
Exchange rate on the lastday of financial year NA
Share Capital 636.50
Reserve & Surplus 141.86
Total Assets 781.11
Total Liabilitiesexcluding equity 2.75
Investments 580.14
Turnover 16.12
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 14.01
Provision for tax including deferred tax 3.56
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 10.45
Proposed Dividend -
% of shareholding 100




PART B:
ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint

Ventures
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Barhbeque Nation
Name of Associates or Joint Ventures Hospitality Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2024
Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or 29.03.2016
acquired
2. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the Company on -
the year end
No. of Equity Shares 1,16,02,828
Amount of Investment in Associate or Joint Venture 11,670.19
Extend of Holding (in percentage) 29.70%
. L . M/s. Sayaji Housekeeping
3. Description of how there is significant influence Services Ltd. (ie. 100%
subsidiary of M/s. Sayaji
Hotels Ltd.) holds 29.70%
stake in M/s. Barbeque
Nation Hospitality Ltd.
therefore it is an associate
of M/s. Sayaji Hotels Ltd.
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not considered NA
5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited
Balance Sheet gap 11,670.19
6. Profit or Loss for the year -398.21
i. Considered in Consolidation Yes
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation -
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For Manish Joshi &
Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 011631C

Nikhil Upadhyay
Partner
M. No. 465758

Date: 28" May, 2024
Place: Indore

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Abhay Chintaman
Chaudhari
Director

DIN: 06726836

Sandesh Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

Raoof Razak Dhanani

Managing Director
DIN: 00174654

Ankur Bindal
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer




ANNEXURE ‘2’ TO BOARD REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Your Company has a CSR Policy which is uploaded on website of the Company at
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Corporate_Social Responsibility Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, the Company has made expenditure of Rs. 49,83,431/-, i.e.,
two per cent. of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately
preceding financial years in the trusts Palghar Memon Welfare Trust and Jan Jagrati Sevarth
Sansthan as per the provisions of the Act and CSR Rules made thereunder through cheques
dated 30™ March, 2024 amountin g to Rs. 10,00,000/- and Rs. 39,83,43 1/- respectively before
31* March, 2024.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The amount to be spend by the Company does not exceed Rs. 50 Lakhs, therefore pursuant
to Section 135(9) of the Act, the constitution of CSR committee is not applicable and the
functions of such committee are discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the Board are disclosed on the wehsite of the Company:

CSR Policy : https://savajihotels.com/images/pdi/policies/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.pdf

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014:

Not Applicable
5.

a)| Average net profit of the Company as per sub- 2491,71,562
section (5) of Section 135:

b)| Two percent of average net profit of the 49,83.431
Company as per suh-section (5) of Section 135

¢) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous Nil
financial years

d)| Amount required to be set off for the financial Nil
year, if any

e)| Total CSR obligation for the financial year 49 83,431
[(b)+(c) -(d)]

6.
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a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both 49,83,431
Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project)
b} | Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil
¢) | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if Nil
applicable
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 49,83,431
[@)+(b) +(c}]
e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total
Amount Amount Spent (in I)
Spent
For the
Financial
Year
(in%)
Total Amount | Amount transferred to any fund
transferred to Unspent | specified under Schedule VII as per
CSR Account as per sub- | second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section (6) of Section 135 | Section 135
Amount | Date of | Name of | Amount (in | Date of
(in %) Transfer the Fund | %) Transfer
49,83,431 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
a) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
Sr. No. Particulars Amount(in 3)
i. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company
as per sub-section (5) of Section 135
ii. | Total amount spent for the financial year
iii. | Excess amount spent for the financial vear [(ii)-(i)] Not Applicable

iv.

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous Financial

Years, if any
v. | Amount available for set off in succeeding
Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three

Financial Years:

Sr | Precedi | Amount | Balanc | Amoun | Amount Amount | Deficien
. ng transferr | e t Spent | transferred to a | remaini | cy, if any
No | Financi | ed to| Amou |in the | Fund as | ng to be
al Year | Unspent |nt in | Financi | specified under | spent in

CSR Unspe | al Year | Schedule VII as | succeedi

Account | nt (in% per second | ng

under CSR proviso to sub- | Financia

sub- Accou section (5) of [1(in%)
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section nt Section 135, if
6) of | under any

Section sub-
135 (in ) | section

(6) of Amou Date of
Sectio nt (in | Transf
n 135 3 er
(in 3)

Nil

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the financial year:

YES NO
O ©

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: NA

Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari Raoof Razak Dhanani
Director Managing Director
DIN: 06726836 DIN: 00174654
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ANNEXURE ‘3’ TO BOARD REPORT

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGULATION 34(3)
READWITH SCHEDULE V (D) OF LODR REGULATION, 2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE
TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Point D of Schedule — V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations, 20157) the Managing
Director of your Company hereby confirm and declare that all the Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct framed by the Company as per
Regulation 17(5) of the LODR Regulations, 2015 and Code of Independent Director as per Companies
Act, 2013, as applicable, for the year ended on 31°" March, 2024 as applicable to them and an affirmation
to the effect has been received from each Board Member and the Senior Management Personnel.

For Sayaji Hotels Limited

Date: 28" May, 2024 Raoof Razak Dhanani
Place: Mumbai Managing Director
DIN: 00174654
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ANNEXURE ‘4’ TO BOARD REPORT
Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of the

Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the Company for the financial year 2023-24:

Sr. Name of Director Designation Remuneration paid to  Median Ratio
No. Director in FY 2023-24 Remuneration
in FY 2023-24
i.  |Mrs. SU.Fhltl’& 'Whole Time Director 34.39 1.83 18.79
Dhanani
ii.  |Mr. Rao_of Razak [Managing Director 285 41 1.83 155.96
Dhanani

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager in the financial year 2023-24:

Remuneration Remuneration

. Paid in FY PaidinFY  Change  Change
Designation 2022-23 2023-24 in terms
of %
(In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)  (In Lakhs) :
i [Mrs. Suchitra | Whole Time 31.29 34.39 3. 9.91
Dhanani Director
i, | Mr- Raoof Razak Managing 212.54 285.41 72.87 34.29
Dhanani Director
... | Mr. Sandesh Chief Financial
il | b dewal Officer 24.72 24.72 0 -
iv. | Mr. Amit Sarraf* Company 2.64 0 (2.64) | (100.00)
Secretary
v. | Mr. Ankur Bindal Company 5.55 8.94 3.39 100.00
Secretary

* Mr. Amit Sarraf resigned as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 6"
June, 2022,

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2022-
23:

Remuneration FY Remuneration FY Increase

2022-23 2023-24 (In Lakhs)
(In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
1.6 1.83 0.23 14,38
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iv. The number of permanent employees on the roles of Company:

Name of the No. of Employees on No. of Employees on % Change during

Company payroll payroll the year
(As on 31.03.2023) (As on 31.03.2024)

Sayaji Hotels Ltd. 547 647 18.28

v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Remuneration Remuneration % changein Remuneration Remuneration % change in
paid to paid to remuneration paid to paid to remuneration
employees employees paid to managerial managerial paid to
excluding excluding employees personnel for  personnel for managerial

managerial managerial excluding FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 personnel
personnel for personnel for managerial (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs)
FY 2022-23 (In FY 2023-24 (In personnel (In
Lakhs) Lakhs) Lakhs)

1793.17 2033.12 13.38 276.74 353.36 27.69

vi. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The remuneration provided by the Company to the directors and employees is as per the remuneration
policy of the Company.

vi. Names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every
employee, who:

a. If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the
aggregate, was not less than Rs. 1,02,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore and Two Lakhs): Mr. Raocof
Razak Dhanani, Managing Director.

b. if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year,
at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs. 8,50,000/- per month (Rupees Eight Lakhs
and Fifty Thousand): Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani, Managing Director.

c¢. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that
drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along
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with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% (two percent) of the equity shares of the
company: None

d. Names of the employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being directors or their
relatives, drawing more than sixty lakh rupees per financial year or five lakh rupees per month: None

The statement under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawing
remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per month or Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or more per annum:

S. No. Name i Remune Nature of Qualifications Date of Age the last  the whether any such
ration employme and comme of employ percen employee is a relative
received nt, whether experience ncement Employ ment helt tage of of any director or

(In Lakhs) contractual of the of employ ee by such equity manager of the
or employee ment employ shares company and if so,
otherwise ee before name of such
joining director or manager
the
company

Mr. Racof Managing Qualification - 14/11/2013 : Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani

Razak Director Higher is relative of Mrs. Suchitra

Dhanani Secondary Dhanani, Whole Time
Experience - 9 Director of the Company
Years
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ANNEXURE ‘5’ TO BOARD REPORT

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. This responsibility includes matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The Company’s management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

These financial statements have been audited by M/s. Manish Joshi & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 28.05.2024 Suchitra Dhanani Raoof Razak Dhanani
Place: Indore Whole-Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 00712187 DIN: 00174654
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ANNEXURE ‘6’ TO BOARD REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

CIN- L51100TN1982PL.C124332

F1 C3Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Pallavaram Chennai TN 600117 India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by SAYAJI HOTELS
LIMITED (hereinafier called ‘the company’). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters of Compliances of the
various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. Our
responsibility to conduct the audit of the Compliances made during the year upon test
check basis. We have adopted such methods and procedure and based on our verification
of the SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31*March, 2024 has complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31* March, 2024
according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(1)) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made there
under;

55




(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)

Regulations, 2018

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

(v)

there under to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2015;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable for the review period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable for the review period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; (Not Applicable for the review period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable for the review period)

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable for the review period)

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants)
Regulations, 1996

Further all the listing compliances and checks have been carried out in the reference with
Secretarial Compliance Report along with all the observations made as uploaded on the
Stock Exchange.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
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During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations made by
the management and subject to clarifications given to us, the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc., mentioned

above,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the
extent as mentioned below:

Sr. Cf’“" Regu- | De | Ac [Typ | Details | Fin | Observ| Manage |Remarks
No.| Plance | on/ vial (o (e of | of e |ations/ | ment
Require- . tio Acti | o1 o
ment | Circul | .| n lon Violati | Am | Remar | Respons
(RFg“' ar No. Ta on ou [ks of e
l'atlons/ ke nt | the
circulars
/ guide- n Practic
. lin&s. by ing
lncl;dm Compa
specific ny
clause) Secreta
ry
1. | Shifting | Regula| - - - |[Hasnot| - The Shifting offShifting  of|
of tion 30 been Compa Registered|Registered
. ) Office offOffice of]
Register of filed ny has the he
ed Securit within intimat Company |[Company
Office of | ;o and the edto |within thefwithin the]
the Excha stipulat Stock |local ocal limits
Compan | oe ed time Exchan limits‘ ofof the city
y within | Board limit ge with the city = The
The BoardBoard
the local of the Meeting oc:lileeting off
limits of | ndia delay  |the the
the city | ([ istin of 45 |Company [Company
g Days [was heldiwas held on
Obliga on 10th{10th
' November [November,
tions . 2023 in2023  in
and which thefwhich the]
Disclo matter fogmatter for
sure shifting offshifting off
Requir [registered [registered
office  offoffice  of
ements
the the
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) Company [Company
Regula within thejwithin the
tions, city  waslcity  wasg|
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2015, and wefand we
|have givenlhave given|
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same  tofto Bombay
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Cxchange |(BSE) on
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letter and|
spirit  in|
future.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company are duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women

Independent Director.

During the year Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237) has resigned from
the post of Independent Director of the Company with effect from the closure of the
business hours of 31 March, 2024 as he has completed his tenure of two consecutive
terms of 5 years and Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari (DIN: 06726836) Independent
Non-Executive Director was appointed as the Chairperson of the Board as well as the
Company. Further, the first tenure of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala expired on 13"
February, 2024 however, his appointment for the second tenure is proposed in the ensuing

AGM of the Company.
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During the year Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani (DIN: 10550544} was
appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director and Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi
(DIN: 10516536) as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company
in the Board Meeting held on 29th March, 2024 till the conclusion of ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2024.

During the year there was revision in the sitting fees payable to the Independent Directors
of the Company for attending the Board and Committee Meetings and Change in the
composition of the Board of Directors and the reconstitution of certain committees of the
Board of Directors with effect from 1 April, 2024.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except where meeting
was held at shorter notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out by majority
as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of
the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines, standards etc.

We further report that: -
During the audit period of the company, there were instances of:
1. Related Party Transaction

The Company has entered into some related party transactions on the terms and
conditions as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company in their Board
Meetings and all transactions are as per the section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
at arm’s length basis.

2. Secretarial Auditor and Internal Auditor

During the year M/s Neelesh Gupta & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries was
appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for the financial year 2023-24 in the
Board meeting held on 29™ May, 2023.

During the year M/s Anirudh Sonpal & Associates, Chartered Accountants were
appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for units in Indore, Pune, Effotel
Vadodara, Sayaji - Vadodara and Amber Convention Center — Indore for the financial
year 2023-24 in the Board meeting held on 29"May, 2023.
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M/s Jitendra Baghel & Co., Chartered Accountant was appointed as Internal Auditor of
the Company for Bhopal Unit and M/s MRCA& Associates for Raipur Unit for the
financial year 2023-24 in the Board Meeting held on 29th May, 2023.

3. Change in Registered Office of the Company

During the year the Company has shifted its Registered Office from F1 C2 in Sivavel
Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600117
to F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram, Keelakattalai,
Kanchipuram, Tambaram, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, India, 600117 with effect from 1o
November, 2023 with in the local limits of the city where the registered office of the
company is situated.

4. Extension for holding of AGM of the Company

During the year Registrar of Companies, Chennai vide its approval letter dated 15
September, 2023 has granted approval to the Company under Section 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013 allowing an extension of three (3) months i.e. up to December 31,
2023, to hold the Annual General Meeting (“AGM™) of the Company. In view of the
above-mentioned approval of the Company has held its AGM for the Financial Year
ended 2022-23 on (2™ November, 2023.

5. Alteration in Memorandum and Article of Association of the Company

During the year the company has decreased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.
40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crores only) divided into 3,00,00,000 (Three Crores)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Preference shares of Rs. 100/-
each to Rs. 32,10,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-Two Crores Ten Lakhs only). Consequently,
Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company shall without any act,
instrumental or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Section 13,
61 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act
pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement and the company has not
altered the Article of Association during the vear.

6. Allotment of Security of the Company

During the year the Company has allotted 24,54,977 (Twenty-Four Lakhs Fifty-Four
Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy-Seven) Equity Shares of face value 10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each, as fully paid-up to the shareholders of Ahilya Hotels Limited in its Meeting
held on 3" August, 2023 pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement.

7. Transmission and Transfer of Security of the Company

Transmission of 11,47,511 shares of Late Mr. Sajid Abdul Razak Dhanani to Mrs.
Suchitra Dhanani, Ms. Zoya Dhanani and Ms. Sanya Dhanani (Legal Heirs) and Mr.
Shamin Sheikh Transfer 600000 equity shares to Mr. Kayum Razak Dhanani by way of
Gift which was duly registered by the Company.
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8. Redemption of Preference Shares of the Companies

During the year the company has redeemed of 10,00,000 10% fully paid up Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each which were issued at a premium of Rs.
50/- each and be redeemed at Rs. 200/- each in the board meeting in the Board of
Director meeting held on 4% October, 2023 and approved by members in the Annual
General Meeting held on 2" November, 2023 pursuant to Section 55 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

9. Appointment of Statutory Auditor of the Companies

During the year the Company has appointed M/s Manish Joshi & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Regtn. No.: 011631C) as Statutory Auditor of the company for a
period of five years commencing from the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting
and upto the conclusion of the 45th Annual General Meeting to be held in the Year 2028
and approval of which from the Members by way of Ordinary Resolution was obtained
in the AGM of the company held in the year 2023 and M/s K. L. Vyas & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Firm Regtn No.: 003289C) the Statutory Auditor of the company has
retired after completion of their tenure at the 40th Annual General Meeting held on
November (02, 2023.

10. Investment of the Companies

During the year under review, Intellistay Hotels Private Limited ceased to be the
Associate Company as the entire amount of investment of Savaji Hotels Management
Limited has been written-off against loss on impairment of investment.

11. Amalgamation and Arrangement

During the year the Company has received order dated 11% July 2023 from the National
Company Law Tribunal, Chennai, Chennai Bench regarding sanctioned the Scheme of
Amalgamation and Arrangement between Sayaji Hotels Limited and Ahilya Hotels
Limited and Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited [Formerly known as Sayaji Hotels
(Vadodara) Limited] and Savaji Hotels (Pune) Limited and Sayaji Hotels Management
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230-232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Scheme was effective from Olst August, 2023 and Pursuant to the Scheme, the
Transferor Company Ahilya Hotels Limited &Sayaji Hotels Management is dissolved
without winding up and the Resulting Company Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited &Sayaji
Hotels (Pune) Limited stands demerged from Sayaji Hotels Limited. The shares of the
Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited & Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited are going to be listed on
the Designated Stock Exchange. As consideration of the Amalgamation, the Company
has allotted 24,54,977 (Twenty-Four Lakh Fifty-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy-
Seven only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to the shareholders of Ahilya Hotels Limited,
as on record date i.e. 28™ July, 2023 and cross holding of 24,55,000 Equity Shares of the
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Company has been cancelled on account of cross holding which were held by Ahilya
Hotels Limited.

The Company had also obtained the listing approval as well as trading approval vide
BSE intimation letter dated SthAugust, 2023 and 23rdAugust, 2023 respectively. Since
Sayaji Hotels Management Limited was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
there were no issue of shares as consideration for the amalgamation of Sayaji Hotels
Management Limited with the Company in terms of the Scheme.

The Resulting Company Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited & Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited
had allotted 30,46,605 (Thirty Lakhs Forty-Six Thousand Six Hundred Five) equity
shares and 8 (Eight) preference shares each to the shareholders of Sayaji Hotels Limited
as per the approved scheme as on record date i.e. SthSeptember, 2023 and the Resulting
Company had also obtained the listing approval vide BSE notice dated 11thJanuary,
2024 and 29™January, 2024 respectively.

12. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

During the previous Financial Year 2022-23 the net profit of the company exceeds
the limit prescribed under the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 due to which
the CSR is applicable to the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 and the
company fulfil its CSR obligation which is 2% of its average net profit for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility
(CSR) activities.

The amount to be spend by the Company does not exceed Fifty Lakhs, the
requirement under sub-section (1) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is not applicable to
the Company.

For & on behalf of
NEELESH GUPTA & CO.
(Company Secretaries)

(Peer Review Certificate No.: 1995/2022)

Place: Indore
Date: 27.05.2024

CS Neelesh Gupta

FCS No.: 6381

CP No.:6346

UDIN: F006381F000454169
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To,

The Members,

SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

CIN- L51100TN1982PLC124332

F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Pallavaram Chennai TN 600117 India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

- Company has held all requisite no. of Board Meetings/Audit Committee
Meetings/ Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting/Stakeholder
Relationship Committee Meeting and Independent Directors Meetings complied

with the provision of Companies Act, 2013.

- Management properly maintained minutes” book and duly authenticated by the
chairman.

- Management has kept and properly entered records in all statutory books in their
registered office.

- All Request for transfer of shares received by the company during the year have
been executed by registrars & share transfer agents.

- Notice of Board Meetings were duly sent to all the directors.
- Notice of annual general meeting has been duly sent to all the members.

- Company has not directly indirectly advanced any loans to any of theirs Director
or KMP or any other person in whom the director is interested.

63




- Company has not accepted any deposit (u/s 73)

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, Standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For & on behalf of
NEELESH GUPTA & CO.
(Company Secretaries)

(Peer Review Certificate No.: 1995/2022)

Place: Indore
Date: 27.05.2024

CS Neelesh Gupta

FCS No.: 6381

CP No.:6846

UDIN: F006381F000454169
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ANNEXURE ‘7 TO BOARD REPORT

AUDITOR CERTIFICATE FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members

Sayaji Hotels Limited

F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Pallavaram Chennai TN 600117 IN

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our appointment and Para E of
Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“LODR Regulations, 2015”). We hereby declare that:

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Sayaji Hotels
Limited, (‘the Company”), for the year ended 31% March, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the
LODR Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

Management’s Responsibility:

The compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
Management. This responsibility includes the designing, implementing and maintaining
operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure compliance with the conditions of
corporate governance as stipulated in aforesaid provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

It 1s our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations for the
year ended 31% March, 2024.

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on reports or
certificates for special purpose (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICATI). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the code of the ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standards on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, quality controls for firms that perform audits and reviews of historical
financial information and other assurance and related service engagements.

Opinion:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in aforesaid provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.
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We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Manish Joshi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 011631C
Place: Indore

(Nikhil Upadhyay)
Date: 28-05-2024 Partner

M. No.: 465758
UDIN: 24465758BKAMXU6960




ANNEXURE ‘8’ TO THE BOARD REPORT

MD & CFO CERTIFICATE
[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Board of Directors
Sayaji Hotels Limited

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of
Sayaji Hotels Limited (“the Company™) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

(A) We have reviewed the Financial Statements, Cash Flow Statements, Beoks of Accounts, detailed
trial balance and grouping thereof for the Financial Year 2023-24 and that to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

e these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(B) No transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violate
the Company’s code of conduct.

(C) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(D) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

o significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the Financial Year 2023-
24;

e significant changes in accounting policies during the period and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes of the financial statements; and

e Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

For Sayaji Hotels Limited For Sayaji Hotels Limited

Raoof Razak Dhanani Sandesh Khandelwal
Date: 28.05.2024 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Place: Indore DIN: 00174654
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ANNEXURE ‘9’ TO BOARD REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Comments

(A) Conservation of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy -

(ii) | The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy -

(iii) | The capital investment on energy conservation equipment -

(B) Technology Absorption

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption -

(ii) | The benefit derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product -
development or import substitution

(iii) | Incase of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned -
from the beginning of the financial year)

a. The details of technology imported -
b. The year of import -
c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed -
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and -
the reason thereof

e. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development -

() Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

(i) Foreign Exchange Earning -

(i) | Foreign Exchange Outgo -
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ANNEXURE ‘10’ TO BOARD REPORT

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10(i) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

Sayaji Hotels Limited

F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Pallavaram Chennai TN 600117 IN

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Sayaji Hotels Limited having CIN-L51100TN1982PL.(C124332 and having registered
office at F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram, Chennai TN — 600 117
IN (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub-clause
10(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers. I hereby certify that none of the Directors
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31%" March, 2024 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory
Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in
the Company
1. Raoof Razak Dhanani 00174654 14/11/2013
2. Suchitra Dhanani 00712187 06/02/2014
3. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari 06726836 23/01/2021
4. [sha Garg 06803278 27/08/2020
5. Mohammed Abdul Yusuf Razak 10550544 29/03/2(024
Dhanani
6. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi 10516536 29/03/2024

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Date: 24.05.2024 For Neelesh Gupta & Co.
Place: Indore Company Secretary
UDIN: F006381F000444049 CS Neelesh Gupta

Proprietor

C.P. No.: 6846
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

[Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Part B Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Management Discussion and Analysis Report will provide details of performance of the Company as well as its
approach to sustainability and risk management. This report describes Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws
and regulations. Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.

Industry Structure and Developments

The India economy has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one
of the top three economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and
strong partnerships.

The Indian economy is expected to grow at 6.8% during the year 2024-25, while the global growth is estimated
to be 3.1%. The Real GDP growth of India in Financial Year 2023-24 is 6.8% according to a report by the
International Monetary Fund.

The Indian hospitality sector is expected to witness high growth over the long term. Domestic travel, high
disposable income and the advent of better locations are expected to drive this growth. India is expected to have
1,00,000 start-ups by the year 2025 which will not only create employment for millions of people, but also
provide an impetus to business travel and related events. The travel market in India is projected to reach US$
125 billion by FY 2027. International tourist arrivals are expected to reach 30.5 million by 2028. The Indian
tourism and hospitality industry has emerged as one of the key drivers of growth among the services sector in
India. Tourism in India has significant potential considering the rich cultural and historical heritage, variety in
ecology, terrains and places of natural beauty spread across the country. Another factor is India’s emergence as
a destination to avail world class medical facilities at competitive cost. Tourism is also a potentially large
employment generator besides being a significant source of foreign exchange for the country. The deepening
penetration of internet usage and smart phones in India has led to increased booking of hotels through online
portals and applications in recent times. This is also expected to significantly enlarge the size of the Indian
online hotel industry in the coming years. Travel and tourism are two of the largest industries in India, with a
total contribution of about US$ 178 billion to the country’s GDP. The hotel industry in India is significantly
under-served. Various policies are being introduced to promote the tourism and hospitality sectors to meet the
demand of new tourists in the coming years. US $ 290.64 million was allocated to the Ministry of Tourism in
the Union Budget 2023-24, as the sector holds huge opportunities for jobs and entrepreneurship for youth.
According to World Travel and Tourism Council (WTTC), India is ranked 10th among 185 countries in terms
of travel & tourism’s fotal contribution to GDP in 2019. During 2023, contribution of travel & tourism to GDP
was 9.1% of the total economy. In India, the industry’s direct contribution to the GDP is expected to record an
annual growth rate of 7-9% between 2019 and 2030. The Indian airline travel market was estimated at US$ 20
billion and is projected to double in size by FY27 due to improving airport infrastructure and growing access to
passports. The Indian hotel market including domestic, inbound and outbound was estimated at US$ 32 billion
in FY20 and is expected to reach US$ 52 billion by FY27, driven by the surging demand from travelers and
sustained efforts of travel agents to boost the market. By 2028, international tourist arrivals are expected to
reach 30.5 billion and generate revenue over US$ 59 billion. However, domestic tourists are expected to drive
the growth, post pandemic. International hotel chains are increasing their presence in the country, and it will
account for around 47% share in the tourism and hospitality sector of India. As per the Ministry of Tourism,
Foreign Tourist Arrivals (FTAs) in February 2024 were 10,02,664 with a positive growth rate of 15.81% as
compared to 8,65,779 in February 2023. FTAs during the period January-February 2024 were 19,61,397 as
compared to 17,33,939 in January-February, 2023.




The Indian tourism and hospitality industry have emerged as one of the key drivers of growth among the services
sector in India. Tourism in India has significant potential considering the rich cultural and historical heritage,
variety in ecology, terrains and places of natural beauty spread across the country. Tourism is an important
source of foreign exchange in India similar to many other countries. The foreign exchange earnings from 2016
to 2019 grew at a CAGR of 7% but dipped in 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2023, the Indian tourism
sector accounted for 58.2 million jobs, which was 8% of the total employment in the country.

India is the most digitally advanced traveler nation in terms of digital tools being used for planning, booking,
and experiencing a journey. India’s rising middle class and increasing disposable income has supported the
growth of domestic and outbound tourism. By 2028, Indian tourism and hospitality is expected to earn US$
50.9 billion as visitor exports.

The travel market in India is projected to reach US$ 125 billion by FY27 from an estimated US$ 75 billion in
FY?20. The Indian airline travel market was estimated at ~US$ 20 billion and is projected to double in size by
FY27 due to improving airport infrastructure and growing access to passports.

India is a large market for travel and tourism. It offers a diverse portfolio of niche tourism products - cruises,
adventure, medical, wellness, sports, MICE, eco-tourism, film, rural and religious tourism. India has been
recognized as a destination for spiritual tourism for domestic and international tourists.

Following the implementation of digital payment services in India, eccommerce has experienced significant
growth, especially in the aftermath of the pandemic. According to the State of India’s Digital Economy (SIDE)
Report, 2024, India is the third-largest digitalized country in the world, behind the US and China. India has the
second largest global network of internet users. Recent estimates indicate that approximately 300 million
Indians use UPI, making India the world’s second-largest digital payment system after China. Moreover, it is
anticipated that the Union Budget FY 2023-24°s emphasis on capital expenditure will stimulate private
investment, increase job creation and overall consumer demand, and enhance India’s growth potential. Several
measures and strategies have been implemented to facilitate the granting of credit to micro, small, and medium
sized enterprises (MSMESs) and businesses. Accelerated digital transformation and increased demand for high-
speed data, increased adoption of 5G services, along with the incorporation of cutting-edge technologies such
as artificial intelligence, the Internet of Things, and machine learning, would also significantly contribute to the
digital empowerment of the nation. We have seen green shoots in private capital expenditure, mild increase in
rural consumption, acceleration in services export and improved PMI in recent months.

Safety and Hygiene

Hygiene, cleanliness and the associated need for more safety and security are probably some of the most
important factors and hotel industry trends of the year. The pandemic has ensured that cleanliness, which is
standard in every hotel, came back into focus. In these challenging times, hygiene is simply a part of a carefree
guest experience. Hotels shonld therefore do everything in their power to ensure that the guests enjoy a hygienic
stay.

Hotels should accompany their guests at every step, from booking to arrival, and tell them what measures they
have taken to ensure their safety. This is not primarily about cleaning more, as the hygiene standards in the hotel
industry have always been high. It is about showing, saying, explaining, and illustrating to the guests exactly
which steps are being carried out from beginning to the end.

Green and Sustainable Tourism

A focus on envirommental sustainability isn’t new, but the degree to which guests expect (and prefer) eco-
friendly products and services is. Today’s traveler wants to stay at hotels that have integrated green practices in
all aspects of their business. From physical changes to hotel buildings, like the addition of solar panels, to F&B
menus with more vegetarian and vegan choices, it’s evident that these environmentally friendly trends are here
to stay.

Sustainable tourism is now a new way of practicing tourism. Tourism plays an important role in the economy
of most countries. The well-being of the host community became the priority instead of the tourists.




Sustainability has been one of the hotel indusiries trends for a number of years. Due to the coronavirus,
environmental protection and sustainability have slipped into the background for a short time, as it initially
seemed difficult to combine it with the new hygiene conditions.
Nevertheless, “green” tourism is still important for your potential guests. Protection of the environment is
particularly important to Generation Z and the next generation.

Customization through Digitalization

A trend that will become more important than ever is customization. However, this does not necessarily mean
in personal conversation. It is much more a matter of creating a unique and individual experience for the guest.
In order for the stay to be extraordinary, however, it takes more than just basic standards such as free Wi-Fi or
a bottle of free water in the room. Guests want to be excited, both digitally and personally.

Act Globally and Think Locally

In a world so connected by business and economic ties, it only makes sense that globalization would have
implications in the hotel industry. As globalization drives incomes in countries around the world, more people
can afford to travel, which means that hotels face opportunities and challenges that come with accommodating
new travelers from different places. Along with this rising middle class, increased income inequality further
distances the highest earners from the rest. Luxury travelers continue to have an appetite for over-the-top
experiences. Like domestic travelers, International Guests are interested in local attractions and regional
delicacies. Bring your surroundings to life and encourage your guests to becorne familiar with their local people.

In this context, it is necessary to stress the need for collaboration. Through cooperation, be it with regional
farmers, local excursion destinations or with technology providers, you can create a network to meet the
changing guest needs. In addition, this is the only way to create truly local experiences and at the same time
generate synergy effects. Whole regions, guests and your wallet can benefit from more cooperation.

New concepts in our Industry

In addition to the classic hotel, a large number of new, alternative types of accommaodation have developed on
the market in recent years. Boarding houses, services apartments, co-living spaces for remote workers or single
travelers are just a few examples of these alternatives.

Soon these will no longer be alternatives, but a part of the standard as well as classic hotels. Becanse one thing
is clear, the longer hotels are empty, the more money is lost. And that is precisely why more and more
experienced hoteliers are looking for creative ways to fill their hotel again and vse the rooms for other purposes.

New Preferences

Smart Rooms -The internet of things is spreading not only into homes, but also into hotel rooms. From access
to streaming services to a room key on your smartphone, the essential hotel amenities in a guestroom are
becoming increasingly digital. Guests want conclerge services or temperature controls at the push of a button
(or tap of a finger), and voice-activated controls are expanding beyond simply asking Alexa to play your favorite
song. These trends might sound futuristic now, but in a few vears, guests will expect them. Many of these
innovations require only minimal changes to a modern guestroom, so a forward-thinking hotelier can implement
them quickly and efficiently.

Changing Workforce- While an increasingly digital world means that an employee’s tasks are changing, the
workforce itselt is changing too. These changes aren’t only in demographics, driven by the rise of Generation
Z and a more global worktorce, but also evident by a growing focus on safety, unionization, “gig” work, and
human resources technology. Hoteliers must be cognizant to these changes in the workforce in order to hire
effectively, reduce turnover, and keep employees safe and happy.

Desired travel destinations are also changing. Currently, international air travel and global luxury cruises do not
belong to the wish lists of guests. Tourists are now looking increasingly for more regional and national
experiences. In addition, the trend in the hospitality sector towards online bookings will continue. The
uncertainty that currently prevails among guests when it comes to traveling has a significant impact on the travel




destinations and travel arrangements. Last-minute trips and flexible cancellations conditions will also be
increasingly popular in 2024, Similar to previous survey findings, around 60% of respondents agreed they would
be willing to pay for flexibility with their accommodation booking. A preference for flexibility may be an
enduring outcome of the pandemic as consumers, some who were perhaps short-changed due to travel disruption
and cancellations during the pandemic, seek an extra layer of protection in a new age of travel.

Opportunities and Threats

Hoteliers are required to renew their I'T structures, expand digital communication channels and integrate new
technologies. Because all digital helpers from the digital guest directory to intelligent room controls and smart
hotel systems, hotel apps and check-in terminals have one thing in common. Tt will help survive the pandemic
and at the same time will open up new sale potential.

To implement these strategies, digital knowledge will be a necessity, as well as that of online marketing. Without
this, it is becoming increasingly difficult for hoteliers to build a profitable business model. However, it is
important to note that not every technical gimmick is suitable for every hotel and suits the clientele, hence we
are looking together with our employees to see which digital helpers offer real added value for guests and really
benefit the operation of our hotel units.

While considerable challenges lie ahead, the crisis also provides an unprecedented opportunity for
transformation. It offers the possibility of rethinking tourism so as to leverage its impact on destinations and
build more resilient communities and businesses through innovation, digitalization, sustainability and
partnerships. Innovation and sustainability will be two key pillars of a recovery focused on building tourism
back better and stronger. In a sector that employs 1 in 10 people globally, the goals of harnessing innovation
and digitalization, embracing local values, fostering accessibility and creating decent jobs for all, especially for
youth, women and the most vulnerable groups, should be at the forefront of that recovery.

Along with opportunities as mentioned, the present scenario has come with many threats.

The hospitality industry has undergone a seismic transformation since 2020. This period of change is set to
continue through 2023 and 2024, with shifts in demographics and technology, and the post-pandemic transition
to a new normal all playing decisive roles. The pandemic during the start of the yvear has disproportionately
affected labor-intensive services sectors in India. Commercial air travel, tourism, catering, leisure, personal care
and retail industries, manufacturing, trade and transportation—which typically employ large numbers of low-
skilled workers—faced the largest job losses. Many of the jobs in these sectors cannot be performed remotely,
making them vulnerable to lockdown and quarantine measures.

Employees in some (mostly higher-skilled) sectors have been able to work remotely from the relative safety of
their homes, while others in occupations requiring personal contact with customers have either lost their jobs or
have been compelled to expose themselves to potential infection to earn any income.

It’s not getting any easier. Finding qualified people is a struggle at all levels for hotels and restaurants. Tech
investment can make up for some of the gap, but also heightens the risk of cyber exposure. Meanwhile, business
travel is still flagging and indoor mask mandates in many regions can serve as a flash point.

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS

e Re-think business model o Economic environment: world recession, rising
* Innovation and digitalization unemployment and jobs at risk, disposable income,
e Sustainability and sustainable-oriented segments uncertainty weighing on consumer and business

(rural, nature, health) confidence
e Progress in adaptation plans in destinations & | e Climate Change

companies s [mplementation of Lockdowns and travel
o Utilizing Artificial Intelligence in customer support restrictions

o Changing travel patterns




Segment—wise or Product-wise Performance

Your Company is in Hospitality sector and provides food and beverages and accommodation services to the
customers. We have a single segment and the comparative performance of the Company has been detailed in
the financial Statements for Financial Year 2023-24. Further details of the adequacy of internal controls and
material developments in human resource are given in Directors Report which forms a part of this Annual
Report.

Global and Domestic Outlook

The hospitality market size has grown strongly in recent years. The global hospitality market size is expected
to grow from $4673 billion in 2023 to $4993.71 billion in 2024 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
6.8%. The growth in the historic period can be attributed to growth in travel and tourism, cultural and social
shifts, global events and pandemics, investment in infrastructure.

The hospitality market size is expected to see strong growth in the next few years. It will grow to $ 6189.59
billion in 2028 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.5%. The growth in the forecast period can be
attributed to sustainability initiatives, wellness tourism, flexible booking options, collaboration with local
communities, health and safety standards. Major trends in the forecast period include personalization and Al
contactless technologies, technological advancements, personalized guest experiences, digital marketing and
social media influence.

The hospitality market growth is aided by stable economic growth forecasted in many developed and developing
countries. According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global GDP growth reached 3.1% in 2024
and 3.2% in 20235 on account of greater-than-expected resilience in the United States and several large emerging
market and developing economies. With disinflation and steady growth, the likelihood of a hard landing has
receded, and risks to global growth are broadly balanced.

On the upside, faster disinflation could lead to further easing of financial conditions. Looser fiscal policy than
necessary and then assumed in the projections could imply temporarily higher growth, but at the risk of a costlier
adjustment later on. Stronger structural reform momentum could bolster productivity with positive cross-border
spillovers. On the downside, new commodity price spikes from geopolitical shocks—including continued
attacks in the Red Sea—and supply disruptions or more persistent underlying inflation could prolong tight
monetary conditions. Deepening property sector woes in China or, elsewhere, a disruptive turn to tax hikes and
spending cuts could also cause growth disappointments.

Risks to the global outlook are now broadly balanced. On the downside, new price spikes stemming from
geopolitical tensions, including those from the war in Ukraine and the conflict in Gaza and Israel, could, along
with persistent core inflation where labor markets are still tight, raise interest rate expectations and reduce asset
prices. A divergence in disinflation speeds among major economies could also cause currency movements that
put financial sectors under pressure. Monetary policy remains focused on aligning inflation with the target to
pave the path for sustained growth in the medium-term.

Recovering commodity prices, after a significant decline in the historic period is further expected to aid the
market growth. Developed economies are also expected to register stable growth during the forecast period.
Additionally, emerging markets are expected to continue to grow slightly faster than the developed markets in
the forecast period. Thus, stable economic growth is expected to drive the market during the forecast period.

Source - Hospitality Global Market Report 2024

World Economic Outlook

The baseline forecast is for the world economy to continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 and 2025, at the
same pace as in 2023. A slight acceleration for advanced economies—where growth is expected to rise from
1.6 percent in 2023 to 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025—will be offset by a modest slowdown in
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emerging market and developing economies from 4.3 percent in 2023 to 4.2 percent in both 2024 and 2025. The
forecast for global growth five years from now—at 3.1 percent—is at its lowest in decades. Global inflation is
forecast to decline steadily, from 6.8 percent in 2023 to 5.9 percent in 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025, with
advanced economies returning to their inflation targets sooner than emerging market and developing economies.
Core inflation is generally projected to decline more gradually.

The global economy has been surprisingly resilient, despite significant central bank interest rate hikes to restore
price stability.

In late 2023, headline inflation neared its prepandemic level in most economies for the first time since the start
of the global inflation surge. In the last quarter of 2023, headline inflation for advanced economies was 2.3
percent on a quarter-over-quarter annualized basis, down from a peak of 9.5 percent in the second quarter of
2022. For emerging market and developing economies, inflation was 9.9 percent in the last quarter of 2023,
down from a peak of 13.7 percent in the first quarter of 2022, but this average was driven by high inflation in a
few countries; for the median emerging market and developing economy, inflation declined to 3.9 percent. This
progress notwithstanding, inflation is not yet at target in most economies.

To counter rising inflation, major central banks have raised policy interest rates to levels estimated as restrictive.
As a result, mortgage costs have increased and credit availability is generally tight, resulting in difficulties for
firms refinancing their debt, rising corporate bankruptcies, and subdued business and residential investment in
several economies. The commercial real estate sector, including office markets, is under especially strong
pressure in some economies, with rising defaults and lower investment and valuations, reflecting the combined
effects of higher borrowing costs and the shift toward remote work since the pandemic

Source-World Economic Outlook Update 2024

Indian Economy

The year in review the exports of both goods and services have been exceptionally strong in FY 2023-24.
Imports also recovered strongly with recovery in domestic demand coupled with higher international
commodity prices to grow in FY 2023-24. From the production side, gross value added (GVA) grew 6.5% YoY,
which was in line with market expectations. Robust growth in manufacturing (11.6% YoY) and construction
activities (9.5% YoY), along with a steady positive performance in services (7% YoY) kept economic activity
strong. The contraction of 0.8% YoY in agriculture, however, weighed on the economy, with the sector
contracting for the first time since 2019, which was partly expected as temporal rains impacted kharif crop
production. Trade, Hotels, Transport, Communication and Broadcasting related services, constituting about a
third of overall services grew by 6.5%. The Indian real estate market, which has proven to be inflation-proof,
has shown a significant growth of 7% in FY 2023-24. India’s balance of payments remained in surplus
throughout the past two years which has enabled the Reserve Bank of India to maintain a strong position in
foreign currency reserves above US$ 600 billion.

In its Monetary Policy Report of April 2024, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has projected real GDP to grow
at 7% in FY 2024-25. Several high frequency indicators viz. railway freight, GST collections, electricity
demand, import of capital goods, etc. have displayed robust growth during 2023-24. There has been a significant
rise in consumer optimism on the back of improved sentiments of the general economic situation. According to
‘The Economist' — April 25, 2024 edition, India, the world’s fastest growing big country, 1s expanding at an
annual rate of 6-7%. New data show private-sector confidence at its highest since 2010. Already the fifth-
largest economy, it may rank third by 2027, after America and China. India’s clout is showing up in new ways.
American firms have 1.5m staff in India, more than in any other foreign country. Its stock market is the world’s
fourth-most-valuable, while the aviation market ranks third. India’s purchases of Russian oil move global prices.
Rising wealth means more geopolitical heft. After the Houthis disrupted the Suez Canal, India deployed ten
warships in the Middle East.

The country is developing at a time of stagnating goods trade and factory automation. It therefore needs to
pioneer a new model for growth. One pillar of this is familiar: a massive Programme of infrastructure that knits




together a vast single market. India has 149 airports, double the number a decade ago, and is adding 10,000km
of roads and 15gw of solar-energy capacity a year. Some of this infrastructure is intangible, including digital
payments, modern capital markets and banks, and a unified digital tax system. All this allows firms to exploit
national economies of scale.

A second, more novel pillar is services exports, which have reached 10% of GDP. Global trade in services is
still growing and Indian it firms have marketed “global capability centers”—hubs that sell multinationals R&D
and services such as law and accounting.

Further, RBI considered no change in Interest Rate.

(Source: Reserve Bank of [ndia Monetary Policy Report — April 2024)
Risk Governance

We understand that effectively managing risk is critical to the execution of our strategic objectives. We strike a
balance between managing potential risks and seizing emerging opportunities to achieve excellence, both
operationally and financially. To fulfil the Group's strategic aims, we are embedding a culture of proactive risk
management by supporting acceptable and monitored risk-taking.

The number of risks that our sector is dealing with is on the rise. Hospitality sector faces a variety of potential
risks that hotels need to contend with, particularly as they deal with an influx of both leisure and business
travelers. Rapidly changing customer demands and a boom in guest-facing connected technologies are among
the factors changing the risk landscape for hospitality companies. Following are risk identified and steps taken
to mitigate them:

1. Business slowdown, Inadequate growth:

Risk of business slowdown, inadequate growth and negative returns has been increased. Especially our industry
has been the most affected one which has turned the growth chart downwards. We have identified four steps—
e next-generation talent models,
e data-driven decision making,
e customer loyalty, and
e operational flexibility and responsiveness

to map out the kind of readiness that’s likely to help our business even in a coming downturn. What’s left to
determine is the path from theory to action which we are working on.

2. Cyber Security — Data Privacy:

Cybersecurity has been a big concern for a number of sectors, but the hospitality business is more focused on
preventing data and identify theft. A security breach has huge ramifications. At the very least, businesses are
required to contact other guests (past and present) and inform them that their data may have been compromised.
This alone can be costly and may also lead to brand damage. If stolen data is used by fraudsters, the businesses
may face liability claims for failure to protect data and maintain reasonable safeguards. As more hospitality and
travel companies use digital systems to automate tasks and manage their data, we are identifying the potential
risks and putting all efforts to bring their solution to the table.

3. Inadequate Compliances:

As the regulations proliferate and stakeholder expectations increase, organizations are exposed to a greater
degree of compliance risk than ever before. Specifically, compliance risk is the threat posed to a company's
financial, organizational, or reputational standing resulting from violations of laws, regulations, codes of
conduct, or organizational standards of practice. Since the array of potential compliance risks facing an
organization is typically very complex, we are adopting an effective framework which outlines and organizes
the elements of an effective risk mitigation strategy that can be applied to each compliance risk domain.




4. Guest behavior:

In hospitality industry, Guests represent the fuel, without guests and travelers, our business wouldn’t make any
money. However, guests can also potentially be the biggest threats — both directly and indirectly — to
profitability. Lawsuits from people who are injured or damage to guestrooms can represent a big risk to the
bottom line. We have internal controls in place to handle guest destruction and ensure travelers’ safety during
their stay. Small things, such as closer management of property and resources, helps in preventing incidents like
this from happening in the first place.

5. Staff:

Staff is another critical risk. During the pandemic, many employees were rooted in their jobs because it was so
difficult to find work elsewhere. As the situation improves, staff will have more options both in and outside the
industry. This means hotels are at greater risk of having their key personnel poached by their competitors. Hiring
and retraining are options, but they come with additional expenses.

We need to address any demographic, wage level and worker satisfaction issues to ensure that our staff remains
motivated and content. New retention plans and innovative strategies help in keeping employees engaged. At
the same time, we ensure that our employees aren’t actively working against us. Property theft is a big issue at
many hospitality companies, given the number of amenities they deal with on a daily basis. While a stolen towel
might not seem like much, theft adds up over the course of the year.

6. Branding:

As the hotel industry has consolidated, operators” brands have expanded into a vast number of territories, and
are often instantly recognizable to customers. Therefore, it is of vital importance to operators that the brand is
protected in every unit. Hence, we ensure that high and consistent standards are maintained throughout all
locations, which is challenging due to the geographical distance separating each establishment. We reduce this
risk by establishing strong brand guidelines which are communicated effectively to staff in all Units.

Brand protection may equally involve the need to enforce intellectual property rights. Any infringement by an
mnferior brand may affect customer’s perception of our brand. Hence, we ensure that all rights are appropriately
registered and regular intellectual property aundits are carried out, if standards are not maintained.

Government Initiatives

The Indian Government has realised the country’s potential in the tourism industry and has taken several steps
to make India a global tourism hub. Some of the major initiatives planned by the Government of India to boost

the tourism and hospitality sector of India are as follows:

e US $ 290.64 million was allocated to the Ministry of Tourism in the Union Budget 2023-24, as the
sector holds huge opportunities for jobs and entrepreneurship for youth.

e Under the Union Budget 2023-24, an outlay of US § 170.85 million has been allocated for the Swadesh
Darshan Scheme.

e 68 destinations/sites have been identified in 30 states/UTs for development under the National Mission
on Pilgrimage Rejuvenation and Spiritual Heritage Augmentation Drive (PRASHAD) Scheme and an
amount of US $ 30.25 million has been allocated for the holistic development of selected pilgrimage
destinations in the country.

e The Government of India has identified 78 Lighthouses in the country as centres of tourism along its
coastal belt which are in the first phase of Public Private Partnership (PPP).

¢ Financial assistance has been provided to the State Governments/UTs for organizing fairs/festivals &
tourism related events under Domestic Promotion & Publicity including Hospitality (DPPH) Scheme.

¢ Providing facility of e-Visa for 7 sub-categories i.e. e-Tourist Visa, e-Business Visa, e-Medical Visa,
e-Medical Attendant Visa, e-Conference Visa, e-Ayush Visa and e-Ayush Attendant Visa for the
nationals of 167 countries.




e Ministry of Tourism is running Pan-India Incredible India Tourist Facilitator (IITF) Certification
Program, a digital initiative that aims at creating an Online learning platform with the objective of
creating a pool of well trained and professional Tourist Facilitators/Guides across the country and
generating employment opportunities at local level.

¢ The National Integrated Database of Hospitality Industry (NIDHI) is a technology driven system,
which is to facilitate digitalization and promote ease of doing business for hospitality & tourism sector.
This initiative has been upgraded as NIDHI+ to have more inclusivity, that is, of not only
Accommodation Units, but also Travel Agents, Tour Operators, Tourist Transport Operators, Food &
Beverage Units, Online Travel Aggregators, Convention Centres and Tourist Facilitators.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has in place a system of internal controls, with documented procedures covering all functions in
the hotel operating units. System of Internal Controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the adequacy of safeguards for assets, the reliability of financial
controls, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company has a systematic process and well-
defined roles and responsibilities for people at different hierarchical levels.

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance

e The Company’s Total Revenue was Rs. 11,646.28 Lakhs in 2023-24 as compared to Rs. 14,173.69 Lakhs in
the previous year, a decrease of about 17.83%.

e FEarnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Taxes, Amortizations and Exceptional Items (EBIDTA) was Rs.
4,187.12 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 5,989.07 Lakhs, a decrease of about 30.09%.

e Profit before Tax was 2,306.05 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 4,202.09 Lakhs in the previous year, a decrease of
about 45.12%.

e The Net Profit after tax for the year was Rs. 1,821.41 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 2,939.42 Lakhs in the
previous year, a decrease of about 38.04%.

e Total comprehensive income was 1,789.84 Lakhs as against Rs. 2,940.47 Lakhs in the previous year, a
decrease of about 39.13%.

e The Cash and cash equivalent as at 31°" March, 2024 was Rs. 269.79 Lakhs as against Rs. 189.50 Lakhs in
the previous year, an increase of about 42.37%.

¢ The Company continuously trying to improve the cash flow by applying the various techniques as lease
instead of buying of the property, improving inventory management, improvement in debtors ageing and
encouragement to electronic payments etc.

¢ The Company and the Hotels have taken various initiatives to protect the Health and Safety of Guests and
Employees. All precautions based on World Health Organization Guidelines and directions of the Central
and State Governments have been implemented and are being strictly adhered to.

e The detailed Financial and Operational Performance present in notes to accounts for the financial year 2023-
24 which forms a part of this Annual Report.




Material developments in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front, including
number of people employed

The Company believes that its intrinsic strength is its people. Your Company strongly believes that human
capital is the greatest asset and key differentiator. The Company has always paid special attention to recruitment
and development of all categories of staff. The Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of
ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operations. The Company enjoys harmonious relationship with its
employees. The total number of people employed by the Company was 557.

Details of Changes in Key Financial Ratio & Return on Net Worth

The key financial ratios of the Company where there has been significant change (25% or more) and change in
Return on Net Worth are summarized below along with detailed explanation:

Particulars Unit | 2023-24 | 2022-23 % of | Detailed explanation, if
Change | there is any significant
change, ie., 25% or
more
Debtors Turnover Ratios Times 13.42 32.47 (58.67) | Substantial change
pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation and
Arrangement (Refer Note
57 of the FS)
Inventory Turnover Ratio | Times 19.56 28.00 (30.14) | Substantial change
pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation and
Arrangement (Refer Note
57 of the FS)
Interest Coverage Ratio Times 343 3.74 (8.29) -
Current Ratios Times 1.85 1.51 22.52 -
Debt Equity Ratios % (.83 13.47 (93.84) [ Due to the Redemption of
Preference Shares
Operating Profit Margin %o 37.46 31.21 20.03 -
Net Profit Margin % 16.30 20.73 (21.37) -
Return on Net Worth % 63.87 3941 62.07 [ Substantial change
pursuant to the Scheme of
Amalgamation and
Arrangement (Refer Note
57 of the FS)
rda




REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[In compliance, with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

The Director’s present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on 31 March, 2024.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

e  Your Company’s corporate governance philosophy revolved around fair and transparent governance and
disclosure practices in line with the principles of Good Corporate Governance. This philosophy is backed
by principles of concerns, commitment, Ethics, Excellence and learning in all its acts and relationships
with stakeholders, clients, associates and community at Large. The Company believes that good Corporate
Governance is a continuous process and strives to meet the shareholder’s expectations.

¢ To succeed, we believe, requires highest standards of corporate behavior towards everyone we work with,
the communities we touch and the environment on which we have an impact. This is our road to consistent,
competitive, profitable and responsible growth and creating long-term value for our shareholders, our
people and our business partners. The above principles have been the guiding force for whatever we do
and shall continue to be so in the years to come. The corporate governance philosophy of the Company
has been further strengthened with the adoption of the Cade of Conduct, Whistle Blower Policy and Code
for Prohibition of Insider Trading and such other policies.

e  Your Company not only adheres to the prescribed Corporate Governance practices as per the Listing
Regulations but is also committed to sound Corporate Governance principles and practices. It constantly
strives to adopt emerging best practices being followed by the country.

The Company is compliant with the updated provisions stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with
Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) are responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate
Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves the
short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance
practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. We keep our
governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices across the country.

The Board of Directors have the ultimate responsibility of ensuring effective management, long term business
strategy, general affairs, performance and monitoring the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate
governance practices. The Board plays a critical role in overseeing how the management serves the short and
long term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders.

+ Composition and Category of Directors:

The Board of Directors of your Company consists of an optimum combination of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors. The composition of the Board consists of a fine blend of professionals from diverse
backgrounds which enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities more efficiently and provide effective
leadership by taking the Company’s business to achieve greater heights.

As on 31% March, 2024 the Board has six directors consisting of Managing Director, Whole time Director, 2
Independent Directors and 2 Additional Directors (Additional - Independent Director and Additional - Non

80




Executive Director), i.e., more than half of the Board comprises of Non-Executive Directors. The composition
of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 149 of the Act and represents an optimal mix of
professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide
effective leadership to the business.

As mandated by Regulation 26(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2013, none of the Director on the Board is a member in more than ten (10) committees or acts as
chairperson of more than five (5) committees (considering only audit committee and stakeholder’s relationship
committee) across all public limited companies (listed or unlisted) in which he/she is a Director. All the
directors have informed about their directorship and committee membership/chairpersonship. All the
Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as specified in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation,
which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties
with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. Further, all Independent Directors
of the Company have declared that they have complied with the provisions of sub-rules (1) and (2) of Rule 6
of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 with respect to inclusion of their
names in the data bank of the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (“"IICA™). The terms and conditions of
appointment of Independent Directors can be accessed on the Company’s web link.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board as on 31% March, 2024 are given herein below:

Name of the Director Category
1. Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari Chairman and Non-Executive Independent Director
2. Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Managing Director
3. Mors. Suchitra Dhanani Whole-Time Director
4. Mrs. Isha Garg Non-Executive Independent Director
3. Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi Additional - Non-Executive Independent Director
6. Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani Additional - Non-Executive Director

During the year under review, Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237), Independent Director,
Chairman of Company Ceased to be Chairman and Independent Director of the Company with effect from
315 March, 2024 and Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari was appointed as Chairman of the Board as well as
of the Audit Committee, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the Independent Directors Committee.

Further, Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi was appointed as an Additional Director - Independent Category w.e.f.
29th March, 2024 and Mr. Mohammed Yusuf Abdul Razak Dhanani was appointed as an Additional Director
— Non-Executive Category w.e.f. 29th March, 2024 during the year under review.

Furthermore, the first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director of
the Company had expired on 13" February, 2024.

In the opinion of Board, based on the best of information and according to the declaration of non-
disqualification received from independent director, All the Independent Directors as on 31°" March, 2024
fulfills the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and are independent of the management.

*

< Board Meeting:

During the year under review, the Board of the Company met 9 (Nine) times. Meetings were usually held at
Corporate Office of the Company at Amber Convention Center, Bypass Road, Near Best Price, Hare Krishna
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Vihar, Nipania, Indore, 452016 and Sayaji Hotels at H-1 Scheme No. 54, Vijay Nagar, Indore 452016 (M.P.),
India. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The Board of Directors periodically reviews Letter of Assurance to strengthen the legal framework step by
step in order to ensure the compliance with all the applicable Laws pursuant to Regulation 17(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors has its own plan on orderly succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and
Senior Management pursuant to Regulation 17(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The following are the details of attendance of each director at the meetings of the board of Director and the
last Annual General Meeting along with the dates on which it was held:

Name of . 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 40"
Director AGM
3t 14% 29t 48 10 gh 29t held on
August  August  August October November February March 2™
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024  Novem
ber,
2023
Thottappul
ly P P P P P P P P P P
Narayanan
Unni
Raoof
Razak P P P A A P P P P p
Dhanani
Suchitra | 5| p A A A A P A P A
Dhanani
*Saquib
Salim
Agboatwal P P P P A P P A - P
a
Abhay
Chintaman P P P P p p P P P A
Chaudhari
Isha Garg | p | p 2 P P P P P 2 A
P Present in the meeting
A Absent in the meeting
- Not applicable

*The first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director of the
Company has expired on 13" F ebruary, 2024.

+ Number of Directorship or Committees Membership as on 315 March, 2024:

Name of Director  No. of other No. of No. of Category of Directorship and
directorship Membership Chairmanship name of the other Listed
excluding in other in other companies
Savaji Board Board
Hotels Ltd. Committee* Committee®*

**Thottappully 3 6 3 ¢ Non-Executive - Independent

Narayanan Unni Director, Chairperson

Barbeque-Nation  Hospitality
Limited
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Non-Executive - Independent
Director, Chairperson

Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited
Non-Executive - Independent
Director

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Raoof Razak
Dhanani

Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director
Barbeque-Nation  Hospitality
Limited

Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director

Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited
Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Suchitra Dhanani

Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director
Barbeque-Nation  Hospitality
Limited

Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director

Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited
Non-Executive - Non
Independent Director

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

#F*Saquib Salim
Agboatwala

Abhay Chintaman
Chaudhari

Non-Executive - Independent
Director

Barbeque-Nation = Hospitality
Limited

Non-Executive - Independent
Director

Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited
Non-Executive - Independent
Director, Chairperson

Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Limited

Isha Garg

Nimesh Kumar
Gandhi

S

Mohammed Yusuf
Abdul Razak

Dhanani

*Only Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been considered as per Listing

Regulations.

*Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237), Independent Director, Chairman of the Company
Ceased to be Chairman and Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31° March, 2024.

83




***The first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director of the
Company has expired on 13" February, 2024.

% Code of Conduct:

The Company has established systems and procedures to prohibit insider trading activity and has framed a
Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report trading by insiders and Code of Fair Practices and
Procedures for disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI) (“Code of Conduct™) as
per the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (PIT Regulations), which
prohibits the Directors of the Company and other designated persons to deal in the securities of the Company
on the basis of any UPSI, available to them by virtue of their position in the Company. The objective of this
Code of Conduct is to prevent misuse of any UPSI and prohibit any insider trading activity, in order to protect
the interest of the shareholders at large.

A report on compliance of Minimum Standards for Code of Conduct and details of violation is placed before
the Board on annual basis.

The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company at https://savajihotels.com/investors/.

*

< Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se:

Relationship Name of other Director in inter-se relationship
Brothers’ wife Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Brother Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani
Mors. Suchitra Dhanani Brother-in -Law Mr. Racof Razak Dhanani
Brother-in -Law Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani
Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani Brother Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani
Brothers’ wife Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani

*

< Number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors at the end of the year:

Name of the Director Number of Shares held
Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni
Mr. Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari

Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi
Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani

S
1
2.
3. Mrs. Isha Garg
4
5

o o o o|@

++ Familiarization Programmes Imparted to Independent Directors:

The details of familiarization program along with the link
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Familiarization _programme for Independent directorspdf.pdf
of the website where its details are disclosed is given in the Board Report forming part of this Annual Report.

+«» Chart setting out the Skills/ Expertise / Competence of the Board of Directors:

Given below is a list of core skills, expertise and competencies of the individual Directors:




Name of the

Directors
*Thottappully
Narayanan
Unni
(DIN:
00079237)

Date of

Appointment

31/01/2002

Skills/ Expertise and
competencies of Director

Mr. T. N. Unni aged 85 Years,
having wide experience and
knowledge in accounts, taxation,
Corporate Governance etc. is a
practicing Chartered Accountant by
profession and Ex-Chairman of the
Board of Company as well as of
Audit and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee of the Company.

Raoof Razak
Dhanani
(DIN:
00174654)

14/11/2013

Mr. Raocof Dhanani aged 60 years, is
Managing Director and also the
Promoter of our Company. He holds
a degree of Bachelor. He has over 9
years” experience of Hospitality
industry.

He is playing vital role in
formulating business strategies and
effective implementation of the
same. He is responsible for the
expansion and
overall management of the business
of our Company. His leadership
abilities have been instrumental in
leading the core team of our
Company.

Suchitra
Dhanani
(DIN:
00712187)

06/02/2014

Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani aged 59
years, is the Whole Time Director of
our Company. She holds bachelor’s
degree in Home science and
qualified as Master in Social Works.

She has a profound experience in
taking care of Guest Satisfaction
Index Department and training
department of the Company and also
involved in day to day matters of the
Company.

Abhay
Chintaman
Chaudhari
(DIN:
06726836)

23/01/2021

Mr, Abhay Chintaman Chaudhari,
aged 68 years is retired senior Bank
officer. He had worked as Chief
General Manager in State Bank of
India. He was also deputed to other
associates Companies of State Bank
on time to time basis. He is well
versed in finance, capital market,
risk management and is the
Chairman of the Board of Company
as well as of Audit and Stakeholders
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Relationship Committee of the
Company.

**Saquib
Salim
Agboatwala
(DIN:
06611659)

14/02/2019

Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala, aged
55 Years is a Chartered Accountant
by profession. He has been
President of the Jeddah Chapter of
the Institute of  Chartered
Accountants of India and member of
Saudi India Business Forum. He has
wide experience in accounts and
taxation.

He had also been Finance Manager
& Quality Management
Representative in Arabian
Computer  Projects  Company
Limited. Currently he is serving as a
Consultant and Business Advisors
to their clients in India as well in
overseas through his firm “Oasis
Consulting”.

Isha Garg
(DIN:
06803278)

27/08/2020

Mrs. Isha Garg is Practicing
Company Secretary by profession.
She is also Master in Business
Administration (MBA) and
bachelor in Science (B.Sc.).

She has knowledge and experience
in delivering services broadly
ranging in  Corporate  Laws
Consultancy, Secretarial ~ Audit
Services, Compliance Report,
NBFC Laws, Capital Markets &
Securities Laws, Corporate
Certifications, DGFT Matters, &
Representation  before  various
Statutory Authorities, etc.

Mr. Yusuf
Razak
Dhanani
(DIN:
10550544 )

29/03/2024

Mr. Yusuf Razak Dhanani aged 70
Years is graduate from Mumbai
University and is Industrialist with
interests across fertilizer, hospitality
& salon, casual dining, sweets &
snacks, and realty businesses that
are spread pan India and globally




8. | Mr. Nimesh 29/03/2024 | Mr. Nimesh Kumar Gandhi aged 57

Kumar Years is a Chartered Accountant by
Gandhi profession and practicing Since
(DIN: April 1995 in the city of Vadodara
10516536) and apart from Auditor (Statutory as

well as Internal) providing advice
and consultancy in the area of
Income Tax, GST, Company law,
Management, Project Financing and
other related fields.

SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE

Name of Director
Accounts Governance/

and Regulatory
Finance and Risk

Strategy/ Business Human
Leadership Resources

Industry
knowledge

*Mr. Thottappully
Narayanan Unni

Mr. Raoef Razak N N N N N
Dhanani

Mirs. Suchitra Dhanani v v v v N
Mr. Abhay Chintaman N v v V V
Chaudhari

##Mr, Saquib Salim N N v N N
Agboatwala

Mrs. Isha Garg v v v vV N
Mr. Yusuf Razak N| ~ A v J
Dhanani

Mr. Nimesh Kumar N, N N N N
Gandhi

*Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237), Independent Director, Chairman of the Company Ceased
to be Chairman and Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31° March, 2024.

**The first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director of the Company
has expired on 13" February, 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CHAIRMANSHIP/MEMBERSHIP OF DIRECTORS IN
COMMITTEES OF THE COMPANY AS ON 315" MARCH, 2024

The Board has 6 Committees: 1) Audit Committee, 2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 3)
Stakeholders” Relationship Committee and 4) Borrowing & Investment Committee 4) Scheme
Implementation Committee and 6) Independent Directors Committee.
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Sr. No.

Name of
Directors/
KMP

Racof
Razak
Dhanani

Audit
Committ
ee

Nomination
and
Remuneratio
n Committee

Borrowing Stakeholder

And
Investmen
t
Committe

S

Relationshi

p

Committee

Scheme
Implement
ation
Committe
e

Chairman

Independ
ent
Directors
Commiitte
e

Suchitra
Dhanani

Member

Chairperson

Member

Member

*T.N. Unni

Abhay
Chintaman
Chaudhari

Chairman

Member

Chairman

Chairman

**Saquib
Salim
Agboatwala

Isha Garg

Member

Member

Member

Member

Yusuf
Razak
Dhanani

Nimesh
Kumar
Dhanani

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

9.

Sandesh
Khandelwal

Member

10.

Ankur
Bindal

Member

*Mr. Thottappully Narayanan Unni (DIN: 00079237), Independent Director, Chairman of the Company Ceased
to be Chairman and Independent Director of the Company with effect from 31* March, 2024.

**The first term of Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala (DIN: 06611659) as an Independent Director of the Company

has expired on 13" February, 2024.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND CHANGES, IF ANY

Pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), 2015, Senior Management shall mean officers/personnel of the Company who are members
of its core management team excluding Board of Directors and normally this shall comprise all members of
management one level below the chief executive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager
(including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) and shall specifically include
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer.

Therefore, the Senior Management of the Company comprise of:

Sr. No. | Name Designation
1. Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal | Chief Financial Officer
2. Mr. Ankur Bindal Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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CHANGES IN THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

e Mr. Rakshit Sharma Vice President — Operation, People and Revenue Strategy has resigned from
the post w.e.f. 16" March, 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

*

< Brief Description of Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 177 of the Act read with
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of the
accounting, auditing and reporting practices of the Company and its compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements. The Chairman of the Committee is financially literate and all other members of the Audit
Committee have accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company Secretary of the
Company acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Company, inter alia, performs the following functions:

a. Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

b. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment, terms of appointment and, if required, the
replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees.

c. Approving payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

d. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thercon before
submission to the Board for approval.

e. Any other matter as may be prescribed, from time to time, to be referred to the Audit Committee in terms
of the Companies Act 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and the applicable rules, regulations thereto.

.

% Composition, Meetings and attendance of the Audit Committee:

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Seven (7) times on 8™ April 2023, 29™ May 2023,
14% August 2023, 29 August 2023, 4" October, 2023, 10" November, 2023 and 9% February, 2024 with
necessary quorum being present at all the meetings:

Name of Member Category No. of meetings
attended
Mr. T.N. Unni Chairman Non- Executive Independent 7
Mors. Suchitra Dhanani Member Whole Time Director 2
Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala Member Non- Executive Independent 5
Mrs. Isha Garg Member Non- Executive Independent 7
Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Member Non- Executive Independent 7

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

¢ Brief Description of Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee satisfy the requirement of Section 178
of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 19 of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company, inter alia, performs the following functions:
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a. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommending to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

b. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board.

c. Devising a policy on diversity of the Board.

d. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommending to the Board their appointment
and removal.

e. Extension or continuance of the terms of appointment of the independent directors, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

f. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the board of directors their
appointment and removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance (including that of
independent directors).

g. Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the
Companies Act, 2013 or by the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations,
2015 or by any other applicable law or regulatory authority.

>

% Composition, Meetings and attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice, i.e., 29" May, 2023
& 29™ March, 2024 with necessary quorum being present at the meeting:

Name of Member Status Category No. of meetings

attended

Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala | Chairman | Non- Executive Independent |
Mr. T. N. Unni Member Non- Executive Independent 2
Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Member Non- Executive Independent 2
Mrs. Isha Garg Member Non- Executive Independent 2

< Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:

Pursuant to the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and Guidance Note
on Board evaluation issued by SEBI, a formal annual evaluation was carried out by the Board of its own
performance, its Committees and individual Directors including Independent Directors. During the year under
review, two meetings of Independent Directors were held on 9t February, 2024 and 29" March, 2024 without
presence of non-independent directors and members of the management, wherein the performance of Non-
independent directors, Chairman and the Board of Directors, as a whole were evaluated. The Independent
Directors also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company’s
management and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board of Directors to effectively and
reasonably perform their duties.

Performance of Independent Director is evaluated on the basis of ranking filled in the evaluation questionnaire
by the non-executive director which is prepared by inserting parameters mentioned below:

Knowledge and competency of Independent Directors;

Extent of fulfillment of functions assigned;

Ability to function as a team;

Availability for various committee and board meeting;

Various skills viz. leadership, commitment, contribution, integrity, initiative taken by them;
Formulation and effective execution of business strategy;

Financial planning and performance during the year;

Ny e =
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8.
9.

Relationship of Independent Directors with the Board and third parties;
Knowledge about the company and its succession plan, management and operations;

10. Perscnal qualities of Independent Directors which uplifts the growth of the Company.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been constituted in terms of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for redressal of
investor complaints, shareholders related issues, transfer/transmission of securities etc.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall include the following:

d.

»
’.0

Monitoring the grievance and redressal of all security holders™ grievances such as complaints related to
non-receipt of allotment/refund, review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares, including
non-receipt of share certificates, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-
receipt of annual reports, etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints.

. Allotting of equity shares, giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures,

dematerialization of shares and re-materialization of shares, splitting and issuing of duplicate/consolidated
share certificates, complying with all the requirements related to shares, debentures and other securities
from time to time.

Reviewing statutory compliances pertaining to share/ security capital, processes, shareholders and
depositories.

. Oversee the performance of the registrars and transfer agents of our Company and to recommend measures

for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

Review of the adherence to the service standards adopted by the company in respect of various services
being rendered by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Review of the various measured and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by
the shareholders of the Company.

. Carry cut any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any statutory

notification/ amendment or modification as may be applicable.

Composition, Meetings and attendance of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee was constituted with the following members in compliance with
the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year under review, one (1) meeting of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been held on 29
August, 2023 with necessary quorum being present at the meeting.

Name of Member Category No. of meetings
attended
Mr. T. N. Unni Chairperson Non-Executive Independent |
Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Member Whole-Time Director 0
Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala | Member Non-Executive Independent 0
Mrs. Isha Garg Member Non-Executive Independent 1
Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Member Non-Executive Independent 1
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++ Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:

Mr. Ankur Bindal is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company appointed pursuant to
the provisicns of Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

+ Shareholders’ Complaints:

The details of the shareholders’ complaints received and resolved during the financial year 2023-24 are as
follows:

Sr. No. Particular Number of Complaints
a. Number of sharcholders™ complaints received 0
b. Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of 0
shareholders
C. Number of pending complaints 0

BORROWING AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Committee authorizes making of investments/ICDs and the borrowings from lenders including Banks and
other persons within the limits prescribed by the Board/Companies Act, 2013.

e To take decisicn on borrowing, providing guarantee/security and tc make investment subject to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and limit approved by the shareholders of the Company.

¢ To assists and makes recommendations to the Board on:
a. Investment strategy and investment risk management;

Investment performance and outlook;

Compliance with the investment component;

External group borrowings;

Undertaking special projects delegated by the Board.

L R

During the year under review, Borrowing and Investment Committee has met once, i.e., on 8 April, 2023
with necessary quorum being present at the meeting.

+» Composition, Meetings and attendance of the Borrowing and Investment Committee:

Name of Member Category No. of meetings
attended
Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Chairperson | Executive & Whole-Time Director 0
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Member Executive & Managing Director 1
Mr. Saquib Salim Agboatwala Member Non- Executive Independent 1

SCHEME IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE

This Committee was specifically constituted to handle and manage the issues related to the Composite scheme
of Amalgamation and Arrangement between the Company, Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd., Sayaji Hotels
(Pune) Ltd., Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Ltd. (Formerly known as Sayaji Hotels (Vadodara) Ltd. and Ahilya Hotels
Ltd.

The terms of reference of the Scheme Implementation Committee shall include the following:
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a. To do all such needful as may be necessary for solving all difficulties that may arise for carrying out in the
Scheme; or (¢) may modify the scheme as may be necessary; or (f) may do all acts, deeds, matters and things
necessary for putting the Scheme into effect.

b. To comply with any conditions or limitations the Hon’ble NCLT or any other statutory authority(ies) may
deem fit to direct or impose.

+ Composition, Meetings and attendance of the Scheme Implementation Committee:

During the year under review, three (3) meetings of Scheme Implementation Committee has been held on 29™
May, 2023, 3 August, 2023 and 29" August, 2023 with necessary quorum being present at the meeting:

Name of Member Status Category No. of meetings
attended
Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani Member | Executive & Managing Director 2
Mr. T. N. Unni Member | Non- Executive Independent 3
Mrs. Suchitra Dhanani Member | Executive & Whole-Time Director 1
Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal Member | Chief Financial Officer 3
Mr. Ankur Bindal Member | Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 3

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors including all pecuniary relationship or
transactions of Non- Executive Directors:

The Independent Directors are not paid any remuneration other than sitting fees for attending the meetings of
the Board and Committee meetings as approved by the Board.

There has been no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-Executive Director vis-a-vis the Company
during the year except sitting fees paid to them as detailed below:

(In Rs.)
Name of Director Category Salary including Sitting Notice
Perquisites & PF fees Period
Mr. T. N. Unni Indepepdent Non- ) 3.45 _ 3.45
Executive
Mr. Saquib Salim Independent Non- i 1.95 _ 1.95
| Agboatwala Executive ) :
Mr. Abhay Chaudhari Indepepdent Non- i 285 . 285
Executive
Mrs. Isha Garg Indepepdent Non- ) 285 . 2.85
Executive

There are no severance fees payable to any of the Directors. The Non-Executive Independent Directors were
paid sitting fees of Rs. 15,000/- for attending each Board Meeting and Rs. 10,000/- for each Committee
Meeting attended by them. However, the Board of Directors at their meeting no. 09/2023-24 held on 29"
March, 2024 has revised the sitting fees as follows:

e Board Meetings Rs. 25,000/-
e Committee Meetings Rs. 20,000/-
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GENERAL BODY MEETING

I. Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings held along with the details of special
resolutions passed thereat, are as follows:

Time

No. of
Special

Items
transacted

Special Resolution passed

2022- [ 02.11.2023 | 03:30 Through Video | l. Redemption of 10% fully
23 PM.IST | Conferencing (VC) or paid-up Cumulative
Other Audio Visual Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 100/- each pursuant to
Means (OAVM) a Section 55 of the Companies
deemed venue situated Act, 2013.
at F1 C2 Sivavel
Apartment, No. 2,
Alagappa Nagar,
Zamin Pallavaram,
Chennai — 600 117
Tamil Nadu
2021- | 27.09.2022 | 03:30 Through Video 2 1. Re-appointment of Mrs.
22 P.M.IST Conferencing VQO) or Suchitra Dhanani (DIN:
Other Audio Visual 007121 87) as  Whole-Time
Director of the Company for a
Means (OAVM) a further period of 3 years with
deemed venue situated effect from 6 February, 2023
at Fl C2 Sivavel to 5™ February, 2026.
Apartment, No. 2,
Alagappa Nagar, 2. Revision of the remuneration
Zamin Pallavaram, of Mr. Raoof Razak Dhanani
Chennai — 600 117 (DIN: 00174654), Managing
Tamil Nadu Director of the Company.
2020- | 28.09.2021 | 11:00 Through Video 2 1. Appointment of Mr. Abhay
21 AM.IST Conferencing (VC) or Chintaman Chaudhari (DI_N
Other Audio Visual 06726836) who was appointed
Means (OAVM) at as an Additional Director in the
_ category of  Independent
deemed venue situated Director by the Board with
at F1 C2 Sivavel effect from 23™ January, 2021,
Apartment, No. 2, upon the recommendation and
Alagappa Nagar, approval of the Nomination and
Zamin Pallayaram, Remuneration Committee.
Chennai - 600 117 _
Tamil Nadu 2. Payment of remuneration of
Rs. 12,50,000/- per month
(inclusive of perquisites and
allowances) to Mr. Raoof
Razak Dhanani (DIN
00174654), Managing Director
of the Company for the




remaining part of his tenure,
w.e.f. 13" February, 2021.

II.LExtra—ordinary General Meeting:

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was conducted during the year under review and till the date of this
report.

II1. Whether Any Special Resolution Passed Through Postal Ballot — Details of Voting Pattern:
During the year under review, no special resolution has been passed through Postal Ballot.
DETAILS OF MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES

During the year under review, there were no material subsidiary/ies of the Company.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

+ Quarterly Results:

The Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual Financial Results have been submitted to the Stock Exchange (BSE) to
enable them to put on their website and communicate to their members. The same are hosted on the Company’s
website at https://savajihotels.com/investors/.

*

< Newspapers wherein results normally published:

The Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual Financial Results are normally published by the Company in English and
Tamil language newspapers in Makkal Kural for Tamil Version and Financial express for English Version.

< Website of the Company:

The Company’s corporate website i.e. https:/sayajihotels.com/ provides comprehensive information on the
Company’s portfolio of businesses. The website has an entire section dedicated to Company’s profile, its core
values, corporate governance, business lines and industry sections. An exclusive section on ‘Investors’ enables
them to access information at their convenience. The entire Annual Report as well as quarterly, half yearly,
annual financial statements, releases and shareholding pattern are available in downloadable format as a
measure of added convenience to the investors.

Official news releases, if any, are displayed on the Company’s website https://savajihotels.com/. There is no
institutional investor in the company.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

% Financial Year:

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1% day of April and ends on 31* day of March of next year.
++ Financial Calendar 2024 (tentative):

First Quarter Results: Fourth/Fifth week of May, 2024

Second Quarter Results: First/Second week of August, 2024

Third Quarter Results: First/Second week of November, 2024

Fourth Quarter as well as Annual Results: First/Second week of February, 2025

95




+ Dividend Payment Date:

The Directors of the Company have not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year 2023-24.

+ Name and Address of Stock Exchange:

Sr. No. Name of Stock Exchange Address Stock Code
1. BSE LIMITED BSE Limited, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, 523710
Fort, Mumbai — 400 001

The ISIN of the Equity Shares of the Company is INE318C01014. The Company has paid the Annual Listing
Fee for the financial year under review and for the financial year 2024-25 to the stock exchange.

During the financial year under review, the equity shares of the Company have not been suspended from
trading on any of the stock exchanges on which they are listed.
+ Market Price Data:

The high and low Market Price of the Company’s shares traded on the BSE Limited, during each month in
the financial year 2023-24 are given below:

Month  BSE Sensex Equity Share Price No. of Turnover
Closed High i Close Shares
traded
during the
month
Apr-23 | 6111244 341.85 292.95 332.05 10855 3512303
May-23 | 62622.24 371.05 333.65 350 16796 5941883
Jun-23 | 64718.56 368.35 330.15 343 10978 3848169
Jul-23 | 66527.67 422.6 335.15 400.05 23353 9128098
Aug-23 | 6483141 456.65 335 407.1 66921 26872846
Sep-23 | 65828.41 447.95 279.95 286.9 69208 23078847
Oct-23 63874.93 307.95 274 289.35 31388 9090230
Nov-23 | 66988.44 309.95 252.65 261.3 39958 11241330
Dec-23 | 72240.26 292.9 250.55 273.7 40719 11076032
Jan-24 | 71752.11 330 247 315.95 60707 17814837
Feb-24 | 725003 360 274 323.9 43194 14028663
Mar-24 | 73651.35 336.95 261.45 287.05 15435 4723309
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< Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent:

All the work related to the shares held in the physical form as well as shares held in the electronic (demat)
form is being done at one single point and for this purpose SEBI registered Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent has been appointed, whose details are given below:

Link Intime India Private Limited

C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai — 400 083

e-mail: mumbai @linkintime.co.in

Phone (022) 49186000, Fax: (022) 49186060

++ Share Transfer System:

Transfer of the shares are done through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. For the transfer
of shares held in physical form, the authority has been delegated to the Company’s officials who generally
consider and approve the share transfer requests on a fortnightly basis.

The shares sent for physical transfer are generally registered and returned within a period of 15 days from
the date of receipt of request, subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects. As per the
requirement of Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained half-yearly certificates
from Practicing Company Secretary for due compliance of share transfer formalities and filed the same with
the Stock Exchange.

+ Distribution of Shareholding:

The shareholding distribution of equity shares as on 31% March, 2024 is given hereunder:

No. of Shares No. of Share % of Total
(Slab) Holders No. of shares % of share Capital
1-500 3772 95.7360 316016 1.8040
501-1000 31 2.0558 61852 0.3531
1001-2000 32 0.8122 47260 0.2698
2001-3000 14 (.3553 34108 0.1947
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3001-4000 5 0.1269 17405 0.0994
3

4001-5000 0.0761 14628 0.0835
5001-10000 5 0.1269 32419 0.1851
10001 or more 28 0.7107 16994289 97.0106
TOTAL 3940 100 % 17517977 100.0000

The Equity Shareholding Pattern as on 31 March, 2024:

Category No. of Shares held

A. Promoters and promoter group 13129588 74.95
B. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies & Mutual Funds

i. Banks 300 0.00
il. Financial Institutions 0 0.00
ii1. Insurance Companies 0.00 0.00
iv. Mutual Funds/UTI 4000 0.02
Central & State Governments 0.00 0.00
Foreign Institutional Investors 0.00 0.00
NRIs / Foreign Nationals 3079869 17.58
Directors 0.00 0.00
Public and Others 1304220 745
TOTAL 17517977 100.00

Note: for detailed shareholding parttern, kindly refer MGT-7 available on website of the Company at
www.savajihotels.com.

The Preference Shareholding Pattern as on 315 March, 2024:

Category No. of Shares held %
C. Promoters and promaoter group 0 0
D. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies & Mutual Funds

i. Banks - -
il. Financial Institutions - -
iii. Insurance Companies - -
iv. Mutual Funds/UTI - -
Central & State Governments - -
Foreign Institutional Investors - -
NRIs / Foreign Nationals - -
Directors - -
Public and Others - -
TOTAL 0 0

< Dematerialization of Shares:
As on 31% March, 2024 98.86% of the total equity shares were held in dematerialized form.

.

% Hotel Location:

The locations of all the hotels of Sayaji have been available at https://sayajihotels.com/.

« Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

Your Company has managed the foreign exchange risk with appropriate hedging activities in accordance
with policies of the Company. The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign

o8




currency exposures. Foreign exchange transactions are covered with strict limits placed on the amount of
uncovered exposure, if any, at any point in time.

+% Address for Correspondence:

All Member’s correspondence should be forwarded to M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar
and Transfer Agent of the Company or to the Investor Service Department at the Registered Office of the
Company at the addresses mentioned below:

Link Intime India Private Limited:
C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai — 400083

e-mail: mumbai @linkintime.co.in

Phone (022) 49186000,

Fax: (022) 49186060

Registered Office of the Company:

F1 C3 Sivavel Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar,

Zamin Pallavaram, Keelakattalai, Kanchipuram, Tambaram,
Chennai Tamil Nadu — 600 117

Phone: 044-29871174

E-mail: cs@savajigroup.com

SEBI vide its circular dated 26 March, 2018 issued new policy measures w.r.t. SEBI Complaints Redress
System (SCORES). As per the new process, SEBI has requested the Members to approach the Company
directly at the first instance for their grievance. All companies against whom complaints are pending on
SCORES, have to take necessary steps to resolve the complaint and submit action taken report within thirty
days of receipt of complaint and also keep the complainant duly informed of the action taken.

¢ Detail of credit rating obtained:

ICRA Limited (Credit Rating Agency) has revised the long-term rating for the captioned Line of Credit
(LOC) to [ICRA] BBB+ (pronounced ICRA triple B plus) from [I[CRA] BBB (pronounced ICRA triple B).
The outlook on the long-term rating is stable.

The intimation regarding above mentioned change is in credit rating has been submitted to stock exchanges
as well as uploaded on the website of the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

+ Related Party Transactions:

All the contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related
parties were in its ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis which is disclosed in Board Report
as well as in notes to Financial Statements. None of the transactions with any of related parties were in conflict
with the Company’s interest.

The Company’s major related party transactions are generally with its subsidiaries and associates. The related
party transactions are entered into based on considerations of various business exigencies, such as synergy in
operations, sectoral specialization and the Company’s long term strategy for sectoral investments,
optimization of market share, profitability, legal requirements, liquidity and capital resources.

There is no materially significant related party transaction entered during the financial year under review. The
Company has formulated a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party
Transactions and the same has been disclosed on the Company’s website at the following link:
https://savajihotels.com/images/pdf/Annexure 4 RPT Policv.pdf.
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All related party transactions including transactions of repetitive in nature are placed before the Audit
Committee for approval and further reviewed periodically.

< Statutory Compliances/Penalty:

Following is the details of non-compliance by the listed entity and penalties, strictures imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years:

Sr. No.
1. 2023-24

Financial Year

Details
No non-compliance or
penalty has been imposed
during the vyear under
review.

Action/Comments of Company
Not Required

2. 2022-23

All the details of the non-
compliance during the year
has been placed in
Secretarial Audit Report as
received from Practicing
Company Secretary of the
Company.

The penalty of Rs. 1,45,000/- along with GST
was imposed on account of the typographical
error made while preparing the XBRL
document for submission of disclosure of
Related Party Transactions as per Regulation
23(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(the reporting period was wrongly mentioned
as 01.04.2021 - 31.03.2022 in place of
01.04.2022 - 31.03.2023). The Company
rectified the error and made the disclosure on
28" December, 2022 and made the
application for waiver of such fine and the
same has been waived off by the Stock
Exchange.

3. 2021-22 No non-compliance or | Not Required

penalty has been imposed
during the year under
review.

s Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy:

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations, the Company
is required to establish a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns. The
Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting
illegal / unethical behavior. The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy and has established necessary
vigil mechanism for employees / directors, wherein they can report the instances of unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or any violation of the Code of Conduct and / or laws applicable to the Company and seek
redressal. The identity of the reporting employee is kept confidential. During the year under review, no
personnel has been denied access to Audit Committee to report their concerns. The policy is available on the
website of the Company, i.e., www.savajihotels.com under Investors Tab which can be accessed through link:
https://savajihotels.com/images/Whistle % 20Blower%20& %20Vigil%20Mechanism%20Policv.pdf.

.

% Disclosure on Website:

Following information has been disseminated on the website of the Company at www.savajihotels.com:

(a) Advertisement in Newspaper
(b) Annual Reports
(©) Annual Return
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(d) Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

(e) Details of Board of the Directors

(H) Credit Rating

(g) Certificate under Regulation 7(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015
(h) Certificate under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015
(i) Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management

(G) Code of conduct for the Independent Directors

(k) Code of conduct under SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2015

() Corporate Governance Report

(m) Composition of the Various committees of the Board of Directors

(n) Compliance Certificate under Regulation 74 (5) of SEBI (DP) Regulation, 2018
(0) Composite Scheme

(p) Details of the Business

(@ Disclosure of Reasons for Encumbrances by Promoters

() Disclosures of Related Party Transactions

(s) E-Voting

(t) Financial Results

(w) Financial Statement of other companies

(v) General Meeting Transcript

(w) Information pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015

(x) Internal Complaint Committee (SHWW Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
(y) Investors Contact

(z) Investor Service Request Announcements/forms

(aa) Investors' Details

(bb)Notices

(cc) Polices

(ddyPostal Ballot

(ee) Reconciliation of the share capital Audit

(ff) Share Holding Pattern

(ge) Whistle Blower/Vigil mechanism

(hh) Statement of Investor Complaints Report

(i) Structured Digital Database

() Terms and conditions for appointment of Independent Directors

+ Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements under Chapter 1V of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

The Company is regularly complying with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as stipulated therein. Information, certificates and returns as required under the provisions
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are sent to the stock exchanges
within the prescribed time. The Company has also complied with all the mandatory requirement of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements is as under:

1. Modified Opinion(s) in Audit Report:

There are no modified opinion(s} on the financial statements for the financial year 2023-24.

2. Reporting of Internal Auditor:

The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to the Audit Committee on functional matters.

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has submitted quarterly
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compliance report on Corporate Governance with the Stock Exchange (BSE), in accordance with the
requirements of Regulation 27(2)(a) of the Listing Regulations.

+ Governance of Subsidiary Companies and policy for determining “Material” Subsidiaries:

The minutes of the Board Meetings of the subsidiary companies along with the details of significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies are shared with the Board of Directors
on a quarterly basis. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are presented to the Audit
Committee. The Company does not have a material subsidiary as on the date of this Report, having a net worth
exceeding 10% of the consolidated net worth or income of 10% of the consclidated income of your Company.
The Board has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiaries pursuant to the provisions of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 which is available on the website of the
Company at https://sayajihotels.com/images/pdf/policies/Material Subsidiary Policy 2.pdf.

As per the provision of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 along
with the policy framed by the Company, the Company does not have any material subsidiary company.

< Disclosures of commodity price risks or foreign exchange risks and commodity hedging activities
specified under Schedule V (C) 10(g) to the SEBI Listing Regulations:

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to the same is not required to
be given. The Company faces exposure to fluctuations in currency for which it uses forward exchange
contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures. The details of foreign exchange exposures as on 31
March, 2024 are disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements.

«» Non acceptance of any recommendation of any Committee of the Board which was mandatorily
required:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has accepted all the recommendations
received from all of its Committees.

++ Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is
a part:

The total fees paid to the M/s. Manish Joshi & Associates, Statutory Auditor by the Company and its

subsidiaries on a consolidated basis for the Financial Year 2023-24 is Rs. 5.17 Lakhs, details of which is

placed at notes to the financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.

+ Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013:

During the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2024, the Company has not received any complaint in relation
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Particulars Number of Complaints
Number of Complaints filed during the Financial year under review 0

Number of Complaints disposed of during the financial year under 0

review

Number of Complaints pending as on the end of financial year 0
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L/
*"

Disclosures by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and Advances in the nature of loans
to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount during FY 2023-24:

Sr. Nature of Name of firms/Companies in which Loans/Advances | Amount in
No. Entity Directors are interested Lakhs
1 - - B -

Except as provided in the financial statements of the Company.

In the Books of Sayaji Housekeeping Services Ltd: Subsidiary of Sayaji Hotels Limited:

S. Nature of Name of firms/Companies in which Loans/Advances | Amount in
No. | Entity Directors are interested Lakhs
1 - - - -

Certificate on Corporate Governance:

The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the same is annexed with this report.

*,
0‘0

Declaration regarding Compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the
Company’s Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted code of conduct; followed by all Members of the
Board of Directors and all Senior Management Personnel of the Company in compliance with the
Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This
code is available on the Company’s website. This is to confirm that the Company has received a declaration
of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them from each Member of the Board of Directors
and Senior Management Personnel.

*,
0‘0

Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account:

The Company during the year opened in name of the “M/s. Sayaji Hotels Limited” with Systematix
Shares and Stocks (India) Limited for the purpose of parking of the fractional shares issued pursuant
to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement. The shares in the said account had been
sold by company and proceeds of such shares have been distributed to the shareholders proportionately
and there are no shares left in the said account. Since the purpose of the said account has been fulfilled,
the Company is in the process of closing such account.

This is to inform you that the SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8
dated 25th January, 2022 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/70 dated 25th May,
2022 had advised the Listed Entities while processing the following service request i.e. Issue of duplicate
securities certificate, Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account, Renewal / Exchange of securities
certificate, Endorsement, Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate, Consolidation of securities
certificates/folios, Transmission, Transposition to issue a ‘Letter of confirmation’ in licu of physical
securities certificate(s), to the securities holder/claimant within 30 days of its receipt of such request after
removing objections. if any. The ‘Letter of Confirmation® shall be valid for a period of 120 days from
the date of its issuance, within which the securities holder/claimant shall make a request to the Depository
Participant for dematerializing the said securities. The RTA / Issuer Companies shall issue a reminder
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after the end of 45 days and 90 days from the date of issuance of Letter of Confirmation, informing the
securities holder/claimant to submit the demat request as above, in case no such request has been received
by the RTA / Issuer Company. In case the securities holder/claimant fails to submit the demat request
within the aforesaid period, RTA/ Issuer Companies shall credit the securities to the Suspense Escrow
Demat Account of the Company. Since the Company have security holders holding securities in Physical
Form also, there is a need to open such account in order to comply with the guidelines of Securities and
Exchange Board of India. The Company opened the said account for the above mentioned purpose with
Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited on such terms and conditions as mutually decided and
which shall be beneficial to the Company and its Stakeholders.

Sr. Particulars No. of No. of

No. Shareholders Shares

1. Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares ) )
lying in Suspense/Unclaimed account as on April 01, 2023

2. Number of shareholders who approached issuer for transfer of
shares from Suspense/Unclaimed Account during the financial - -
year 2023- 24.

3. Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from i i
Suspense/Unclaimed Account during the financial year 2023-24.

4, *Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares 1 4
lying in Suspense/Unclaimed Account as on March 31, 2024

*

< Disclosure of certain types of Arrangements binding Listed Entities:

The Company does not enter into any arrangements whose information is disclosed under clause SA of
paragraph A of Part A of Schedule III of Listing Regulations.

%+ Other Information:

Particular Information

Board Meeting for consideration of Accounts for
the financial year ended on 31* March, 2024

280 May, 2024

Date of closing of the financial year

315 March, 2024

Date of Email of the Annual Reports

On or before 5 June, 2024

No. of Shares in the Demat & % of the total
shares in the Demat

1,73,18,380 Equity Shares (98.86 % of the total paid up
Equity Share Capital of the Company)

Total No. of shareholders as at 315 March, 2024

3870

Particulars of Shares kept under the suspense A/c
as per Regulation 39(4) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

Not applicable

Details of the outstanding ADR/GDR/ Warrants

Not applicable

Cut-off date for remote e-voting

20" June, 2024

Remote E-Voting period

22™ June, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. IST till 26" June, 2024
at 05:00 P.M. IST

Name of the Scrutinizers

Mr. Neelesh Gupta

Name of the Compliance Officer

Mr. Ankur Bindal

Last date for receipt of Proxy Forms

Not Applicable
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Date, Time & Venue of the 41 Annual General
Meeting

Date — 27" June, 2024

Time — 03:30 P.M. IST

Venue —To be held through VC/OAVM and deemed
venue to be the Registered Office : F1 C3, Sivavel
Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram,
Chennai (TN) — 600 117 IN

Dividend Payment Date

Not Applicable

Probable date of dispatch of warrants

Not Applicable
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UDIN: 24465758BKAMXS5732

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Sayaji Hotels Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

QOpinion

We have andited the standalone financial statements of Sayaji Hotels Limited(“the Company™), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31°March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes

to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information¢hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS’*) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statenents section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinien on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note. 57 of the Standalone Financial Statements with respect to Scheme of
Arrangement amongst Savaji Hotels Limited, Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited, Sayaji Hotels (Pune)
Limited, Ahilya Hotels Limited , Sayaji Hotels Management Limited and their respective shareholders
and creditors (the ‘Scheme’) for demerger of Indore, Pune and Baroda Hotels of the Company
(collectively referred to as “Demerged Undertakings™) and merger of Sayaji Hotels Management limited
into Sayaji Hotels Limited. The Scheme has been given effect to from the Appointed Date of April 1,
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2022, as approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (*“NCLT™), Chennai and consequently
the statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2023, have been restated.

Our opinion 1s not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Aundit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mest significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
ow audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

Principal Audit Procedures

The Company has demerged its Indore,

Pune and Baroda Hotels (the “Units™)
to Sayaji Hotels (Indore} Lid. and
Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Ltd. pursuant to a
Scheme of Arrangement (‘the
Scheme”). The Scheme was approved
by the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT) with an Appointed
date of April 1. 2022. We have
identified this transaction relating to
discontinued operations, as a key audit
matter  because of  significant
complexities in its accounting and
disclosure requirements.

We reviewed and analyzed the primary documents
concerning the transfer of the Demerged
Undertakings, including the scheme of arrangement

and the approval granted by the NCLT.

We examined whether the Company's accounting
practices align with the scheme approved by the
NCLT and the relevant accounting guidelines.

We evaluated the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the disclosures 1n the financial statements regarding
the discontinued operations and the transfer of Units,
as mandated by the accounting standards.

Based on the procedures carried out, the accounting
methods and disclosures related to the transfer of the
Demerged Undertakings are deemed to be sufficient
and appropriate.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.
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Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the cowrse of our audit er otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless managernent either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s finaneial reporting process.

Anuditor’s Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gnarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.
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As part of an andit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the andit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2313, we give in
the “Annexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)} Rules, 2014

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31'March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31°March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In owr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2414, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note No.45 to the financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
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are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:;

(b) The Management has represented. that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii} of Rule 11(e}, as provided under {a) and (b} above,
contain any material misstatement.

v.  Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company, has used accounting
software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which have a feature of recording audit trail {edit log} facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software systems,

Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with, in respect of accounting software’s for the period for which the audit trail
feature was operating.

For Manish Joshi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants,

FRN: 011631C
Place of Signature: Indore
Date :28™ May, 2024
(Nikhil Upadhyay)
Partner
M. No. 465758

UDIN: 24465758BKAMXS5732
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UDIN: 24465758BKAMXS5732
ANNEXURE -A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN CLAUSE 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°TMARCH, 2024.

() (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) We are informed that the Property, plant and equipment of the company have been physically
verified by the management according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items
over a period of three vears, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, physical verification was carried
out during the vear and no material discrepancies were noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our exarnination of
the conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds. comprising of all the
immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are in the name of the Company
as at the balance sheet date.

In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the
standalone financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made thereunder.

(i1) (a) The physical verification of the inventory is being conducted on a monthly basis by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed.

(b} In respect of waorking capital limits sanctioned by banks, the quarterly returns or statements filed

by the company with such banks are in agreement with books of account of the company, and no
material discrepancies were noticed.
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(iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or
security and granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, in respect of which:

a} Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
P Y P p
given to us, the company has provided loans or stood guarantee to any other entity as below:

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars Guarantees Loans

A. Subsidiaries, Associated & JVs
Aggregate amount during the year - - -
Subsidiaries
Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date — - -
Subsidiaries.

B. Other Parties
Aggregate amount during the year — Qthers - 1810.00
Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date — - 929.36

Others

(b} According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the investments made and the terms and conditions
of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s

interest.

(¢} According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company in respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of
repavment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayvments of
principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e} According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company there is no loan granted by the Company which has fallen due
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during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(fy The Company has net granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(1ii}(f) is not applicable.

(iv} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified
under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or
security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given
and investments made.

(v)The company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as
at March 31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

(viYAccording to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the goods sold and services
rendered by the Company, Accordingly, clause 3(vi}) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a)The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate anthorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, investor education protection fund, employees® state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty, excise duty, service tax & cess and other material
statutory dues as may be applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payvable in
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, value
added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31°'March, 2024, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, details of the dues of sale tax, income
tax, customs duty, wealth tax, excise duty and cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute are given below.
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Name of Statue | Nature of Period to which Forum where the Total
Dues the amount relates | dispute is pending Amount
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax AY. 2013-14 Supreme Court of 35241
1961 India
Goods and Goods and F.Y. 2018-19 Joint 21.36
Service Tax, Service Tax, Commissioner,
2017 2017 Appeal

TOTAL 373.77

(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company. the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-
tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix}(a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to
financial institutions, banks. Government or dues to debenture holders,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that proceeds from term loans have been applied for the purpose for which
loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, no funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term
purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e} of the Order is not applicable.
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(f} According to the information and explanations given to us and procedwres performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clanse 3(ix)(f} of the Order is
not applicable.

(x} (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(xi})

(xii)

(including debt instruments).Accordingly, clause 3(x}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govermment.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

(xii1) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with

related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv} (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,

the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opimon and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

116



(xv1) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 43-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(c} of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of andit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d} are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial

year.

(xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)

(xix)

of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
vear from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,
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(xx} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given teo us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5} of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b} of the Order are not applicable.

For Manish Joshi & Associates,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 011631C

Place of Signature: Indore

Date :28™ May, 2024

(Nikhil Upadhyay)

Partner

M. No. 465758
UDIN: 24465758BKAMXS5732
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UDIN: 24465758BKAMXS5732

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sayaji Hotels Limited (*‘the
Company”™) as of 31*March, 2024 in conjunction with our andit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10}) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)} pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the comnpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3} provide reasonable
asswrance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

QOpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31¥March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Manish Joshi & Assaciates,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 011631C

Place of Signature: Indore

Date :28" May, 2024

(Nikhil Upadhyay)
Partner

M. No. 465758
UDIN: 24465758 BKAMXS5732
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SAYAJIHOTELS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particolars Note No. | Asat31st March,2024 | Asat 31st March,2023
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 5.104.48 14,965.88
{b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3 £3.92 90.52
{c) Intangible Assets 4 3.18 2.10
{d) Investment In Subsidiary, Joint Venture & Associate 5 637.50 652.50
{e} Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 0.21 0.21
(ii) Loans - -
(iil) Other Financial Assets 7 1,105.95 1,739.10
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 452,76 1,626.85
{g) Other Non-Current Assets 9 274.89 1,203.70
Total Non-Current Assets 7,662.89 20,280.86
2 Current assets
{a) Imventories 10 256.97 885.59
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 11 1.010.72 TEE.42
{il) Trade Receivables 12 F02.57 262.74
{iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 269.79 189.50
{iv) Bank Balances Other Than (iii) above 14 19.56 643.19
{v) Loans 15 0929.36 1,057.21
{vi) Other Financial Assets 16 16.03 8.39
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 138.97 27.65
{d) Other Current Assets 18 629.02 1,059.30
Total Corrent Assets 3,972.99 5,621.99
TOTAL ASSETS 11,635.88 25,902.85
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capital 19 1,751.80 1,751.80
{b) Other Equity 20 2,869.12 12,227.45
Total Equity 4,620.92 13,979.25
2 LIABILITIES
2.1 Noo-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 21 - 1,797.96
(ia} Lease Liabilities 22 4,588.06 3,505.28
(iiy Other Financial Liabilities 23 7.69 102.80
{b) Pravisions 24 26892 47773
{¢) Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 9 - -
{d) Deferred Revenue 25 - 307.02
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,865.27 §.190.79
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2.2 Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{1) Borrowings 26 3827 85.14
{ia) Lease Liahilities 27 874.40 329.00
(i1} Trade Payables 28
A total outs[fmdmg dues of micro enterprises and 40.20 14.21
small enterprises; and
B. tolal. outstanding dues of L:rcditors other than micro 490.78 1.251.60
enterprises and small enterprises.
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 29 13.13 11.79
{b) Provisions 30 203.61 508.95
{c) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) - -
{d) Other Current Liabilities 31 489.30 142212
Total Current Liabilities 2,149.69 3,732.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,635.88 25,902.85
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-58

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our report attached

For Manish Joshi & Associates
Chartered Acconntants
Firm Regn. No. (11631C

Nikhil Upadhyay
Partner
M.No. 465758

Place: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary Raoof Razak Dhanani
Director Managing Director
DIN. 067263836 DIN No. 0174654
Sandesh Khandelwal Ankur Bindal

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024

[ Bs. in Lakhs Except EPS)

For the year ended F;‘;l;tt};:rit ;.Il;gd For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 3st March, 2024 (Restated, refer note st Mar.ch -2023
(Andited)
57
1 Income
Revenue From Operations 32 11,176,232 11,498.21 26,245.80
Other Income 33 469 06 267548 202763
Total Revemue 11,646.28 14,173.69 29,273.43
2 |Expenses:
Food and Beverages Consumed 34 1.675.69 1,991.91 420375
Emploves Benefits Expenses a5 2616.74 2,314.74 5.217.52
Finance Costs 36 737.09 77561 1,151.47
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 24 114338 1,011.37 2,017.44
Operating Expenses 37 217545 2.468.85 6,710.06
Other Expenses 38 90128 1,400.12 1,053.89
Total Expenses 9,347].23 9.971.60 21,854.13
3 JProfitf{Loss) before exceptional items and tax from
continuaing operalions (1-2} 230605 4,202.09 7.419.30
4 |Exceptional items - - -
Profit/(Loss) hefore tax from continuing operations
5 e 2,306.05 4,202.09 7,419.30
5 Tax Expense :
{1 Current Tax 5BR.O5 1,160.80 1,975.50
{2 Deferred Tax (78.84) 7034 (96.88)
{3) Earlier year taxes {2547 31.53 31.53
Total (6) 483.64 1,262.67 1,910.15
Profit (Loss) for the year after tax from continuing
7 |operations (5-6) 182141 293942 5,509.15
g Profil/(Loss) for the period from discontinued
operations before taxes - 3,274.99 -
9 Income tax expenses on discontinued operations
Cuarrent tax - 814.70 -
Deferred tax - {0.13) -
Profilf{Loss) for the period from discomtinued
10 operations after taxes {3-9) - 246042 -
11 [Profilf{Lass) for the periad (7+10) 1.821.41 5,300 84 5.509.15
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12 JOther Comprehensive Income
{a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{i] Acturial Gain{Loss) on Defined Benefit Plan {4219 061 {35200
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified fo profit or loss 10.62 044 880
(b) Items that will be reclassificd to profit or loss - - -
Orher Comprehensive Income for the year net of tax
from cantinving operations (L5 1.05 (26.34),
{i) Other Comprehensive [ncome {OCI Frotr
13 . . . N
discontinued operations before taxes - {3343 -
{ii) Income tax relating to above item - 842 -
Other Comprehensive Income for the period
[from discontinued operations - (25.03) -
14 |Total Camprehensive Income (11+12+13) 1,789.84 5,375.86 5,482.81
15 |Eamming per share (EPS) from continuing
Basic and diluted 1040 16.21 088
Eaming per share (EPS) from discontinued
16 operations 19
Basic and diluted - 14.05 -
17 Eamning per share (EPS) from comtinuing and
discontinued aperations
Basic and diluted 1040 3026 088
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-58

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our teport attached

For Manish Joshi & Associates

Chartered Accountanis

Firm Regn. No. 011631C

Nikhil Upadhyay

Pariner

M.No. 465758

Place: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary Raoof Razak Dhanani

Idrector Managing IMrector
DIN. 06726836 DIN 001746354
Sandesh Khandelwal Ankur Bindal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Sayaji Hotels Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st| For the year ended 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax from continuing operations 2,306.05 4,144.32
Profit before Tax from discontinued operations - 3,274.99
Profit before Tax from total operations 2.306.05 7.419.30
Non-cash/Non-Operating adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net
cash flows
Depreciation & Amortisation including adjustmments 1,143.37 2,017.44
Deferred Income Amortisation - (39.03)
Deferred Expense Amortisation - 4.69
Excess provision written back (6.99) {3.16)
Interest Expense 39.02 238.81
Finance cost on lease payable & Other Financial Liabilities 59315 720,03
Finance cost on Preference Share 104.82 192.63
Interest Received {156.00) (177.49)
Finance income on security deposit {106.99) (B5.14)
Dividend Income - (2425100
Net IND AS adjustment in ROU and lease liabilities {300.50) -
Lease Rent 34104 492,33
Balances Written off - (11.17)
Provision for doubtful debts made 28 88 45.95
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 3,985.85 8,388.00
Adjustments for::
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities {217.95) 285.48
Increase/(Decrease) in other non current asset (83.93) -
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 15.62 (1,512.82)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (17.48) 108.30
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables {177.81) 373.84
Decrease/(Increase) in loans(financial assets) 1,425.20 (192.37)
Decreasef(Increase) in other Bank Balances - (632.76)
Decreasef(Increase) in Inventories 86.18 101.76
Decreasef(Increase) in trade receivable (59.58) (337.45)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets {200.95) (1,362.88)
Decreasef(Increase) in other financial assets 682.61 65.68
Cash generated from operations 5,437.76 5,284.87
Taxes (Paid)/Refund {675.34) (2,013.21)
Net Cash from Qperating Activity (A) 4,762.42 3,271.66
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (51.25) (406.27)
Sale/Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 3.83 -
Dividend Income - 242510
Investment others (222.30) (788.42)
Maturity/{Investment) in Non Current Fixed Deposits 612.65 -
Interest Received 156.00 177.49
Net Cash Flow from [nvesting Activity(B) 498.93 1.407.90
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C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Redemption of Preference Shares (2.200.00) -
Preference Dividend Paid {891.67) -
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - (3,006.74)
Proceeds/{Repayment) of loans from others {232.11) (17.08)
Payment of Lease Liability (1.749.59) (1,501.89)
Interest Paid/other borrowing cost paid (39.02) {238.81)
Net cash used in Financing Activity (C) {5,112.39) (5,164.52)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents(A+B+C) 148.96 (484.96)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 189.50 674.46
Adjusiment pursuant to scheme of amrangement (6R8.67) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year 269.79 189.50

Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes
These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our report attached

1-58

Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS -7 'Statement of Cash Flows',
2. For the purpose of 5Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises the followings:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Balance with Banks 254.54 148.26
Cash on hand 15.25 41.24
269.79 189.50

For Manish Joshi & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011631C

Nikhil Upadhyay
Partner
M.No. 465758

Pace: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary

Dicector
DIN. 06726836

Sandesh Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

Raocof Razak Dhanani
Managing Director
DIN. 00174654

Anlair Bindal
Company Secretary
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

STATEME 24
A, Equity Share Capital {Amonnt in Rs. Lakhs)
Changes in equity share| Balance as at 31st
Balance as at 15t April, 2023 capital during the year March, 2024
1,751,830 - 1,751.80
B. Oher Equity (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Equity component of Reserve and surplus
Particulars compound financial Yecnrities Premium i i Capital Redemption| Total
instruments Reserve General Reserve | Retained Earnings Reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 940.01 5,944.60 64148 4,701.36 - 12,227.45
Profit{Loss) for the year 1,821.41 - 1,821.41
Gither Cormnprehensive Income for the year - - - {31.5T) - 3L5T
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - 1.78%.84 - 1,789.84
Dividend on preference shares - - - (B3 .57) - (891.67)
Redempiwn of preference shares 940.01) {F00.00) - 566.60 1,000.00 {73.41)
Balance pursuant to scherme of arrangernent - {2.58) - (G,17320 - ¢10,183.0%
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 - 5&34.72 64&48 (4,00‘?.032 hﬂﬂﬁ.[l] 569.12
A. Equity Share Capital {Amount in Rs, Lakhs)
i Changes in equity share| Balance as at 31st
Balance as at Tst April, 2022 capital during the year March, 2023
1.751.80 - 1.751L80
B. Other Equity (A t in Rs. Lakhs)
Equity comp t of Reserve and surplus |
Particulars oom‘pouncl Hnancal Securities Premium | General Reserve | Retained Earnings Capital Redemptlon] Total
instruments Reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 940.01 5.944.60 641.48 {(781.44) - 6,74.65
Profiti{Loss) for the year - - - 5,509 14 - 550014
Cther Comprehensive Incorne for the year - - - {26.34) - {26.34)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - 5482.80 - 5,4582.80
Cash dividends - - - - - -
Transfer from retained earnings - - - - - -
Transfer to retained eamings - - - - - -
Issue of share capital - - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 940.01 5,944.60 641.48 4,701.36 12,227 45
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-58
These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our report altached
For Manish Joshi & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011631C
Nikhil Upadhyay Abhay Chintaman Choudhary Raoof Razak Dhanani
Partner Director Managing Director
M.No. 465758 DN, 067265836 DIN. 00174654
Pace: Indore Sandesh Khandelwal Ankur Bindal
|Date: 28th May 2024 Chief Financial (Mficer s y Secretary
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

Note-1

A. Reporting entity

Savaji Hotels Limited (SHL™ or the “Company™), is a company domiciled in India and limited by
shares (CIN: LS1100TN1982PLC124332).The shares of the company are publicly traded on Bombay
Stock Exchange of India Limited. The address of the Company’s registered office is F1, C3 Sivavel
Apartment, 2 Alagappa Nagar, Zamin Pallavaram Chennai, Chennai, TN 600117 IN. The Company is
primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating & managing hotels.

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chennai, vide Order dated July 11, 2023
(“Order’™) has approved the below scheme of arrangement with effect from April 01,2022 (the
appointed date). The Scheme became effective from August 01, 2023 upon filing of the order with
Registrar of Companies —

a) Amalgamation of Ahilya Hotels Ltd (AHL) into Sayaji Hotels Ltd (SHL)

by Demerger of Baroda and Pune business (Demerged Undertaking) of SHL into its wholly owned
subsidiary, Sayaji Hotels (Pune} Ltd (SHPL) and Indore business (Demerged Undertaking) of
SHL into its wholly owned subsidiary

¢} Amalgamation of Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd (SHML) into SHL

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024, were approved by Board of Directors
and authorized for issue on 28™ May,2024.

B. Basis of Preparation

1. Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (*Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 as amended from time to time.

2. Basis of measurement/Use of Estimates

(i) The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis uvnder the historical cost
convention except certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives
instruments} that are measured at fair value. The methods used to measure fair values are
discussed in notes to financial statements.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Assets held for sale has been measured at fair value less cost to sell.

(ii) The preparation of financial statements requires judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets and labilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on
the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized. Major Estimates are
discussed in Part D.
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

C. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

1.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is current when it is:

+  Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

*  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+ It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

+  Thereis no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assetsfliabilities are classified as non-current.

Property Plant & Equipment

. Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment’s recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciationfamortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to bringing the asset, borrowing cost, inclusive of non-refundable taxes
& duties, to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
recognized separately.

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition
of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

22

23.

24.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrving amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part 1s derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant
and Equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation of each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized in profit
or loss on a Written Down Value Method over the estimated useful lives as prescribed in
Schedule IT of Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of the tollowing categories of assets, in
whose case the life of assets had been re-assessed as nnder based on technical evaluation,
taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions
of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturer’s
warranties and maintenance support.

Class of Assets Useful Life
Assets constructed on leased premises. Over the lease period

Leasehold lands are amortized over the lease term unless it is reasonably certain that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from fixed assets during the year is charged on pro-
rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to
the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a
PPE along-with its nunamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively over the
revised useful life determined by technical assessment.

In circumstance, where a property is abandoned, the cumulative capitalized costs relating to
the property are written off in the same period.

Non-current assets {or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

51

52

employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. Again or loss not previously recognised by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.
Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to
the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classitied as
held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in
the balance sheet.

Capital work-in-progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and borrowing costs.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and eguipment incurred till

they are ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the
cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account
received from the contractors.

Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are
recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable incidental expenses
necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when
it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

5.3.

54.

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible
assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amortization

Intangible assets having definite life are amortized on Written Down Value method in their
usetul lives. Useful life of computer software is estimated at five years. If life of any intangible
asset is indefinite, then it is not amortized and tested for Impairment at the reporting date.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, constructionfexploration/
development or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until
such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets
which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalization
of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of (a} interest expense calculated using the effective interest methad

as described in Ind AS 109 — ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in respect of finance
leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116 — “Leases’ (¢) exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs and (d) other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Income carned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Investment in Subsidiary, Associate & Joint Venture

These are Company’s Separate Financial Statements. Company has opted to show investments
in Subsidiary, Associates & Joint Venture at cost. Dividend from these is recognized as and
when right to receive is established.

Impairment loss is recognized as per Ind AS 36.
Inventories

Stock of Food and Beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, including duties
and taxes (other than those refundable). Cost is determined on Weighted Average Basis.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores & spares is
ascertained on review and provided for.
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313" MARCH, 2024

9.

10,

11,

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value.

Government Grants

Government grants that compensate the company for the cost of asset are recognized initially
as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the
Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant and are recognized in profit
or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset. Grants that compensate
the Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related costs
are incurred and are deducted from the related expenses.

Provisions and contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrcunding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of cutflow of economic benefits is
remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are
adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of judgment of
management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.
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12,

13.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange ditferences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the year in
which it arises.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Revenue Recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 *Revenue from Ceniracts with
Customers” which introduces the five-step model described as follows: -

Identify the contract with a customer.

Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract.

Determine the transaction Price.

Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations.

Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

Mok W=

Revenue from operations:

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of rooms, food and beverages, allied
services relating to hotel operations such as management fees for the management of the hotels.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products
or services.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in statement of Profit and loss.

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The company recognises contract assets on an amount equals to consideration related to goods
and services already transferred to customers when the right to receive such consideration is
conditioned upon something other than passage of time.

Unconditional right to receive consideration are recognised as trade receivable.

Trade receivable and contract assets are subject to impairment as per Ind AS 109 ‘Financial
Instruments’.

The company recognises amount already received from customer against which transfer for
goods and services are not made as contract liability.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calcnlating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options)
but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Dividend

Dividend Income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive is established which
generally occurs when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Other Income

Other Income is recognized in the statement of prefit and loss when increase in future
economic benefits related to an increase in an asset op a decrease of a liability has arisen that
can be measured reliably.

14, Employee Benefits
14.1Short Term Benefit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid wnder performance related pay if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

14.2 Post-Employment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable after the completion of employment are Post-Employment
Benefit (other than termination benefit). These are of two type:

14.2.1 Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are those plans in which an entity pays fixed contribution to separate
entities under the plan and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts to
employee in future under the Plan. Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined
Contribution Plans in which company pays a fixed contribution and will have no further obligation.

14.2.2 Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972.The Company’s net obligation
in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service
costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing
market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a liability to the company, the present value of liability is
recognized as provision for employee benefit. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in OCI
in the period in which they arise.

14.3 Long Term Employee Benefit
Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment constitute other long term employee benefits.

Leave Encashment is determined based on the available leave entitlement at the end of the year.
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15, Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case is the current and deferred tax are also recognized in OCI or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years. Current income taxes are recognized under “Income tax payable’ net
of payments on account, or under “Tax receivables’ where there is a debit balance. Current tax
assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet methed, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benetit will be realized.

MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent it is probable
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax and will be able to ntilize such credit during
the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an
asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and is included
in Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and if required,
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer
probable that Company will be able to absorb such credit during the specified period.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same
time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

16. Leases As Lessee

Ind AS 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reporting period beginning April 1,
2019. The Company has adopted the standard beginning April 1, 2019, wsing the modified
retrospective approach for transition. Accordingly, the company has not restated the comparative
information. Further, in respect of leases that were classified as operating leases applying Ind AS
17. There is no impact on Opening Retained Eamnings.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU™)
and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
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short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates
payments in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone
prices and applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They
are subsequently measured at cost less accurmnulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-
use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of
the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of
their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’
payments) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives
receivable. ‘In-substance fixed® payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but
that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable
leases which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the gnaranteed amount is
considered to be an “in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the
lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed” are charged against the lease liability.

Consequently, in the statement of profit and loss for the current period, the nature of expenses in
respect of operating leases has changed from lease "Rent" / "Other expenses” in previous period to
"Depreciation and amortisation expense” for the right of use assets and "Finance cost" for interest
accrued on lease liability. As a resnlt, the "Rent" / "Other expenses”, "Depreciation and
amortisation expense” and "Finance cost" of the current period is not comparable to the earlier
periods.

17. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS
36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
to disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
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losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of goodwill of that
CGU, if any and then the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses tecognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

18. Operating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments nsed to present
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s
Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of
Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chief Operating Decision Maker” or ‘CODM” within the
meaning of Ind AS 108. For management purpose company is organized into major operating
activity of hoteliering in India. The indicators nsed for internal reporting purposes may evolve in
connection with performance assessment measures put in place.

19. Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to a Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes
in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of
Directors respectively.

20. Material Prior Period Errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest
prior period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior
period presented, are restated.

21, Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

22. Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS-
7 ‘Statement of cash flows.

23, Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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231.  Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

(b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or preminm on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a} The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the QCI. However, the
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or
loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previcusly
recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instuments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized
cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces
or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or
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FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instruments, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer
cumulative gain or loss within the equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures are measured at cost.
Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contrel of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

¢  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

s Tradereceivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

¢ Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116.

¢ Loan Commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115, if
they do not contain a significant financing component

Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 115 that
contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore
separation of time value of money, and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
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significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12-manth ECL.

23.2 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable
cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance
cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any material
transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses forwards to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates, exchange rates and
commodity prices. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also subsequently measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of
Profit and Loss when the hedged item atfects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial assets or non-financial
liability.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

a) Cash flow hedge
The Company designates derivative contracts or non-derivative financial assets / liabilities as
hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a derivative is designated as a
cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative
is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve being part of other comprehensive income. Any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging relationship ne longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective
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b)

24,

remains in cash tlow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the forecasted
transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging
reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair Value Hedge

Changes in the fair valve of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated and
gualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging
relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of maturity.

The company discloses certain financial information both inclnding and excluding exceptional
items. The presentation of information excluding exceptional items allows a better
understanding of the underlying trading performance of the company and provides consistency
with the company’s internal management reporting. Exceptional items are identified by virtue
of either their size or nature so as to facilitate comparison with prior periods and to assess
underlying trends in the financial performance of the company. Exceptional items can include,
but are not restricted to, gains and losses on the disposal of assetsfinvestments, impairment
charges, exchange gain/loss on long term borrowings/ assets and changes in fair value of
derivative contracts.

D. Major Estimates made in preparing Financial Statements

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such
as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the level of
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Usetul life of the assets other than Plant and machinery are in accordance with Schedule IT of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of property, plant and
equipment, and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-
by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend
or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease
term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset
to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of sunitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure
that  the lease term  reflects the  cmrent  econemic — circumstances.
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Post-employment henefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The
Company considers that the assnmptions nsed to measure its obligations are appropriate and
documented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the
resulting calculations.

Provisions and centingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best judgment by
management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Shounld circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

Impairment Test of Non-Financial Assets

The recoverable amount of investment in subsidiary is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding in particular the future cash flows associated with the operations of the investee
company. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement
of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.
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2. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Land Building :;;:tpf‘m is ;“;:11: ::e & ::::il:;e“ ‘ Vehicles | Computers Total (a) :l?ﬂljﬁ;t‘:nb?*& Total (a) + (b)
Gross Block (at Cost)

As at 01.04.2022 2,637.28 11,329.43 2,403.55 1,498.10 261.45 42.05 255.99 18,427.85 10,867.85 29,295.70
Additions during the year - 63.25 133.96 57.17 26.12 1.00 3318 314.68 7433 389.01
Dhsposal/deductions during the vear - - - - - - - - - -
As at 01.04.2023 (Before scheme) 2,637.28 11,392.68 253751 1,555.27 287.57 43.05 289.17 18,742.53 10,942.18 29,684.71
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement {2,637.28) {10,541.95) {1,911.30 {921.59) {139.48) 23.86 {192.46) (16,320.20) {7.752.63) {24,072.83)
As at 01.04.2023 (Afiter Scheme) - 850.73 626.21 633.68 148.09 66.91 96,71 242233 3,189.55 5,611.33
Additions during the year - 26.80 3.64 3.75 0.73 12.25 47.17 2,778.31 2.8254%8
Disposal/deductions during the year - - - - - {17.00) - {17.00) {138.13) {155.13)
As at 31.03.2024 - 850.73 653.01 637.32 151.84 50.65 108.96 2,452.50 5,829.73 8,282.23
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at 01.04.2022 - 6471.21 1477.47 1,195.50 229.84 261 205.00 9,581.63 3,120.46 12.702.09
Charge for the year - 675.12 177.25 126.00 15.27 6.64 20.56 1,020.84 995.86 2.016.70
Disposal/deductions during the year - - - - - - - - -
As at 01.04.2023 (Before scheme) - 7.146.33 1,654.72 1,321.50 245.11 9,25 225.56 10,602.47 4,116.33 14,718.79
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement - (6,396.93) (1,233.74) (718.74) (103.16) 44.21 (145.61) (8,553.97) (3,978.20) (12,532.17)
As at 01.04.2023 (After scheme) - 749.40 420.98 602.76 141.95 53.46 79.95 2,048.50 138.13 2,186.62
Charge for the year - 17.02 38.36 12.00 2.74 3.22 11.26 R4.60 1,057.83 1,142.43
Dhsposal/deductions during the vear - - - - - {13.17) - (13.17 {138.13) (151.30)
As at 31.03.2024 - 766.42 459.34 614.76 144.69 43.51 91.21 2,119.93 1,057.83% 3,177.75
Net Carrying Cost |

As at 31.03.2023 2,637.28 4,246.35 882.79 233.77 42.46 33.80 63.61 8,140.06 6,825.85 14,965,838
As at 31.03.2024 [ - 84.31 193.67 22.56 7.15 7.14 17.75 3357 4,771.90 5,104.48

Right of Use assets mainly comprise hotel properties and office. Leases contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

* Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars 31st March, 2024
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets 1,057.83
Additional Lease Payments shown as Lease Rent * 341.04
Interest on Lease Liabilities 593.15
Total 1,992.02

‘*Additional Lease Payments are based on the performace i.e. Gross operating profit, revenues etc. of the Hotel property leased and for which no lease liability has been recognised as it is contingent & variable in namre.
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3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(Amoeunt in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat
. As al Balance transferred - s
Particulars DLD4.2023 pursuant o scheme Additien Capitalised 31.03.2024
Capital work in progress 90 52 .52 £392 - 8352
Total 90,52 9052 83.92 - 83.92
{Amwunt in Rs, Lakhs)
. &g al . . As at
Particulars DLI4.2022 Additions Capitalised 032023
Capital work in progress 133 .52 133 9052
Total 133 9052 133 90,52
3.1 The amount of expendilures recognised in CWIF during construction period
{Amount in Bs Lakhs)
- For the year Ended| For the year Ended
Particulars asen 31032024 | as on 312023
{a) Expenses Recognised in P/L
Employee Benefits Expenses - -
Total expenses - -
(b} Capital Inventory and sores £34092 90.52
Taal additions during the year (a) + () 83492 40.52

3.2 Capital-Work-in Progress |CWIP} Aging Schedule

{Amonnt in Rs Lakhs)

Amennt in CWIP for petiod
More than 3
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs FATE Taotal
Year 2023-24
Projects in progress
Project Name - Bhopal Hetel 5392 5392
Total 831.92 - - - 83.92
Projects temporarily pended
Project Name - - - - -
Total 2023-24 23.92 - - - 23.92
Yenr 2022-23
Projects In progresa
Project Name - SUITE ROOMS 90.52, - - - 90,52
Total 90.52 - - - 90.52
Projects temg ily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Total 2022-23 90.52 - - - 90.52
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4, Intangihle Assets

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March,2024 March,2023
Software and Licences

Gross Block (at Cost)
Opening balance 254.52 252.12
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement (121.94) -
Additions during the year 4.08 2.40
Disposal/deductions during the year - -
Closing balance 136.66 254.52
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance 252.43 251.70
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement (119.89) -
Charge for the year 054 0.73
Disposal/deductions during the year - -
Closing balance 133.48 252.43
Net Carrying Cost 318 2.10
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NON- CURRENT ASSETS
5 Investment in Subsidiary (Amiount in Rs. Lakhst
. Number of share Face Value pershare Asat st As at Vst
Particulars Currem Currant YeardPrevious March 2024 March. 2023
Yearf(Previous Year) Year} !
Subsidiary* (Uoyguisted at cost)
Sayaji Housekeeping Services Lid (Equity Shares) 63,635,000 10 636,50 636.50
{B365000) (L2
Sayaji Housskeeping Services Ltd (Preference Shares) 10,000 13 Lo 1.00
(LOO e
Sayeyi Hotels(Indore ) Limiced# 000 14 - 500
Saygji Hotels Management limited# 50000 10 - 500
Sayap Hotels{Pune} Linuited§ AN 1 - 540
Todal 6750 [x)
Apvrerate value of wwguoted investments 6375 5158

* Az per lod AS 27 (Separate Financial Statements)

#Pursuant to scheme of armangement investment in Saya Hotels (Indore) Lad, Sayaji Hatels Management Lad and Sayaji Hotels (Puney Lid stands cancelled (refer note no.57)

& Mun Current Fi jal Ausets ] k (Amount In Bs. Laldhs)
Number of shares Face Value per shae
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Particulars Currend Currant YearAPrevious
Yeac/(Previous Year) Year) Murch.2024 Murch,2023
A. Trade Investmeis { Unguoted At FYTFLAW
Genex Hatels Py, Lad, 1130 1000 &1l ol
{1105 {1300
Sub-Towal (A} 1411 .11
B. Other Investments (Unguoted at FYTPL
Bharat Equity Services Ltd. 1,008,000 10.00 114 N [3]
InteMistay Hotels Pyt Led 22.56.550 1000 235.69 -
Less: Provision for impairment (2256850 (10,001 (22569
(100000} 1000
Sub-Tatal (B) 14k [31]
Total (A+B) 1421 .21
Agpregate value of iy d i 021 [ Val
¥ As per Ind A5 27 {Separate Financial Statements)
#FVTPL - Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
T Noun-ourrent Financial Asgets: Others (Amount In Bs. Laldhs)
. A at st A at I1st
Paticulars March,2024 March, 2023
Fixed Deposits Agawet lien & Bank Guarantee® BE3 AUZ.63
Fixed Deposits Others - 0¥7
Unsecured, Cansidered Good
Security Depasits# LE7 12 1,256,100
Less: Receivables credit impaired - -
Less: Receivable with significant increase in credit riske - -
Todal 1,105.05 1,739.1%

Wlawrity after 12 months & pledped with bank against margin maney,

#45 on 31.03.2024 Inchude Rs 827.59 lalkchs {Previous year Rs L000 Jakhs ) deposit given to Ponile Hospitality Pyt Lid and Bs 88.10 lakhs {31 March, 20°23 Rs.T9.07 Lakhs) given to Més Vicon

Imperial Private Lad.

71 2023-2024 2022-2423
Pereel to the
Type of Borrower Amow of loon or advance inthe nature of lann Perceiage to the tola] Amount of lean or advance in the nature of Joan lmnlnll..:ﬁ'l omd
outstanding, Loan and Advances in putstanling. Advances in the
the naturs of Joans
nature of lixins
Promoter - - - -
Dinctors - - - -
Related parties 91569 83469, 1.079.07 E5.919
Oher 181.43 16,545 177.03 14,0845
Total 1027.12 108,09 % 1,256.10 1000 5
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8 Deferced Tax assets (net) {Amount in Rs. Lakhsy
Asat Jlst As at 31se
Particul
i March2024 Murch,2023
On oeccunt of Timlng Diffecence in
Expenses Disallowed under LT. Act., 1961 L12.&7 rars )
Depreciation on fixed assets L0652 103646
Right of Use Assets (Met of Lease Liabikies ) 23704 45800
Orhers - 6.88
Tital Deferred Tax Assets 456,23 1,730.87
Others 340 03
Preference Shares - 10119
Security Depogits 007 -
Tital Deferred Tax Liabilities 47 183.22
Met Deferred Tax! Liability WAssets* 452,76 1,626.85
Balance transfemed p 1o scheme of an {refer nate na. 57) 126355 -
Amuunt debited Credited} to Reserves & Surplus [85.45) (185.74)

¥ Deferred tax assets Tor the year have been arrived at by taking the tax mte of 25.17% { 31 March. 2323 25.17%) which s inclusive of surcharge & education cess,

Movement in Deferred Tox Asset/Linbility For the year ended 31st Maorch, 2024 (Amount In Bs. Laldhs)
. Opening Balance As on| Balance iransferved . . § Recopmized in Closing Balance As
Particulars 1042023 parsuant 1o scheme | ReCvEnized inprofiturlosy  ooyg, gy on SL43.2024
Defevred tax assets:
Expenses Disallowed under LT. Act., 1961 2873 1935 {6.93) 162 1287
Depreciation on fixed assets L3646 493474 1980 - 106,52
Right of Use Assets {MNet of Lease Lisbikiest 458,00 194.08 {26.88) - iy
Onhers 6.88 2.0 .59 - -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,738.47 1,265.86 (1R.6) 1ih.63 48623
Defevred tax Liahilities:
Others 03 2.3 3.68 - 340
Preferenwe shaves 111y - (101.19) -
Security Depasits - - £.07 - .07
Tital Deferred Tax Liabilities 103.22 2.31 744 - 347
Net Deferved TaxiLinbllity ¥ Assets 162658 1,263.58 TR.A4 1ih.63 48276
& (her nen-curreid assets {(Amcant in Bs. Lakle)
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March.2024 March,2023
Prepaid Lease Charges 20175 12722
Capital Advances* 3041 Y608
Rawpur Lease- Stamp Duty Payment Unamortised 3280 3748
Electricity Depasit & Other Deposits 9.93 1291
Todal 274,80 1.283.78

*Criven far business purpase.

148




SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITEL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

CURBRENT ASSETS
10 1 i {(Amcant in Bs. Lakle)
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Particulars March2024 Murch,2023
(Valved ot cost or MRV whichever Is less & certified by manawement}
Operating Supplies L9563 T2
Food & Brvermpes al.24 156.27
Total 256.97 RS54
MMzclosure As per Ind AS 2, Inventories
(i} Amonnt of mvenrtories vecognived as expanse during the year is as nnder: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Farticulars March2024 Murch,2023
Operating Supplies 62800 B12.18
Food & Beverages 675689 199191
Temal 2,304.69 186419
11 Investments
. Asat 3st As ot 31st
Particalacs March 2024 March, 2023
Measured s FVTFL
Investments in SB[ Mutual Fund - Quoted 141472 TEE 42
(26743.578 Units @ 37702823 NAV a3 on 31033034
Total 1ALT2 THE4L
12 Cwrrem Fi ial Assets: Trade Receivables tAmount in Rs. Lakhst
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
A. Trade Receivables Considered gord- Secured (A} - -
Total {A) N -
B. Trade Receivables Considered goad- U 1 25T D624
Lezs @ Provision for doubtful debis - -
Tutal (B) T2.57 174
C.Trade Reveivable which have significant increase in credit 1isk S4.05 54.71
Less: Provision Tor doubtiul debts (59.05) {FLTIH
Ttz (C) - -
T». Trade Receivables - credin impaired -
Tl (¥} - _
Todal (A+HBHC+D} .57 %6274
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12.1_ Trade Receivabled apeing schedule

o Ting for Eollowing periods from date of t ot as at I183.2024

Particolars Less Then 6 monithy & Month - 1 Year 1-2 years 2.3 years Mo than 3 years Total

{i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
wdered good a17.48 76T 7.3 (44 (.53 TELST

{11) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have siznificant increase

in credit sk -
[ Undisputed Trade Recervables -
credit impaired

(iv) Drisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good ) ) ) - ) N
() Drisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant ncrease 15.24 - 4221 1.04 .56 5005
v credit sk
{vi) Dsputed Trade Recervables -
credit impaired ) ) ) ) ) )

Total 63272 7671 49.60 1.5 109 6162
Less - Adlowance for doubtful trade [59.015)
teceivables. (15244 - {32.21 (1.0d4) ({56

Turtal #1748 76,71 730 44 33 TOLET

[ ding For following peciods from date of tr iont a at I183.2023
FParticulars
Less Than 6 months 6 Month - 1 Year 1-2 years 2.3 years ‘More than 3 years Tiral

{i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
idered good 7037 2306 35,74 1323 20.29 WLT4
{11) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have siznificant increase
incredit osk. 5337 15 .18 54.71
[ Undisputed Trade Recervables -
credit impaired .
(iv) Drisputed Trade Receivables -
considered good -
() Drisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant ncrease - - - - -

v credit sk -
{vi) Dsputed Trade Recervables - ; ; ; ; ;
credit impaired .
Turtal 87037 T6.43 3594 1442 .29 1,017.45
Less - Adlowance far doubtful trade - - (54.71)
receivables. (5337} {15} (1.1%)
Turtal 87037 pARL 3 3579 13.23 .29 "1.74
13 Cash and Cash Eyuivalents (Amiount in Rs. Lakhst
. Asat 3st As ot 31st
Particulacs March,2024 March, 2023
Cash on Hand 15.25 41.24
Balances with Bunk
In currem With Scheduled Banks 35454 148.26
Total 267, 7 159,56
14 Bank balances other than above tAmount in Rs. Lakhst
. Asat 3lst As at 31st
Particulars March,2024 Mirch, 2023
Fixed Deposis Agamet hen {with less than |2 months matucity) 19.56 526,98
Fixed Deposits Onbers - 11621
Total 19.56 ¢43.1%
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15 Current Financial Assets: Loans {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat Jlst As at 31se
Panticnl
oot Murch2024 Murch,2023
Unseoured, Cansidered good
Siaff Advances & Loan 5EE 1552
Other boans and advances™® 92348 L L6y
Less; Receivables credit impaired - -
Lems: Receivable with signifinctw increasein eredit sk - -
Total 92036 1957.21 |
"Loane and advances have been given for business purposes.
15.1 Disclosures whete Loans and Advances inthe nature of loans are granted 1o promowers, directors, KMPs and the relaved perties
{as defined under Companies Act 20 3} are s under = — —
2023-H024 2R
Tuwpe of Borower amaunt of laan ar advance inthe nature of kean Percentaze 1o 1he total Amount of loan or advance inthe natwre of loan | Percentage to the 1oal
di Loanand Advances in oulstanding. Loan and Advances in
Promoter - - - -
Directors - - - -
KM Ps - - - -
Related parties 160.59 17289 F19.77 449 16%
Cther G877 52.72% P74 5C1BAF
Total 92036 19999 %: 1.057.21 HHLH e
16 Current Financial Assets: Ocher {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Partiulars March2024 Murch,2023
Security Deposits [ic) B3
Less: Feveivables credit inpaived -
Less: Receivable with siznifiacot incressein credit risk - -
Tutal 16,48 3.3
17 Current Tax Assets (Net) (Amount [n Ks. Lalchs
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March.2024 March,2023
Advance Income Tax (Net of Current Tax Provision} 13847 2165
Tutal 13897 2745
18 Other current assets (Amount in Ks. Lakhs)
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March 2024 March,2023
Prepaid Expenses 62E0 12536
Cument porticn af Unamortised Stamp Duty Payment of Rafpur Lease 469 460
Prepaid kease charges lé. 14 -
Tekephone Deposit - 0.3z
Other curreit assets 175.23 Loy
Advance to suppliers for goods & services* 3776 9814
Balance with Diovi. authorilies 332.3_8 B2.00
Total §29.02 185938
*Advawes to suppliers for poods & services inchude advances against purchases & services which i recejvable in kind w next 12 Months & ave for business pupose.
EQUITY
1% Equity Share Capital {Amount in Rs. Lalchs)
Asat Jlst As at 31se
Panticnl
arenats March2024 Murch,2023
AUTHORISED
2,20,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10¥- zach 220500 300000
(Previous year 300,06, Equity Shaves of Rs LY- each}
13.05.000 Preference Shares of Rs. 14 each 100504 1,000.00
[Previous year 100 (KK} Preference Shares of Rs. 103- each)
Total 3, 31004} 4 il
1S5UED
L.75.17.%77 Equity Shares of Rs. 104 gach 1,751 80 L7518
Cancelled 24,55,000 Equity shares of Bs.10 each (245,500 -
Issued pursuen 10 scheme of arrangement 2454977 Equity shares of Rs. 10 eech 24550
[Frevious year |75, L8000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)
Total 1,751t 1.751.58
SUBSCRIBED & FAID-UP
1.75.07.977 Equity Shares of Bs. 10 each L7518 1,751.80
Cancelled 24.55,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each (245500 -
Issued p to scheme of ari 2454977 Equity shares of Bs. 10 each 245 50
Previous pear 1,75, LB OO %uilr Shares of Rs. 1/~ rach}
Total 1,751.80 1.751.88
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Termsirizhits atached to equity shares ;
1%.1 The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Bach Holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. The company declares and pays dividends in
Indian upees. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Drireciors s subject to the approval of the sharchalders inthe ensuing, Annual General becting. Drucing the year ended 315t March 2024,

e amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity shavelolders was Re. Ml (31 Macch 2023, Re. Nil)

19.2 Details of Share holders holding more than 5% of Shares are as under:-

A% at 31st March, 2024 A at 314 March, 2023
Name Category % of Shavelolding Mo of Shares % of Shaveholding | No of Shares
Late Sho Sapd B Dhanan® Promoter - - 0.55%| LL4751LL
Suchitra Dhanani Promoter 20.95% 3670579 8.70% 1524029
Ravaf Bazak Dhanan Promoter 5.72% 1527630 £.72% 1527630)
Anisha Racof Dhanani Promoter 14.26% 2501708 14.28% 2301708
Kayum Razak Dhanani Promoter B3 1546048 R Dap5)
Abilya Hotels Limnited## Promoter - - (X% 2455000

" Shave transferred in the pame of legal beirs )
#a4hilya Hotels Led { AHL j has been amalgamated into Sayaji Hatels Lid (SHLY consequential 2455000 shares held by AHL stands cancelled and 2454877 shares of SHL issued to shareholders of
AHL as perthe schme (refer note number 57)

As per records of 1he company, inchuding its regisier of shareholdersfmembers and other C ived from shareholders regarding beneficial interest. the above shareholding represents bath
Tegal and beneficial ownetships of shanes.

13.3 Details of shares held by Promaters as at 315t March, 2024 is a5 under-

Mame of Promoters(Promoter Group | Nowf shares Held [ % of Total Shares ;}2;3‘“"@’ duzing the
Late Sajid Razak Chanani* - - -6.55%
Anisha Racof Dhamani 2501708 14.28% -
Racof Razak Dhanan 1527630 $72% -
Suchitra Dhanani* 3670579 el 12.25%
Kayum Bazak [rhanani** L Sa0E 8% 343
Azhar Yusuf Dhanani BAA003 4. 82% -
Shamim Sheikh** 200 0.00% 3.43%)
Sadiya Racof Dhanani S055598 LB -
Saba Racof Dhanani 505082 288% g
Sumera Raoof Dhanani 505338 TEE% -
Zoya CHhanani* 727061 & 16% 4.16%|
Sanya Dthanani* 727061 & 16% 4.16%|
Eipasha Chanani SOHHE 0.2%% -
Rafiqa Magsood Merchant L7378 0.10% -
Mansoor M Memon 143 0.00% -
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani 2 0.00% -
Ahilya Hotels Limited# - - 14.01 %)
Tital 13129588 Td M %

*Drue to transmission from Sajid Razale Chanani and scheme of armangement

w* it of sharves Trom Shamim Sheikh

#Ahilya Hotels Led { AHL) has been amakeamated inta Sayajl Hatels Lid (SHL}Y consesquential 2455000 shares held by AHL stands cancelled and 2454977 shares of SHL issued 1o shareholders af
AHL as perthe schme irefer note number 573

1%.4 Reonciliation of the number of shares and amount putstanding at the beainning and at the end of the vear -
Pacticulars As ot 31st Morch 2024 As ot 312 Morch, 2023
Mumber of Shares Rs. in Lakhs MNumber of Shares Es. i Lakhs
Dutstanding at the beginning of the year 17,51, 50,000 L7518 L1751 80,000 1,751.80
Less : Cancellation of shares puisuant to scheme of avanege ment 124, 55,0000 (245500 - -
Add : Fresh issue during the vear pursuand to scheme of arrangement 24.54.977 245,50 - -
Outstanding M the end of the year 17,51, 79977 1,751,854 17,51, 5i,{HH} 1,751.38
1%.5 Preference Share Capital issued by the company are treated as Compound Financial Lstruments in terms of Ind AS 32- Financial F ion. Accordingly same is classified as other
equity and borrowings. Necessary disclosures are given innote no. 20 & 21
2i (her Equity (Amecunt In Bs. Lakhe)
" A at st A at I1st
Purtivars Nute No. March.2024 March, 2023
Equity Componest of Cumunubative Preference Shares i | - wanl
Secunties Premivm Reserve 202 5.234.72 5.044.60
General Reserve W03 6448 641.43
Retained Eamings 204 [EN LTy 470136
Lapital Redemption Reserve 205 1 CHCHE CH -
Total — 2,869.12 1222745 |
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{Amount in Rs. Lalds)

. Asat Jst As at I1st
Partiulars March2024 Murch,2023
20.1{Equity Component of Com pound Anancial instrumennt %
Opening at beginming 4001 wanl
Additien duning the year (Met of Taxes) -
Redemprion of preference shares during the yaar (940.01)) -
Closing at end - 4881
20.2|Securities Premimm Reserve *
Dpening at bezinning 594460 504460
Balance pursuant to shares issued 1o shareholder of AHL as perthe scheme (refer noe 37} 6.262.65
Balance pursuant to shares issued to shareholder of AHL as perthe scheme {refer note 57) (6,272.53) -
Rc:l:mEliUn of Ercfcn:rl:c shares durinE the year [ 7O 0N -
Closing at eod 5,272 5.993.68 |
20| Genwral Reserve
Ohpening ar beginning 6448 641.43
Addition dunng the year - -
Ltilised during the year - -
Closing at eod 4148 148 |
204 | Retained Earnings
Oipening ar beginnirg 4.701.36 {781.45)
Adjustments relating 10 preference shares** 156660 -
Addition duning the year LE2.41 550815
Transfer pursuant to Scheme of Amangement (LO L7321 -
Trawefer to CRE [ 1L KK CK)
Preference Dividend Paid (B91.67) -
Net aerurial Gain f (Lossh on defined benefit plan (3157 {26.34)
Closing at end (4,107 0R) 4,783
20.5 |Capital Resemption Reserve
Opening at beginming -
Additien duning the year JEGL -
Closing at end 1, MMk} -
Tutal Ocher Egulty 3,862.13 1220748

20,6 Natore ansd purpose of reserves
{i} Serurities Premimm Beserve ¥

"Fursuant to scheme of arvangement Ahilya Hotels Ltd (AHL) amalgamated with Sayaji Hotels Led (SHL} and conseqemial 24,5500 shares of SHL held by AHL stands cancelled and 24,354,977
shares of Rs. [ QG each a1 premium of Bs. 25510 issued to shareholders of AHL as per the scheme. {refer note number 57)
**[huring, the year 1000000 number of preference shares has been redeem of Rs 103 cach at premium of Rs. 120 per share

{ii) Retained Earnimes
Retained earmings represents the undistnibuted profivVamount of accumulated earnings of the company

(i1 Gemeral Reserve
As per The Companies Act 213
Termsirizhts atached o preference shares ¢

20.7 That during Finacial year 2013-15 company had issued 10,06LKKY, 10% Cumulative Red bz Pk Shares of Rs. 130/~ each at a premium of Rs.50- each Out of above, pending 83338

shares wele subscribed & pad up duving the year 2015-16(P.Y. 1000,000 Freference Shares) of Rs.1t%Y- each)

20,8 That above shares were to be redeemed within five vears from the date of issue of same.but the redemption peried of the 10% Cumulative Preference shares is extended by the Preference Shareholders
mutually for the further period of 5 years from the original date of the allatmem,

2% These shares are in the mature of compound financial instruments, And so they are bifurcated inta equity and liability ¢ ompenent in accordance with Ind 45 32, Bquity component is computed as below|

Partirulars (Amount in Ks. Lakhs)
Preferenwe Share Capital { Subscribed and paid upk 1L OO 0
Add: Securities Premium on issue SO0
Less: Liability I {Present value of O 1 Cash Quiflows) (558,58
Eguity Comy Q40101

20,10 That above Preference share holders are having preference over payment of dividend to equity share holders and accordingly arrears of preference dividends is cequired to be cleared before payment o
Equity Share halders. And on the date of Balawce Sheet, dividend on preference shares for more than 3 years ave w arcears. And accordingly vide Second Provise to Section 47¢ 2 of the Compandes
Act, 2(H 3, in case company js vable to pay dividend on preference shaves for two years or move then such class of preference shareholders shiall have a riply ¢ vote on all the resolutions plced before]

the company,
20,11  Dretaiks of Share holders holding mome than 5% of [(: Cumulative Preference Shares are as under:-
Agat 315t Macch, 2024 Ag at 315t March 2823
Name Category
% of Sharehol ding No of Shares % of Shoreholdinge No of Shares
Saba Dhanani Promcter - - 12.5% 125000
Azhar Dhanani Promoter - - 12.56 125000
Zuber Yusuf Dhanam Promoter - - 125% L2340
Sadiva Dhanani Promoter - - 12.5% 1 250300
Kayum Dhanani Promoter - - 12.5% 1 250300
Sara Dhanani Promoter - - 12.5% 123000
Sanya Drhanani Promoter - - 12.5% 125000
Suchitra Chanani Promoter - - 12.56 1 25000
During the year company has redeemed preference shares.
As per records of 1he company, inchuding its register of sharcholders/f bers and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both

Jegal and beneficial owoerships of shares.
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20,12 Details of shaves beld by Promoters as at 31st Mardy2U24 ks as under-

Mame of PromstersPromoter Group

Mowf shares Held

% uof Tutal Shares

% Change during the
year

Saba Dhanani - - 12.5%
Azhar Dhanani - - 12.5%
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani - - 12.56
Sadiya Dhanani - - 12.5%|
Kayum Dhanani - - 12.5%
Sara Dhanani - - 12.5%
Sanya Drhanani - - 12.5%
Suchitra Dlanani - - 12.5%
Tital - - -
During the year company has redesmed preference shares
21 Nomecurrent Liabdities: Boroowings {Amount in Rs. Lalchs)
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Ueecured Borrowing
Liability Canoy of & lative Pref: Shares - 1.797.96
Toeal - 1,7%7.%
During the year company has redeemed preference shares.
21.1 Registration of Changes o sabisBwetion with Registoar of Compandes (TtOCI: Listed bebiw
Mame of Bank/NBFCFV uthers Amount Reason Due uf ——
i ¥ inance Linm 022024
Aditya Birla Finance Linmted 3800 Serisfaction of cherge 1520
Kamataka Bank Limired 000 | sickaction of cliage D5-00-2023
22 Lease Liabilities (Amount in Ks. Lakhs)
. A at st A at I1st
Pantkulars Mareh,2024 March.2025
Lease Liability Payable 4.58€ 66 5.505.28
Tnal 4,588.66 5,505.28
23 Mun Current Financial Liabilities: Other tAmount in Rs. Lakhst
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Partiulars March,2024 March,2023
Deposits From Tenants 769 TLI3
Others - 31.67
Teaal 7.69 1eL5e
24 Provis| (Amecunt In Bs. Lakhe)
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 134.14 28569
Leave E L 134.78 predil]
Tutal 268.02 477.73
25 Deferred Revenwe {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Asat Jlst As at 31se
Fartieulars March 2024 March 2023
() Swhsidy received from ML, State Toadism Development Corp, Lid.*
Balance ot the begining of the year 290129 3L
Balance transferred pursuant 1o scheme {refer note no. 57 (28138 -
Add: Received During the Year - -
Less: Amartised Ducing the Year - 39,03}
- 3328
Less : Curment Parton - {40,894
Mo Current Bal at the eod of the year . 18138
b} Life Membership Fees
Balamnce at the beginning of the year 15.63
Balance transferred pursuant to scheme {refer note no. 57) [L5.63) ol
Add: Received During the Year - -
Less: Amortised Dudng the Year - {660}
- et nd
Less : Currerd Portion - {6.69)
Non Current Balance at the end of the year - 1543
Total Balane at the end of the year . 3472

¥ Duong year 2(M6- 17, company has received Capital Subsidy under MLP, Tousm Policy, 2010 {as amended in 2014} amaunting to Bs, 729,93 Lakhs against its "Amber Convention Centre”, Indare,
As per IND AS-20 " Accounting for Govemment Granes and disclosure of Government assistance”, the above subsidy & weated as deferred income and is recognised in profit and loss aceount ona
systammanic and reiicnal basis over the usaful 1ife of assets. Such allocarion has been made over the periods and in proponions in which depresiarion on "Amber Convencion Centre” is charged.
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26 Cwrrent Financial Liabilities: Borvowings {Amount in Rs Lakhe )
. Asat 3st As ot 31st
Particalacs March 2024 March, 2023
Unsecnred
Loans From related partwes 3o X~
Loans Fram athers 34.61 8148
Total AR.27 85.14
26.1 Loans from related partes & others mcludes kean from directors & associate companies.
2T Current Financial Liabilities:Lease Liabilities {Amount in Rs. Lalds)
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Partiulars Murch2024 Murch,2023
Lense Liability Payable £74.40 32900
Total 37440 32900
28 Corrent Financial Liobilites: T rade Payahles (Amecunt In Bs. Lakhe)
. Asat 31st As at 3=t
Particulars March.2024 March,2023
Trade Payables¥
18 Dugs af Micie enteplises oand small entenprisss 420 3421
|BICes of credilons ether thon micro srterprises and small entercrises 49078 1.251.60
Tutal 53108 1,285.81
*Trade payables are for goods purchased and services talen during the nommal course of business.
25.1 Additlonal Information - Agelng of Trode Payable
Crstanding: for fllywing peviods from doe date of payementy FY. 2324 {Amonnt in Ks. Lakhs)
Particulacs Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2ad yenrs Ilore than 3 years Tatal
(i) MSME 020 . - B % ]
(i) Others 458,89 B85 124 1909 48803
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Drisputed dues - Others - - 1l 2ed 1T8
Tutal 4% 8.85 1.3 21.73 53495
1] ding: Eor following periods fawm due dale of payements F.Y. 22.23 (Amounst in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-X years 2-3 years More than 3 yeacs Total
(i) MSME 3421 - - - HI
(i) Others 105033 12.44 1.58 2149 1,885.34
(iif) Disputed duss - MSME - - . - .
{iv) Drisputed dues - Others 3643 2271 196 B6.99 165.76
Tutal L19.%% 35.15 21,22 108.4% L285.81

OR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MA RCH, 2024
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28.2 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMELD Act, 2006 The principal amount and the interest due theron remaining unpaid w any supplieras at

the year end:
. Asat 3lst As at 31st
Particulas March,2024 March, 2023
Principal amount due to o and snaall enerprises 4020 M2
Interest dug oo above -
The ameoumt of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, alongwith the amounts of the payment made to the supplien }
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
The amwount of iwerest due and payable for the period of deby in makwg payment { which have been paid but beyond the appouved day during the year} -
but widout adding the wderest specified under de MSMED Act, 2006,
Tistal 421 .2
2% Corrent Financial Liabilities: Other {(Amcant in Bs. Lakle)
. Asat Jst As at I1st
Fadticulars March, 2024 Mardh, 2023
Creditors for capital Expenditure (ruz 678
Deposit 1200 -
Prepaid Lease lncome .21 S4M
Total 13.13 1174
30 Provisivns (Amount in Ks. Lakhs)
. A at st A at I1st
Particulars March, 2024 March,2023
Prawision for Employes Benefits
Prowvision for Cratuity 1698 90,03
Leavwe Encashment 17.07 B6.78
Bonus E5.66 189.67
Provision for Expences 380 22257
Todal 20,61 SRS
31 Oiher Current Liahilitics {Amount in Rs. Lakhsy
Asat Jlst As at 31se
Particulas March, 2024 March,2023
Advance received from customears 159.25 444723
Coment porticn af deferred revenue - 4758
Siatutory Dues 2244 63347
Book Overdrafis - 226,56
Orhers 117.61 .28
Todal 48934 142212

1.2 Stamtory dues includes GST, ¥AT, TDS & other statutary payables.
31.3 Oxher cqurrent labilities inchudes rend payable, interest payable and siaff dues.

31.1 Advances received from customers inchides advances against future baolkimgzs for funcoons ta be held in next 12 months,
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32 Revense From Operations

(Amount in Rs, Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st March,
2024

For the year ended X1st
March, 2023 (Restated, refer
note 57)

For the year ended 315t
Mareh, 2023 (Audited)

Sale of Products & Services (Gross)

Rooms 361655 3230122 13,593.12
Food and Beverages 493647 575052 1361210
Other Services* 2.623.30 2,50847 2,140.58

Total 11,176.32 1149821 26,345.80

33 Dther Income

*Kevenue from others services includes management fees and income from rental income and income from banguet service ete.

{Amuouni in Rz, Lakhs)

For the year ended X1st

Particulars For the year %‘;" st Macch, |y g roh, 2023 (Restated, cefer 1;:;:‘;:’ ;;;‘E;‘:f&i;‘
nute 57)

Interest Bammed 156.00 9671 177.44
Finance income on secority deposit 106.94 84.28 85.14
Other Non —Operating [ncome 194994 h8.03 19571
Dividend Income* . 2.425.10 242510
Excessf(Shart) Provision of Earlier Yea Written Back 6.99 2.36 316
Lease rent concession - {1.02)
Dieferred Revenue Incoime (Subsidy) - - 3503

Tolal 469.96 2,67548 2,927.63

*Includes dividend received from Sayaji Housckeeping Services Lid (100% subsidary of Sayaji Hotwels Lid)

M Food & Beverages C o (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the year ended X1st
. For the year ended 31st March, For the year ended 315t
Particul March, 2023 (Restated, refe
colars 2024 reh, 2023 ( TN March, 2023 (Audited)
nute 57)
Opening Stock 52,81 36.68 120.62
Add : Purch * 1.684.22 2,008 4,839.40
1,737.03 2,044.72 4,%0.02
Less : Closing Stock 51.34 52.81 156.27
Tolal 1,675.6% 1,991.91 4,803.75
*Includes vegetable & non-vegetable items, grocery items, dairy prodocts, tobaceo products, alcoholic & non-alcoholic beverages etc.
35 Employee Benelit Expenses (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st
- For the year ended 315t arch, For the year ended 31t
Particul March, 2023 (Restated, refi § .
culars 2024 reh, 2023 (Restated, refer | -y on, 2023 (Audited)
note 5T)
Salaries, Wages and Allowances 2386 48 206991 4. 68597
Cantribution to P F. and other Funds 12903 106.99 282,213
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 44,36 83.96 115.55
Workmen and Staff Uniform Expenses 56,67 53,88 133.71
Total 2.616.74 2,314.74 5,217.52
36 Finance Cost (Amount in Bs. Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st
- For the year ended 315t arch, For the year ended 31t
Particul March, 2023 (Restated, refi § .
culars 2024 reh, 2023 (Restated, refer | -y on, 2023 (Audited)
note 5T)
Interest on term Loan - 6013 153.16
Interest on Others 39.02 39.97 61.26
Finance cost on lease payable & Other Financial Liabilities 59315 473.76 720003
Other expenses .70 932 2439
Finance cost on Preference Share 104,82 192.63 19263
Taotal 73769 775.61 1,151.47
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37 Operating Exp

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

2024

March, 2023 (Restated, refer

For the year ended 31st
Farticulars For theyear ended S1stMATD: | March, 2023 (Restated, refer | 72 ”;;;‘E‘:::izd”;‘
note 57)
Stwotes & Operating Supplies* 29345 416.26 081.80
Repairs and Maintenance
Building 18589 205,14 15127
Plamt & Machinary 109.09 99.63 266.24
Others 11586 124.89 +18,02
Launcry Expenses 86.02 89.26 21933
Gruest pick up Expenses 1253 33,03 23745
Cable TV Expenses 1034 .10 17.96
Banquert Service expenses 25059 27119 71729
Other Operating Expenses** 33553 456.02 1,067.23
FPower and Fuel T66.03 165,33 1,992.43
Total 2,175.45 2468.85 6,710.06
#Srores & opersting supplies includes crockery & cutlery, linen & other consumables ece,
**{)ther Operating Expenses includes howse keeping & upkeeping expenses, expenses for FB&B operations,
Dther Expenses {Amuouni in Rz, Lakhs)
For the year ended S1st March, | 1 0¥ he veat ended 3lst For the year ended st

March, 2023 (Audited)

note 57)
Lease Remt 341,04 438,15 492,33
[Rates & Taxes 16.52 12.78 175.05
Insurance 6.25 5.69 3135
Travelling and Conveyance 6178 68,38 8248
FPestage, Telepram and Telephones 19.31 2498 48.56
Advertisement and Publicity 35.50 44.96 102 48
Legal & Professional 12243 27023 19110
Demerger Expenses 10.00 - -
Frinting and Stationcry 16,81 18.66 51.12
Credit Card Commission 44.76 40.75 11435
Cammission on Sales 14947 128.83 42847
Other Expenses 76.44 174.83 179.52
Auditors’ Eemunermation
Statutory audit 4.13 789 T30
Cenmificarion other mamers 100 2.0 2,00
CSK Expenses 49,83 - -
Sundry Balances Wioff L) {2,111 (11173
Bad and doubtful debts 2888 43.82 4595
Bad Diebrs Woff - 73.68
Loss On DisposalRetnement of Assets - 260
Total 99128 1409.12 1,953.89
Earnings Per Share
’ For the year ended 31st
For the year epded 315t March, For the year ended 31st
Particulars ¥ S0 March, 2023 (Restated, refer March.);ﬂﬁ CAudited)
note 57)
a) Amount used as the numerator profit after tax from continwing operations 1.821.41 293942 3,509,135
b} Amount used as the numerator profit after tax from discentinued operations - 246042 -
c) Amount used as the numerator profit after tax 1.821.41 5,300.84 5,508.15
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares - 100,00 100,00
Met ProfittLoss) attributable to equity share holders 182141 5,290 84 340015
d) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominatot in
computing basic eaming per share. 1,75.17.977 1,75,18.000 1,75,18,000
Add. Potential ne. of equity shares that could aiise on conversion of wartants into
equity shares. - - -
Weiphted average number of shares used in computing Diluted Earning, per Share 1,75,17.977 1,75,18,000 1,75,18,000
e) Nomunal value per share 10 1¢ 1
Eaming per share (EP5) from continuing operations
Basic and diluted 1040 16.21 30.88
Eaming per share (EPS) from discontinued operations
Basic and diluted . 14.05 .
Earning per share (EFS) from continuing and discontinued operations
Basic and diluted 1040 3025 3085
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40 Disclosure As per Ind AS-12 Income Taxes

i) Income Tax recongnised in stat it of profit & loss account. (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31:t March, 2024 For the year ended 31st March, 2023
Current Tax Expenses
Currenl year 588.95 1.160.80
Adjustment for earlier vear (2547 31.53
Total current Tax expenses £63.43 1,192.33
Deferred Tax Expenses {78.84 70.34
Total Income tax exp 454.64 126267
ii} Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 For the year ended 31st March, 2023
Particular Tax expense/ Net of Tax expense/ Net of
Before tax Bemrehit tax Before lax Benefit tax

Net acmanal gainfloss on defined benefiy (42.19) 10.62 (31.57) 0.6l 044 L 05
plan

Changes in cazh Aow hedpge reserve - - - - - -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indin's tax rate: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2024 Far the year ended 31st March, 2023

Profit before tax 2,306.05 4,202.09
Tax using company ‘s domestic lax rate 25,17 %(P.Y. 25.17%) 58043 1,057.67
AddALess): Earlier Year tax (2547 31.53
AddfLess): Expenses not Allowed in Income Tax 14,587 38.27
AddfLess): Deferred Tax Expense (78.54) 70,34
AddiLess): Others (6.35) 64.86
Tax as per § t of Profit & Loss 484.64 1,262.67
Effective Rate Of Tax 21.02% 30.08%

41 Disclosure as per Ind AS-116, Leases

The Company has taken land and immovable properties on lease which are generally loab tetm in nature varywing terns, escalation clauses and renewal right expiring within five to one hundred and ninet
eight years. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The overall lease rentals for the period are as follows:
{Amount in Es. Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 315t March, 2024
Mininum Lease payment’ Fuxed Rentals 1,408.55
Contingent rent recognised in Profit or Loss as Lease Cost, 341.04
Total 1,749.59

The minimum futare lease rentals payable in respect of non-cancellable leases enlered into by the Company Io the extent of minimum goarantes amount are as follows:-
{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2024
Minimum Lease payment
Not later than one year; (including notional interest compaonent) 1.001.82
Later than one year and not later than five years; 3.006.14
Later than five years; 2,527.75
Total 6,535.71

The bilurcation of total lease liabilities into Current and Non-Current is as follows:
{Amount in Es. Lakhs)

Particulars 3lst March, 2024
Currenl (excluding intersst componenl on lease liability) 874,40
Non - Currenl 4,588.66
Total S 46306
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42 Disclosure as per Ind AS-19, Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company makes annual contributions to the Emplovee's Group Gratuity scheme of the 5B Life Insurance Co. Lid., a funded defined benefit plan for the qualifying employees. The scheme provides
for lomp som payment to vested employees al retirement, death while in employmenl or on terminalion of employment as per the terms of the scheme Vesting occurs upon comiplelion of five years of
service.

The prezent value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost were measured vsing the Prajected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valoations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
The following table sets out the status of the funded gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the company's financial statements as at March 31, 2024:-

Changes in Present Value of Gthligation (Amouni in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars 31-Mar-24 I1-Mar-23
Present value of obligation as on last valuation 398.20 37200
Balance transferred pursnant to schene (refer note 57) {250.21) -
Current Service Cost 22.04 57.70
Interest Cost 961 1783

Parficipan! Contribution - -

Plan Amendments: Vested portion at end of period{Past Service) R R

Plan Amendments: Non-Vested portion at end of periodi{Past Service) - B

Actuarial painsloss on obligations due 1o Change in Financial Azssumption 1.03 -
Actnarial painfoss on obligations due to Change in Demopraphic assumption - -
Actnarial painfloss on obli

gations due to Unexpected Experience 41.15 35.69

Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due Lo Other reason

The effect of change in Foreign exchange rates

Eenzfits Paid (25.90y (B5.02)
Acguisition Adjpstment - -

Dizposal/Transfer of Obliganon - -

Curtailment cosl - -

Settlement Cost - -

Cther{Unseitled Liability at the end of the valoation date) R R

Present value of obligation as on valuvation date 106.73 398.20
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Fair value of Plan Assets at Beginning of period 42.58 30.18
Interest Incotne 3.03 1.91
Employer Contributions - 10.00

Parficipan! Contributions - -

Acquisition/Business Combination - -

Settlement Cost - -

Benefits Paid - -

The effect of aszet ceiling R R

The effect of change in Forsign Exchange Ratas - -

Administrative Expenses and Insurance Preminm - -

Reium on Plan Assets excluding Tnierest Incoms - 0.42

Fair value of Plan Assets at End of measurement period 45.61 42.58

Table Showing Reconciliation to Balance Sheet (Amount in Rs, Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 JL-Mar-23

Funded Status (196.73) (355.62)

Unrecognized Past Service Cost - -

Untecoemized Actiarial gain/loss at end of the period - -

Post Measurerment Date Employer Contribution{Expected) R R

Unfonded Accrned/Prepaid Pension cost - -

Fund Asset 45.61 42.58
Fund Liability {15112 {398.20)
Table Showing Plan Assnmptions

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Dizcount Rate 6.96% 712%

Rale of Compensation TncreaszelSalary Inflanon) 6.00% 6.00%

Pension Increase Rate Nf& NIA

Average expectad fulure service (Remaining working Life) NiA NIA

Mortality Table TALM 2012-2014 Ultitnate TALM 2012-2014 Ultimate
Superannuation at age-Male 58 58

Superannuation at age-Female 58 58

Early Retirement & Disablement {All Canses Combined) 18-28 vears 32%, 30-45 years 18% 18-29 vears 32%, 30-45 vears |3%
above age 45 % %

Eetween 2945 18% 18%

below ape 28 32% 32%

Volontary Retirement Tenored Tenored
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Expense Recognized in statemnent of Profit/Loss (Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Currenl Service Cost 2294 5770
Past Service Cost{vesled) - -
Pazt Service Cost{Non-Vested) - -
Wet Interest Cost 6.58 15.92
Cast(Lozs/(Gain) on settlement - -
Costf{Loss/(Gain) on curtailment - -
Actnarial Gain loss Apllicable only for last year - -
Emiployee Expecled Coniribulion - -
Net Effect of ch in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Eenciit Cost{Expense Recognized in Statement of Profilfloss) 2052 F3.62
Expense Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Amownt in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Actuarial painfloss on obligations due Io Change in Financial Assumplion 1.03 -
Actuarial painsloss on obligations due 1o Change in Demoptaphic ption

Actuarial painsloss on obligations due 1o Unexpected Expetience 41.15 35.60
Actuarial gainfloss on obligations due 1o Other reason -
Total Actuarial {gain)] 42.18 35.69
Return on Plan Asset, Excluding Tnterest Income 0.01 {049
The effect of assct ceiling -
Ealance at the end of the Period 42,19 35.20
Net(Income¥Expense for the Period Recognized in OCT 4219 35.20
Table Showing Cash Flow Informali (Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Next Year Total (Expected) 173.0% 46711
Minimum Funding Requir 173.05 467.11
Bifurcation of Net Hability (Amouni in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Current liahility 16,98 99.93
Non-Current Liability 134.14 255.69
Taotal Liahility 151.12 355.62

(b} Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognised the following expenses as defined contribution plan under the head “Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds'(net of recoveries).
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended 315t March, 2024 For the year ended 315t March, 2023
Contribution towards Provident Fund 125,03 106,92
Total 129.03 106.99

(c) Other Long Term Employee benefit
The provizion of leave encashment have been made on oulstanding privilege leave of employees at the end of year and calculated on the basis of basie pay of employees. Attrition rate taken same as

Actuarial valuation report of gratuity liability.

The Company has recogimised the following expenses as other long term simployee benefit under the head “Coatribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds"(net of recoveries).
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars For the yvear ended 31st March, 2024 For the year ended 31st March, 2023
Lzave Encash t 32.53 52.54
Total 32.53 52.54

Disclosure As per Ind AS-21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales

"Foreign Cumrency ransactions relating to monetary assets and liabilities as at the vear end tra
under relevant heads in Statement of Profit and loss.”

d as per accounting policy no. 12, resulted in net gain of Bs.Nil (P Y. Nil) Es which has been accounte
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43 Disclosure as Per Ind AS-24, Related Party Disclosure
List of Related Parties
1 Subsidiary Companies

Sayafi House Keeping Services Lid

2 Associate Companies
Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Limited

3 Key Management Personnel
Mr.Racof Razak Dhanani
Mrs.Suchitra Sajid Dhanani,
Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal
Mr. Ankur Bandal

Managing Director
Whele Time Dirsctor
Chef finanaal officer
Corpaty Secretary

4 Enterprises where Key Management Personnel has control finterest

Vicon Imperial Pvt. Lid.
Prinite Hospitality PviLtd
Kshipra Restaurantz Pyt Ltd
Malwa Hospitality Pvt Lid
Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Ltd
Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Ltd

5 Relatives of KMPs

Zuber ¥ Dhanain Sanya S Dhanani

Azher Y Dhanani Rizwan R Sheikh
Saba R Dhanani Varsha Khandelwal
Sadiya R Dhanani Sumeira Dhanani
Sara K Dhanani Jameel Taheer Sayed
(Amouni in Rs. Lakhs}
.
No Nature of Transactions For the vear ended 31st March, 2024 For the year ended 31st March, 2023
A |KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Remuneration/ Salary 35336 26947
Payable At The Year End 366 X
Payment OF Interest - 1147
B. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Reimbursenent of other Expenses 0.53 052
Interest Income - 200
Dividend Income - 2425.10
Loan Given - 110.00
€ |ASSOCIATE COMPANIES! FIRMS/ RELATIVES
Sale of Vehicle 3382 -
Sale of Services 1,056.01 1,238.55
Interest Incotne 5R.52 -
Loan Given 1,310.00 -
Loan Received 195.0% -
Interest Expenses 12,02 -
Rental Expenzes 1465491 1,515.76
Income From Buosiness Support Services 1345 53.28
Business Support Services Expenses 524 534,61
Receivable At The Year End 339.04 73.38
Royally Income 50,20 55.20
Paymenl Of Salary 30.54 44.39
Radetnption of preference shares 2,200.00 -
Paymenl of preference dividend 891,87 -
Payment OF Professional Fee 6.00 8.10
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44 Disclosure as per I AS-27, Separale Financial Statement

Interest in subsidiary
- ¢ Pusiness/C: %o Of Cwnership
N ace of Bu: owntry
Name of Entity Of Incorporation  [31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Sayafi Housekeeping Services Limited India 100.00% 1 0. 00%
Sayaji Hotels{Vadodara) Limited# India - 100.00%
Sayafi Hotels W lirnited# India - 100.00%
Sayaji Hotels(Pune) Limited# India - 100.00%

#Pursuant to scheme of arrangement investment in Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Lid, Sayafi Hotels Management Ltd and Sayafi Hotels (Pune) Lid stands cancelled {refer note no.57)

45 Disclosure as per Ind A5.37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

T Contingent Liabilities not provided for

(i) Dispuled Hability of Rs 352.41 lakhs not provided for in respect of Income tax for the FY 2012-13. The matter are pending before Supreme Court (P.Y . NIL)

(n} Dizputed hability of R2.21.36 lakhs not provided for in respect of Goods and Services Tax for the FY 2018-19.

11 Commitments

Estimaled capital commilments not provided for Rs, Nil (BY Rs, Nil

46 Disclosure as per Ind AS-108, Operating Segment

The Company's only business being hotzliering, disclosure of segment-wise information is nol applicable under Ind AS108 - ‘Opcrating Scgment’ (Ind AS-108) notified by the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendmients thereto.

Information ahout major customers

No single customer contributes more than 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the vears ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

47 Earnings in Foreign Currency :

Particulars

For the year ended 3Lst March, 2024

For the year ended 315t March, 2023

Earnings in Foreign Corrency
-8ale of Rooms and Food Beverages

(Inclusive of Taxes)

CIF Value of importz & Expenditure (on accrual basis)
-Import Value of Capital Goods
-Tmport ¥Walue of Non-Capital Goods

275,74

243 17

48 Disclosure as per Ind A5-107, Financial Instruments

Financial Risk Fanagment

The Company s principal financial liabilifies comprise Borrowings, trade payables and other payables, The main purpose of Ihese financial liabilities is I finance the Company s operalions. The Company’s
principal financial assets include trade & other teceivables, loan given, cash & cash Equivalent, Investrnent, depositz and detivahve that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's Financial Risk hManagemenl is an integral part of how to plan and execuls its business strategies, The Company's financial risk managemenl is set by the Managing Board.

Company is exposed to following risk from the use of its financial mstrument:

a) -Credil Risk
by -Liquidity Risk
c) -Markel Risk

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss lo the Comipany if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails o meet its contractual obligations resulting in & financial loss to the Company. Credit risk
arises principally from frade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions.
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Trade Receivable

Customer cradit risk i 1 by each busi unit suhject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing and are generally on 7 days to 45 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all customers based on internal rating criteria. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The maxinmm exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The
Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low. The requirement of impairment is analysad as each reporting date.

Other Financial Instruments and Cash & Cash Equivalents

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’'s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold requirements under the counterparty risk assessment process. The Company monitors the ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its
counterparties, Based on its on-going assessment of counterparty risk, the group adjusts its exposure to various counterparties, The Company’s maxinm exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Balance sheet as of March 31st, 2024 and March 31st, 2023 is the carrving amount as disclosed in Note 5001).

(i) Carrying amount of maximum credit risk as on reporting date

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial assets for which loss

allowance is ed using 12 th

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Non-current Investment 021 0.21
Non-current Loans - -
Other Non-Corrent Financial Asseis 1.105.95 1.735.10
Cash & Cash Equivalent 260.79 185.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents 19.56 643.19
Current Loans 92836 1.057.21
Other Current Financial Assets 16.03 871
Financial assets for which  loss)

allowance is measured using Lifetime

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Investment in Subsidiaries 637.50 652,50
Trade Receivables 702,57 562,74
Total 3,680.97 5,253.16

(i1} Provision for Expected Credit or Loss

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses.
The Company has assets where the counter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for impairment has been
recognised.

(b) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
The Company provides loss allowance on trade receivables using life time expected credit loss and as per simplified approach.

(iii} Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions

The moevement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Trade Receivables Inves?n.len.t m Advances Total
subsidiaries
Balance as at March 31, 2023 54.71 - 72.99 127.70
Impairment loss recognised 1524 - 12.00 27.24
Balance transferred pursnant to scheme (241 - - (3411
Amounts written off 249 - 72.99 7548
Balance as at March 31, 2024 59.05 - 12.00 TLOS
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b) Liquidity Risk
Liquichiy tisk 13 the nsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assocated with itz financial Lamlities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset The
Company's apptoach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will always have sufficient hqmdity to meet its Habilines when due, under both nominal and stressed condutions, without
incuming unaceeptable losses or risking d to the Company”s reputation

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's linancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Mo;:f:n 5 Total
Year ended March 311, 2024
Trade Payables 53098 - - - - 530.98
Other Pavables - 3827 - - - as27
Other Financial Liabilities - 857.53 045,94 245714 1.489.27 5,483.88
Total 530.98 92550 649.94 2457.14 148927 6,053.13
5
Particulars On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Mo;eml:n h Total
Year ended March 31st, 2023
Trade Payables 128581 - - - - 1,285.81
Other Fyables# - 85.14 - 1.797.56 1,383.10
Other Financial Liabilities - 340,75 263.24 1.514.04 3.830.80 5,948.87
Total 1.285.81 425.92 26324 L514.04 5,628.76 $,117.78

#Includes debt component of preference shares

¢y Market Risk

Market risk 12 the risk that changes in inarket prices, such as foreign exchange tates and interest rates will affect the Company’sincotne. The objective of markel risk managetoent iz to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while oplimising the return.
The Board of Direclors is responsible for setling np of policies and procedures to manage miarket risks of the Company. All such tansactions are camied out within the guidelines set by the risk

management convnittee,

Fareign Currency sensltivity

The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other correncies is not material. Hence there 1z no major impact on company's profit before tax due to change in the fair valoe of monetary

azsets and Habilities.

Interest Risk

Interest rate sk anses from e sensitivity of financial assets and Habbities 0 changes in warket rates of interest. The Company 1z exposed (o interest rate risk atising tomnly from long tetm borrowings
with floating witerest rates. The Comnpany 12 exposed to interest rate tisk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in interest rates.
At the reporting date the nterest wate profils of the Company's interest-bearing financial instrurments is as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

Financial Assets
Fixed Rate
Security Deposit
Bank Deposit

1.097.12
28.39

1.256.10
1,125.82

Tatal

LI12551

338192

Financial Liabilities
Fized Rate
Unsecured Loans

38.27

1.583.10

Sub-Total (i)

38.27

L,883.10

Yariable Rate Instruments
Term Loans

Sub-Tolal {ii)

Total (i) + (i)

38.27

1,883.10
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49 Capital Risk Management
For the purpose of the Company’ s capital management, capital includes issned equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the

Company's capital management 1s to ensure that 1t maintwns an efficient capatal strocture and healthy capital ratins in order to support its business and maximise shareholder valos.

The Company manages its capilal stroctore and makes adjostmenls to it in light of chanpes in economic conditions or its business equiremenis. To maintain ot adjust the capital strocture, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to sharsholders, return capilal o sharsholders or issue new shares The Company monitors capital nsing a gearing ratio, whichis net debt divided by tofal equity. The Company
inclodes within net debt interest bearing loans and borrowangs less cash and cash equivalents.

{Amount In Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars st March, 2024 31at March, 2023
Gross Debt 38.27 1.883.10
Less ; Cash and cash equivalenls (268.79) (1859.50)
Net Debt {A) (231.52) 1,693.60
Total Erpity (B) 4,620.92 13,970.25
Gearing Ratio (A/B) (0.05) 0.12
Financial Insty ts By Category (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
- As at 31st March,2024
Particulars FVIPL FYTOCI Amortized cost
Financial Assets:
Investment
- Equity Instrument (nnquoted) 021 - -

- Debt Instrument (quoted ) 1.010.72 - -
Other financial assets - - 020,36
Trade Receivables - - 0257
Cash and Cash Bquivalents - - 26079
Cther Bank Balance - - 19.56
Other financial assets - - 1,121.98
Total Financial Assets L,010.93 - 3,4326
Financial Liability:

Barrowings - - 3827

Trade Payahle - - 530.98

Other Financial Liabilities - - 5.483.88

Total Financial Liability . . 6,053.13
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

- As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars FVIPL FYTOCI Amortized cost

Financial Assets:

Invesiment

- Equity Tnstroment (ungquoted) 0.21 - -

- Debt Tnstrument {quoted) 78842 - -
Loans - - 1.057.21
Trade Receivables - - 962.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 182,50
Other Bank Balance - - 643,19
Other financial assets - - 1.747.81
Total Financial Assets 788.63 - 4,600.45
Financial Liability:

Bommowings - - 1.883.10
Trade Payable - - 1,285.81
Gther Financial Liabilities - - 5.048.87
Total Financinl Liability - - 9,117.78
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50 Disclosure as per Ind AS-113, Fair ¥alie Measurement

Fair Value Hierarchy

Thiz zection explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fait valnes of the financial insttiments thal are

(ayrecogmszed and measured at fair value and

(b} meaznred al amottised cost and for which fair values are disclozed in financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpots used in determining fair value, the Company has

classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the acconnting standard. An explanation of each level follows undetneath the table:

As at 315t March, 2024
Financial Instrument

ment

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

ed at Fair Value - recurring lair value

Particulars

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial Assets
Investment
- Equity Tnstroment (ungquoted)
- Debt Instrument {quoted?)
-Non Current Asset held for sale
Financial Liabilities
Derivatives

1.010.72

021
101072

Total

L,010.72

1,010.93

As at 315t March, 2013
Financial Instrument

ed at Fair Value - recurring lair value

ment

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

Particulars

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial Assets

Investment

- Equity Tnstroment (ungquoted)
-Non Current Asset held for sale
Financial Liabilitles
Derivatives

78842

021
788.42

Taotal

788.42

785.63

(A} Specific valuation technique is used to determine the Fair value of the financial instruments which include:
1} For Investrnents in Equity Investroents- Quoted Market prices are nzed and and for ungquoted Bquty Instraments best possible inputs are taken to wdentify the fair value.

ii} For financial liabilities {vendor liabilities. domestic currency loans) ;- appropriate market borrowing rate of the entity as of each balance sheel date used.
iii} For financial assels (emplovee loans) - appropriate market rate of the entity as of cach balance sheet date used.

(B} The finamcial instroments are categorized into differemt levels based on the inputs used to ardve at fair value measnr

its a5 described below:

Level L

Inclodes financial instroments measured using gquoted prices in an active market. This included listed equity instraments, traded debentures and mutnal funds
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including debentures) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as
al therepotting period. The mual funds are valued uzing the closing NAY.

Level 2

Includes financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds/debentures, over the counter derivatives). The fair value in this
higrarchy is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the nse of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specificestimales Tf|
all sigrificant inputs required to Far value an instrotoent are obeervable, the instinnent is included in level 2.

Level 3

Ii one or inore of the significant Inputs 13 not bazed on observable inarket data, the instrinnent is incluoded 1 level 3. Fair valoes are deteninined in whole or in
part using a valnation modsl based on assumptions thal are neither supporled by prices from observable current miarket transactions in the same instrumeni nor
are they based on available market data. Financial instrumenis such as unlisted equity shares, loans are included in this histarchy.
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(C) Inter level transfers:

There are no ransfers between levels 1 and 2 as also between levels 2 and 3 doring the year.

(D} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amorlised cosl

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

- As atl 31st March, 2024
Particulars Level Carrying Vahe Fair Value
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3 702,57 702.57
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 3 265,79 269.79
Eank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 13.56 12.56
Loan to Employees 3 588 5.88
Gther Financial Asseis 3 1,121 98 1,121.98
Financial Liabilites
Bommowings 3 3327 38.27
Trade Payahles 3 530.98 53098
Gther Financial Liabilities 3 20.82 20.82
(Amouni in Rs. Lakhs}
As at 315t Mareh 2023
Partieulars Level Carrying vahie Fair Vahic
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 3 062,74 962,714
Cash and Cash Bquivalents 3 189.50 189.50
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 643,19 643.19
Loan to Employees 3 15.52 15.52
Gther Financial Assets 3 174781 1.747.81
Financial Liabilites
Borrowings 3 1,883.10 1.B83.10
Trade Payables 3 1,285.81 1.285.81
Other Financial Liabilities 3 5.948.87 5.948.87
51 Disclosure as per Indd AS-115, Revenue from Contract with Customers
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
® Revenue from contract with customers For the year ended 31st March, 2024 For th(el{y;;t:]:l?f:fi:i:)bt?;:]h 2023
Rooms 3.616.53 3.230.22
Food and Beverages 403647 575052
Gther Setvices 262330 2.508 47

{ii} Disaggregation of revenne :-

Revenue iz also disaggregated on basis of hnang of revenue recogtntion 1.e. At a point in ime & over the penod of time.

(Amouni in Rs. Lakhs}

At a point in time Over the period of time.
- For the year ended
Particul
rticulars For the year ended 31st 31st March, 2023 For the year | For the year ended 31st
emded 31st March, 2023 (Restated,
March, 2024 {Restated, refer note ,,
§7) March, 2024 refer nole 57)

Rooms 3.616.55 3.230.22 - -

Food and Beverapes 4,936 47 5,7153.52 - -

Gther Setvices 262330 250847 - -
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54 Ratios
Sr. Particular Numerator D inat Unit Current Year Previous year Variance in %
1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liability Times 1.85 1.51 2%
2 Dizbt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharsholders equity % 0.83% 13.47% H3.85%
3 Return on Equity Net profit after tax A"‘"‘“gzzﬂ'ﬂ;"‘“c"d‘m % 19.58% 3161% 35.04%
Earning for Debt Service =
et Profit after taxes  |Debi servce = Tnterest and
4 Debt Service Coverage Ratio + Mon-cash operating | 1638 paymenis + Principall Times 343 374 -8.28%
expenses + Interest + repayments
Other non-cash
adjustinents
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations Average Invenlory Times 19 56 20,13 -2 30%
6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Revenue from operations | Average trade receivables Tames 13.42 13.81 -2.80%
7 Trade Payables Tumover Ratio Total Purchases Average trade payables Times 3 7 20.59%
Working Capital (i &
8 Net Camtal Tumover Ratio Revenue from operations Curtent Assets less Times 6 6 0.71%
Curtent Liamlities)
9 Net Profit Ratio Profit for the year Revznue from operations % 16.30% 25 56% -36.25%
10 Return on Tnvestment Income gencrated trom | Time Weighted Average % 371.66% -100.00%
wrvestnent Tovestments
1 Refurn on capital employed Earming befors interest and) ) employed % 65.57% 5504% 11.58%

faxes

Remark on Ratios having Variance more the [+/-) 25%

Note No
Note No
Note No
Note No
Note No
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. 54.2 - Decrease in Debt in F.Y. 2023-24 compared to F.Y. 2022-23 has resulted in an improvement in ratio.
. 54.3 -Dividend income in previous year has resulted decrease in ratic.
. 54.8 - Increase in Net Profits has reaulted in an improvement in ratio.
. 54.3 -Dividend income in previous year has resulted decrease in ratio.
. 54.10 - No dividend income in current year has resulted in decrease in ratio.
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£5 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Details of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

o R

For the year For the year emled 315t
Particnalrs emded 31st March, 2023 (Restated,
March, 2024 refer note 57)
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof Gross amount required lo be spent by the company 42,83 -
Amount spent during the year
(1) Constructionfacquisition of any assets - -
{ii} On purpose other than (i) above 49 83 -

56 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
During the year company has not invested in any virtual currency,

£7 Scheme of Arrangement

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chennai, vide Crder dated July 11, 2023 (*Order™) has approved the below scheme of arrangement with effect from April 01,2022 (the appointed
date). The Scheme became effective from Aungust 01, 2023 upon filing of the order with Registrar of Companies, Accordingly, the NCLT order has been considersd in preparing the standalone financial

staternents and following are the effects as per the order :

a} Analpamation of Ahilya Hotels Lid (AHL) into Sayaji Hotels Lud (SHL) and consequential cancellation and reduction of share capital of SHL »

The Company has acconnted for the metger az per Ind AS 105 Business Combinations. Pursuant to the scheme, AHL stands dizeolved and the 24,535,000 nutnber of shares of SHL hold by AHL stands
cancelled and 24,534,977 shares of SHL issued to shareholders of AHL as per the schemie. The transaction does not have any material impact on the profil and loss of the Company.

b} Demerger of Baroda and Pune business (Demerged Undertaking) of SHL into its wholly owned subsidiary, Sayaji Holels (Pune) Ltd (SHPL) and Indore business (Demerged Underlaking) of SHL into

its wholly owned subsidiary, Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Lid (SHIL) and consequential reduction of share capital of SHPL and SHIL

Pursuant to the Scheme, all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Demerged undertaking has been transferred to SHIL and SHPL from the appointed date,

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
The details of assels and liablilities transferred to the resulting comipanies are as under :
Particulars As at April 01,2022
ASSETS
MNon-current assels
Property, Planl & Equipment 12,365 .56
Capital Work-In-Progress -
Intangible Aszets 0.01
Investment Tn Sobsidhary, Joint Venture & Associate -
Financial Assets -
(i) Investments -
(1) Loans 43.86
tiiiy Other Financial Assets 232
Deferred Tax Asscts {Net} 1.263.535
Other Non-Current Assets 914
Total Non-Current Assels 13,760.44
Currenl assels
Inventories 530.04
Financial Assets -
(i) Investments -
(it} Trade Receivables 42071
(itiy Cazh and Cash Equivalents 10335
{iv) Bank Balances Other Than (iii) above 10.43
vy Loans 174.50
t+i) Other Financial Assels 1.82
Current Tax Assets (Net) -
Other Currenl Assets 271,59
Total Current Assels 1,514.84
TOTAL ASSETS 15,275.28
EQUITY AND L1ABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital -
Gther Equity 6.055.63
LIABITITIES 6,955.63
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Bormowings 253544
tia} Lease Liabilities 1.668.31
tii) Other Financial Liabilities 1.581.50
Provisions 305,25
Deferted Tax Liabilines (Nety -
Deferred Revenue 35273
Taotal Non-Current Liabilities 6,444.23
Current Linbilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Bortowings -
(ia} Lease Liabilities 28372
(i) Trade Payables -
A. total cuistanding dues of miicro enterprises and small enterprises; and 43,30
E. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. 37278
tiiiy Other Financial Liakbilitics 3227
Provisions 23345
Current Tax Liabihiies {(Net) -
Other Curren! Liabilities 700.90
Taotal Current Liabilities 1,875.42
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,275.28
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Profit after tax and Total Comprehensive Income of standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st IMarch 2023 after giving effect of scheme are as follows:
Year Ended
Particulars 3103.2023 31032023 (As
{Restated) published earlier)
Profit after tax 293042 550915
Total Comprelwnsive lncome 254047 5,482 81
The number published earlier, referred to hereinbefore, were computed without considering the impact of the scheme.
The impact of above re-prezentation on previcus period figures iz as follows:
Particalars Year Ended
31.03.20123
Income
Fevenue From Operations 1520443
Other Income 178.4G
Tatal Income 15382.83
Expenses :
Food and Beverages Consuimed 811584
Employee Benefits Ex penses 291447
Finance Costs 390.51
Cepreciation And Amortization Fxpenses 100611
Operating Expenses 4173.85
Other Exprenses B11.06]
Taotal Expenses 1210784
Profit before tax 327499
Tax Expense 314.57
Profit from Discontinued operations 2460042

Ealance sheet as at March 315t 2024 and Slatement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 315t 2024 are not comparable with the previous year Balance shest and Statement of Cash Flow since these
include the Demerged undertaking's figures.

The net cash flows atiributable to the discontinued operations are as follows ©

For the year ended
— et

573
Net cash flow from operating activities 1.033.56
Net cash flow from investing activities (778.93)
Wet cash flow from financing activities (754.094)
Net (decreaseiincrease in cash and cash equivalents (457.91)
Cash and cash equivalents al April 01,2022 36011
Cash and cash equivalents at March 31,2023 71.20

¢} Amalgamation of Sayaji Hotels Management Led (SHML)Y inwo SHL
The Company had accounted for the merger under the pooling of interest method retrospectively for all periods presented as prescribed in Appendix € of IND AS 103 Business Combinations for entities

under cominon control. The previons year numbers of statement of profit and loas have been accordingly restated. The Tmpact of the metger on these at is as inder:
Particulazs Year Endesd
31.03.20123
Total Income 283.09
Total Expenses 22532
Frofit before tax 5777
Tax Expense 167.09)
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The impact of amalpamation on the Balance sheet due to above scheme of arrangements are summarized as below :

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs}

. Merger of AHL amd Demerger of Total As on March
Particulars SHL (Reported) SHML SHPL and SHIL | _315t,2023 (Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assels
Property. Plant & Equipment 1496588 0.15 11,540.73 242520
Capital Work-In-Progress 90.52 - 90.52 1
Intangible Assets 2.10) - 2.06 004
Invesiment In Subsidiary, Joint Venture & Associate# 652 50 - - 637.50)
Financial Assets
(1) Tnvestinents 0.21 - - 021
(1) Loans .00 R R ]
(iii) Other Financial Assets 1732101 12.3] 6047 1,690.92
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 162685 - 127208 33479
Gther Non-Curtent Assets 120370 - 1.031.63 172.07]
Total Non-Current Assels 20280.86 12.46| 13997.49 6,280.82
Current assels
Inventories 35,59 - 54244 34215
Financial Assets
ti) Investments 788.42) - - 788.42]
tii) Trade Receivables G674 103.05 422,30 642.99
tiii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1853.50 43.63 11831 120,83
(1) Bank Balances Othet Than (i1} above 54319 - 1099 632.21
(v Loans* 1057.21 - 230.83 2,354,560
(vi) Other Financial Assels 8.39) - 172 £.68
Currenl Tax Assets (Net) 2765 2887 924 37.71
Gther Current Assets 1052.30 6.41 534.82 530.89
Total Current Assels 5621.99 187.96| 1871.15 5,457 .44
TOTAL ASSETS 25M)2.85 200.42| 15868.64 11,738.26|
EQUITY AND L1ABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 1751.80) - B 1,751.804
Other Equity*® 1222745 126.28 0340, 14 2,259.69
LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Fuiancial Liablities
(1) Borrowings 1797.96 - - 1,797,969
(1a} Lease Liabilities 350528 - 2.033.62 347163
(it} Other Financial Liabilities 10280 - 07.80 4.9
Provigions 477.73 3.67 36561 115.804
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Nety (ALY - - 1
Deferred Revenue 307.02 - 307.01 1
Total Non-Current Liabilitles 5190.79 367 280413 5,390.31
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
ti) Bommowings® 85.14 3.63 2.07185 27025
{1a) Lease Liabilities 323,00 - - 325.000
(1) Trade Payables
A. total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 34.21 - 1861 15.6]
B. tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises. 1251.604 47,22 605.63 69315
(iii} Other Finatcial Liabilities 11.79 - 11.50 .29
Provigions 598.95 6.10 284.29 320.75)
Current Tax Liabilines {Met) E - - 1
Other Current Liabilities 142212 8.52 72337 707,25
Total Current Liabilitles 3732.81 70.47| 3715.37 2,336,404
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25285 200.42| 15868.64 11,738.26|

#Pursuant to scheme of arrangement investment in Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Ltd, Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd and Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Lid stands cancelled.

*Adjustment pursuant to scheme

5% Additional Information

Sayaji Hotels Management Litd SHML] has invested Es. 2,25,68,500/- in Intellistay Hotels Pyt Lid (IHPL) in August, 2021 towards the purchase of 48.5 % stake. Due to uregularities in
the Corporate Governance practices and inisre presentation by the seruor officials of IHPL, Company has decided to exit from the strategic alliance, In view of the same IHPL has nuat
been considered as an associate of the Company. IHPL s accumulated losses are more than its net worth and hence company has also made provision for impairment of its investment.

Company is in the process of taking legal actions against IHPL and its officials.

** The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year classification.

Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-58

These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our report attached

For Manish Joshi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No, 011631C

Nikhil Upadhyay
Partner
BM.No. 465758

Place: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary
Director
DIN. 06726838

Sandesh Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer
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Mamnging Director
DIN. (DL74654
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Company Secretary



UDIN: 24465758BKAMXT4088

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Sayaji Hotels Limited,

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOpinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sayaji Hotels Limited (“the Company™), and its
subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31%March 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of owr report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2313 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note. 55 of the Standalone Financial Statements with respect to Scheme of
Arrangement amongst Savaji Hotels Limited, Sayaji Hotels (Indore) Limited, Sayaji Hotels (Pune)
Limited, Ahilya Hotels Limited , Sayaji Hotels Management Limited and their respective shareholders
and creditors (the ‘Scheme’) for demerger of Indore, Pune and Baroda Hotels of the Company
(collectively referred to as “Demerged Undertakings™) and merger of Sayaji Hotels Management limited
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into Sayaji Hotels Limited. The Scheme has been given effect to from the Appointed Date of April 1,
2022, as approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT"), Chennai and consequently
the statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2()23, have been restated.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.,
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

. incip i
The Company has demerged its Indore, Principal Audit Procedures

Pune and Baroda Hotels (the “Units™)
to Sayaji Hotels (Indore} Ltd. and
Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Ltd. pursuant to a
Scheme of Arrangement (‘the
Scheme”). The Scheme was approved
by the National Company Law
Tribunal (NCLT) with an Appointed
date of April 1, 2022. We have
identified this transaction relating to
discontinued operations, as a key audit
matter  because of  significant
complexities in its accounting and
disclosure requirements.

We reviewed and analyzed the primary documents
concerning the transfer of the Demerged
Undertakings, including the scheme of arrangement
and the approval granted by the NCLT.

We examined whether the Company's accounting
practices align with the scheme approved by the
NCLT and the relevant accounting guidelines.

We evaluated the sufficiency and appropriateness of
the disclosures in the financial statements regarding
the discontinued operations and the transfer of Units,
as mandated by the accounting standards.

Based on the procedures carried out, the accounting

methods and disclosures related to the transfer of the
Demerged Undertakings are deemed to be sufficient
and appropriate.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Anditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report ineluding Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and ouwr
auditor’s report thereon.
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Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our andit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a tme and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance, and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s and its
Associate’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do se.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s and its Associate’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an andit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company and its
subsidiary company & Associate has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the andit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group& it’s Associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control] that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on owr independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial staternents of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 1n extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters
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(a) The Consolidated Financial Statements includes financial statement and other financial information
in respect of its subsidiary, whose financial staternent and other financial information includes total
assets of Rs. 781.11 lakhs as at 31% March, 2024, total revenue from operations of Rs. Nil lakhs and
Rs. Nil lakhs, total net profit after tax of Rs. 2.60 lakhs and Rs. 1{}.45 lakhs and total comprehensive
income of Rs. Nil lakhs and Rs. Nil lakhs for the quarter and year ended on 31* March, 2024
respectively, and net cash flow of Rs. (-) 16.16 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2024, as
considered in the statement which has not been audited by us. This financial statement and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us by
the management and our opinion on the statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the subsidiary 1s based solely on the report of the other auditors and the
procedures performed by us as stated in paragraph above.

(b} The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of net profit of Rs. (-}398.21
Lakhs, and total comprehensive income of Rs. (-)26.73 Lakhs for the year ended 31* March, 2024,
as considered in the Consolidated Financial Results, in respect of 1 Associate, whose financial
statement have not been audited by us. The independent auditors’ report on financial statement of
this entity has been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Annual
Financial Results, in so far as it relates to the arnounts and disclosures included in respect of this
entity, is based solely on the report of such other auditors and the procedures performed by us as
stated in paragraph above.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on (Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 213, we give in
the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group& Associate
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounl.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
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Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts})
Rules, 2014.

(€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31'March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31"March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In owr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates — Refer Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

. The Group and its associate did not have any long-ter contracts including derivative contracts

for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and Associate company
incorporated in India.

(a) The respective Management of the Company, its Subsidiary & Associate has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sowrces or kind of funds) by the Company or any of its subsidiary
and Associate to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries{*Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management of the company and its subsidiary & Associate has represented, that, to the
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate} have been received by the Company or any of its subsidiary & Associate from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of its subsidiary & Associate shall,
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whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*“Ultimate Beneficiaries”™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢} Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11(e}, as provided under (a) and (b} above,
contain any material misstatement.

V. Based on owr examination, which included test checks, and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiary company and associate company, the Holding Company, its subsidiary
company and its associate company, have used accounting software systerns for maintaining its
books of account for the financial vear ended March 31, 2024 which have a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software systems,

Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective anditors did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software’s for the
period for which the audit trail feature was operating.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order™/“CARO™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given
to us, and based on the CARQ reports issued by us for the Company and its Subsidiary & CARO
Reports issued by other auditors in respect of one Associate included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARQ is applicable, we report that there are
no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. Further in respect of one associate, the
report under section 143(11) of the Act is not available.

For Manish Joshi & Associates,

Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 011631C

Date: 28-05-2024 (Nikhil Upadhyay)
Place: Indore Partner
M.No. 465758

UDIN: 24465758BKAMXT4088
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UDIN: 24465758BKAMXT4088

ANNEXURE -A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sayaji Hotels Limited (*the
Company™) as of 31¥March, 2(}24 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors’ of Parent and its subsidiary company, which is company incorporated
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2(13.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issned
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abeout
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. (ur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
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procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatermnent of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suificient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's nternal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the comnpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based en
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Qther Matters paragraph below, the
Parent and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India,in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31*March 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
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components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Manish Joshi & Associates,

Chartered Accountants,
FRN: 011631C

Date: 28-05-2024 (Nikhil Upadhyay)
Place: Indore Partner
M.No. 465758

UDIN: 24465758BKAMXT4088

182



SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st Asat31st
Particulars Note No. March,2024 March,2023
ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
{a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 510448 14,966.03
{b) Capltal work-in-progress 3 §3.92 90.52
(c) Intangible assets 4 318 2.10
(d) Goodwill on consolidation - -
(e) Investment in Assuciate, Subsidiary and Joint venture 5 11,670.19 11,940.78
(fi Financial Assets
{i) Investments 6 0.21 0.21
{(g) Loans - -
(h) Other Financial Assets 7 1,106.40 1,751.40
(i) Deferred Tax assets (net) 8 452.76 1.629.78
(j} Other non-current assets 9 274.89 1.203.70
Total Non-Current Assets 18,696.03 31,584.52
2 Current Assets
(2) Inventories 10 256.97 88559
{h) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 11 1.010.72 76842
{ii) Trade Receivables 12 702,57 1,063.75
(iii} Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 27149 230065
{iv) Bank balances other than (ii) above 14 19.56 64319
{v) Loans 15 1,127.58 786.54
{vi) Other Financial Assets 16 16.03 839
{c] Current Tax Assets (net) 17 13914 57.09
{d) Other current assets 18 629.45 1,066.98
Total Current Assets 4,173.51 5,530.60
TOTAL ASSETS 22,869.54 37,115.12
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{(a) Bquity Share Capital 19 1,751.80 1,751.80
(h) Other Equity 20 14,100.27 23.146.27
Total Equity 15,852.07 24,898.07
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current Liabilities
{a) Financlal Liabilities
{i) Borrowings Z1 0.02 1,797.97
(ia) Lease liability 22 4,588.66 550528
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 23 7.69 102.80
{h) Provisions 24 268.92 481.40
{c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
{d) Deferred Revenue 25 - 307.01
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,865.29 8,194.46
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2024

[These notes form an integral pant of these financial statements
In Terms of our Report Attached

'or Manish Joshi & A dat
Chartered Aecountants

Firm Regn. No. 0116310

INikhil Upadhyay
Partner
IM.No. 465758

[Place: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Drectors

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary
Director
DIN. 06726836

Sandesh Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars Note No. March,2024 March,2023
2 Current Liabilities
() Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 26 40.33 34256
{ia) Lease Liability 27 87440 329.00
(il) Trade Payables 28
A, total outsta_ndmg dues of micre enterprises and 40.20 34 21
small enterprises; and
B..total (Jl.ltSt'c'lll'ld]I'lg dues ufcredlturs.; other than 490.92 1263.89
micro enterprises and small enterprises.
{iii}) Other Financial Liahilities 29 13.13 16.15
{b) Provisions 30 203.89 60547
{c) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) - -
{d) Other Current Liabilities 31 489.31 143131
Total Current Liabilities 2,152.18 4,022.59
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES 22,869.54 37,115.12
Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes 1-56

Rauol Razak Dhanani
Managing Director
DIN-00174654

Ankur Bindal
Campany Secretary
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SAYA]1 HOTELS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024

(RE. In Lakhs)
For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Note No,
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
1 Jincome
Revenue From Operations 32 11,176.32 1149821
Other Income 3 486.08 315.68
Total Revenue 11,662.40 11,813.89
2 Expenses :
Food and Beverages Consumed 34 1,675.69 1,99191
Employee Benefits Expenses a5 2,616.74 2,341.13
Finance Costs 386 738.75 788.62
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 254 1,143.38 1,011.37
Operating Expenses a7 2,175.45 244247
Other Expenses 38 99232 1,40994
Total Expenses 9.342.33 9,985.44
3 I[’:;f;t before Exceptional Item and share of profit/(loss} of associate and tax 2,320.07 1,828.45
4 |Exceptional Item
Profit/ Loss on sale of share of assaciate - -
5 Profit before share of profit/(loss) of associate and tax (3-4} 2,320.07 1,828.45
& |Share of Profit f{Loss)} of Associate [398.2 l] 506.55
7 |Profit Before Tax from continuing operations 1,921.86 2,335.00
€ | Tax Expense:
(1} Cwrrent Tax 592.48 1,173.90
(2} Deferred Tax (78.84) 70.20
(3} Tax Ad)ustment of Earlier Year (25.44] 37.45
488.20 1,281.55
9 |Profit (Loss} for the year from the Continuing Operations(7-8) 1,433.66 1,053.45
10 |Profit {Loss) for the year from discontinned operations before taxes - 3,269.73
Ineome tax expenses of discontinued epeoralions - 813.69
Profit {Loss) for the year from discontinned operations after taxes (10) - 2,456.04
11 |Profit/{Loss} for the Period{9+10) 1,433.66 3,509.49
12 |Other Comprehensive Income
A ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{1} Acturial Gain/{Loss} on Defined Benefit Plan (42.19) 061
(i} Income Itlax relatinglto items that will notbe 10.62 0.44
reclassified to profit or loss
B Items that will be reclassified ko profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income from continming operations (12} (3 1_57] 1.05
13 |Other Comprehensive Income from discontinued sperations before taxes - {33.45]
Ineome tax expenses of discontinued epeoralions " 8.42
Other Comprehenzive Income from discontinged vperations after taxes (13) - [25-03]
14 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (11412413} (Comprising Profit ALoss) and Other 1,402.09 3,485.51

Comprehensive Income for the year) before share of associate
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15
16

17

Share of Profit/ (Losz) of assoclate

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (144150 Comprising Profit /AL oss} and Dther
Comprehensive Income for the year)

Ned profit from continuing eperations attributable to
Owners of the parent

Non controlling interests

Net profit from discontinwed operations attribntable to
Owners of the parent

Non controlling interests

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to

Owners of the parent

Non controlling interests

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to
Owners of the parent

Non controlling interests

Earning per share (EP5} from conltinuing operations
Basic and diluted

Earning per shave (EPS} from discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

Earning per shave (EPS} from continuing and discontinued operations
Rasic and dibated

(26.73)
1,375.36

1,433.66

(58.30)

1,375.36

8.18
39

8.18

(22.24)
3,463.27

1,053.45

2,456.04

(46.22)

346327

5.33
13.33

18.66

Signifleant Accounting Pollcies and other Notes
These noles form an integral part of these financial stalements
In Terms of our Report Attached

For Manish Joshi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 011631C

Nikhil Upadhyay
FPariner
MDNo. 465758

Flace: Indore
Date: 28th May 2024

1-56

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Abhay Chintaman Choudhary
Director
DIN. 06726836

Sandesh Khandelwal
Chief Financial Officer

Racof Razak Dhanani
Managing Director
DIN-00174654

Ankur Bindal
Company Secretary
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)]|

Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Tax from continuing operations 1,921.85 2,335.00
Profit before Tax from discontinued operations - 3,269.73
Profit before Tax from total operations 1,921.85 5,604.73
Non-cash/Non-Operating adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash flows
Adjustments related to Associates 398.21 (506.35)
Depreciation & Amortisation including adjustments 1,143.37 2,017.49
Deferred Income Amortisation - (39.03)
Deferred Expense Amortisation - 4.69
Excess provision written back (6.99) (5.16)
Interest Expense 40.10 257.25
Finance cost on lease payable & Other Financial Liabilities 393.13 718.93
Finance cost on Preference Share 104.82 192.63
Interest Received (172.05) (140.42)
Finance income on security deposit (106.99) (85.14)
Net IND AS adjustment in ROU and lease liabilities (300.50) -
Lease Rent 341.04 493.01
Balances Written off - (11.17)
Interest Income - (19.12)
Provision for doubtful debts made 28.88 45.95
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 3,984.89 8,528.09
Adjustments for::
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities (217.95) 282.94
Increase/(Decrease) in other non current asset (83.93) -
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (61.01) (1,589.02)
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (17.71) 106.90
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables {178.03) 380.94
Decrease/(Increase) in loans(financial assets) 1,425.2¢ (131.09)
Decrease/(Increase) in other Bank Balances - (632.76)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 86.18 101.76
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivable (59.58) (362.37
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets (200.52) (1,369.29)
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets 733.04 467.35
Cash generated from operations 5,410.58 5,783.45
Taxes (Paid)y/Refund {679.30) (2,031.91)
Net Cash from Operating Activity (A) 4,731.28 3,751.54
B. CASH FLOW FROM-INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (51.25) (406.27)
Sale/Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 383 -
Maturity/(Investment) in Non Current Fixed Deposits 612.65 -
Investment others (222.30) (769.30)
Interest Received 172.05 140.77
Net Cash Flow from lnvesting Activity(B) 514.98 (1,034.80)
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SAYAJI HOTELS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of Preference Shares (2,200.00 -
Preference Dividend Paid (891.67) -
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings - 2.25
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings - (3,075.770)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of loans from others (232.11) (17.08)
Payment of Lease Liability (1,749.59) (1,902.57)
Interest Paid/other borrowing cost paid (40.10) (257.25)
Net cash used in Financing Activity (C) (5,113.47) (5,250.35)
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents{A+B+C) 132.79 (2,533.61)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 230.65 2,764.26
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement (91.95) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year 27149 230.65

Significant Accounting Policies and other Notes
These notes form an integral part of these financial statements
In term of our report attached

Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Ind AS -7 'Statement of Cash Flows".

2. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flow, Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises the followings:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Balance with Banks 256.11 186.35
Cash on hand 15.38 44.19
Investment in Mutual Fund - 0.11
271.49 230.65
For Manish Joshi & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011631C
Nikhil Upadhyay Abhay Chintaman Choudhary Raoof Razak Dhanani
Pariner Director Managing Director
M.No. 465758 DIN. 06726836 DIN-00174654
Place: Indore Sandesh Khandelwal Ankur Bindal

Date: 28th May 2024

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
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A Eqpuity Share Capital

Amaount Lo R=. Lakhs}

Changes Lo eqjuity

SAYA[VHOTELS LIMITED

Consolidated Statemwent OF Changes In Equlty For The Period Ended 3 13t March, 2024

Balange e ar Lat April, 2023 share capltal during Balance as at 315t
March, 2024
the year
L751.80 - 1,751.80]
E. Other Equity (Amaunt I Rs. Lekhs)
AMiributable to owners ol parent
Equity component af Reperve andpurplus Share af OCI of Total Equity Non-Cantroliling
Farticulars compound financial Capits] Rdempdion Share of Equity Elfective portion of | Asseclales Accounted |aiributable to ewners Interest Total
il:ur.rument_'. Securdies Premium General Reserve Retained Earnings P Ressrwpu Component Inrecty Cash Flow Hedges far using Equity of parent
credited to EQuity Method

Balance as at L=t April, 2023 o40.00 5,944.60 64148 653.13 1514652 59.33 {248.81)] 2114626 - 23,146.26
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 182137 - - - - 1L,BELET - LEB3 18T
Gther Comprehensive Income for

the year - - [3LE7) - - - [26.73] (58.30) - {58.20)
Share of agsoclare - - [39B.21) - 15426 - - (243.85) - {243.85)
Total Comprehensive Income

for the Year - - 1402.0% 15436 - {Z6.73) 1,529.72 - 1,52%72
Preferernce Dividend Paid (89167 (B1.67) {B9LA6T)
Redemption of preference shares [001) [ELLINCIE] - Shb60 1,000,000 - - - [7341) - {73.41)
Balauc e pursuant toscheme - [5.38) - [3,600.75} - - - - (2,610.63) - {9,610.63
Balatce a3 at T1at March, 2024 523477 Htl.44 {7.67 060 100000y 15,300.64 69.33 {275.54 14,1040.27] L4, 1002
A Equity Share Capital

Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Changes Lo aqjuity
Ralauce as at Lot April, 2022 shave eapital during Ba:;‘"“ asat 315t
arch, 2023
the year
1,75L8 - 1,751.80
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A Eqpuity Share Capital

SAYA[NHOTELS LIMITED
Consolidated Statemwent OF Changes In Equlty For The Period Ended 3 13t March, 2024

In Terms of our Report Attached

[For Mumich Jochi & Amoriates
Charterad Accounlanls
[Firm Rigm No. 011531C

(Nilkchil Lpadhyay
Curioer
[M.DNo. 465T5E

[lirce: Indore
Dute: 2800 May 2024

These notes form an inlegral part of these Gnancial stalements

For and o behalf of Bourd of Directors.

Abkay Chiwtasian Chomdisary

Director
DN, 6726836

Sandesh Khaondelwal
Chicf Financind DfGcec

Raoof Razak Dhanani
Managlng [Mrector
DIN-O01 74654

Ankur Bindal
Cotngany Secretary

B. Other Equity [Amount ln Rs, Lakhz)
Arributable to owners of parvent
R R Reserve and surplus Share of OCl of Tatal Equity :
Particubars i:um“!;und I‘ina m:la‘:r Capits] Rd. Share of Equity Elfective portion of | Asseclabes Accounted |adtributable bo ewners No“;c‘:"u‘?h“s Total
' Securihies Premium General Reserve Retalned Earnings P empion Component irecty Cash Flow Hedges for waing Equity of parent meres
instruments Reserve
credited to Equity Method

Balange e ot Lat April, 2022 o40.0L 5,94 4,60 64148 {2,B32.3H) 15,198.2% 6933 {226.57) 19.734.76 12,734.76
Ind AS Adjustment on account of
Leases - - - - - - - - .
Profic/[Loss] for che year - - 3,002,594 - - - - 3,002.94 - 300294
Other Cornprehensive Income for
the year [23.98) [22.24] (46.22) {46.22)
Other - - - - .
Share of associate E06SS [51.77] 154,78 45478
Sale of Investment in Associate - - - - -
Dlvidend - - - - - - - - -
Tatal Camprehensive Income
far the Year 348551 (51.77) {2z224) 341150 341150
Cash dividends - - - - - - - - - -
Dividennd distribution tax on cash
drddend - - - - - - - - -
Equity Compent - - - - - - - - -
Excess of Imvestment over Net
Aogets - - - - - - - - -
Others . . . . . . . .
Balance as at 313t Mareh, 2023 940.0% 59460 SEL 652,13 69.34 ZBEL 25146260 2311626
Sigunificant Accounting Folicles and other Wotes 1.56
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Financial Statements

A. Group Information

Sayaji Hotels Limited (SHL” or the “Company™), is a listed public limited company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Its shares are listed on Bombay stock exchange
on India. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating & managing
hotels. The Company and its subsidiaries (jointly referred to as the ‘Group’ herein under)
are considered in the consolidated financial statements. The group is primarily engaged in
the business of owning, operating & managing hotels.

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Chennai, vide Order dated July 11, 2023
(“Order™) has approved the below scheme of arrangement with effect from April 01,2022 (the
appointed date). The Scheme became effective from August 01, 2023 upon filing of the order with
Registrar of Companies —

a)  Amalgamation of Ahilya Hotels Ltd (AHL) into Sayaji Hotels Ltd (SHL)

b} Demerger of Baroda and Pune business (Demerged Undertaking) of SHL into its wholly
owned subsidiary, Sayaji Hotels (Pune) Ltd (SHPL) and Indore business (Demerged
Undertaking) of SHL into its wholly owned subsidiary

¢} Amalgamation of Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd (SHML) into SHL

Statement of Compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting and comply
in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nofified vnder the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent applicable), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1936.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by Board of Directors
on 28" May,2024.

1. Basis of measurement/Use of Estimates
i.  The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost
convention except certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives
instruments) that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
methods used to measure fair values are discussed in notes to financial statements.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

ii.  The preparation of financial statements requires judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actunal
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/
materialized. Major Estimates are discussed in Part C.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

B. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all

periods presented in the financial statements.
1. Basis of consolidation

i. Subsidiaries

a. The group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the group and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the group. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar

circumstances.

b. The Group entities combines the financial statements of parent and its subsidiaries
line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expense. Intercompany balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of transferred asset.

c. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the

owners of the Company and to the non- controlling interests.

d. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to

bring their accounting policies in line with the group’s accounting policies.

Where company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related Non-Controlling Interest and other

component of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair

value at the date of control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in Profit
and loss.

ii. Associate

a. Under the equity method of accounting, the investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost. The Carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the associate is included in the

carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

b. The Statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations
of the associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the
Group’s OCL In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the
Equity of the associate, the group recognizes its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the statement of changes in Equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the group and the associate are eliminate to the
extent of the interest in the associate.

¢. Upon loss of significant influence over associate, the group measures and recognizes
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate upon loss of significant influence in associate and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit and loss.

2. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

*  Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

*  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

+ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

= Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

+  Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

*+  There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

3. Property Plant & Equipment

3.1.Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment’s recognized as an asset if and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation/amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to bringing the asset, borrowing cost, inclusive of non-
refundable taxes & duties, to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

3.2.

3.3.

34

4.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are recognized separately.

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the
definition of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

De-recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are derecognized when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation 1s recognized in profit or loss on a Written Down Value Method over the
estimated useful lives as prescribed in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 of each part
of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment. Leasehold lands are amortized over the
lease term unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term.

Assets constructed on leased premises are depreciated/amortized over the lease period.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from fixed assets during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent
expenditure on a PPE along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off
prospectively over the revised useful life determined by technical assessment.

In circumstance, where a property is abandoned, the cumulative capitalized costs relating
to the property are written off in the same period.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. Again or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated
or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified
as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from
other liabilities in the balance sheet.

Capital work-in-progress

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and
borrowing costs.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred
till they are ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis
on the cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account
received from the contractors

Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

6.1. Initial recognition and measurement

6.2.

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite nseful lives, are
recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable
incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrving amount of the asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

6.3. Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected
from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

6.4, Amortization

Intangible assets having definite life are amortized on Written Down Value method in
their useful lives. Useful life of computer software is estimated at five years.

7. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/
development or erection of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset
until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets
are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended nses are
complete.

All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue as and when incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest
method as described in Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial Instruments’ (b) finance charges in
respect of finance leases recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116 — ‘Leases’ (¢)
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs and (d) other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Income earned on temporary investment of the
borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

8. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on Weighted Average basis. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined atter deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores & spares is
ascertained on review and provided for.

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

10. Government Grants

Government grants that compensate the company for the cost of asset are recognized
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant and are
recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.
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Sayaji Hotels Ltd
Significant Accounting Policies for the FY 2023-24:- Consolidated Financial Statements

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the
period in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the related expenses.

11. Provisions and contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtnally
ceriain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statermnent of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis
of judgment of the management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance
sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in
the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is probable on the basis of
judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments
are appropnately reflected in the financial statements.

12. Foreign currency transactions and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences

arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in
the year in which it arises.

Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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13. Revenue Recognition

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers™ which introduces the five-step model described as follows: -

Identify the contract with a customer.

Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract.

Determine the transaction Price.

Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance obligations.

Recognize revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

L L R N

Revenue from operations:

The Company derives revennes primarily from sale of rooms, food and beverages, allied
services relating to hotel operations such as management fees for the management of the
hotels.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange
for those products or services.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in statement of Profit and loss.

Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The company recognises contract assets on an amount equals to consideration related to
goods and services already transferred to customers when the right to receive such
consideration is conditioned upon something other than passage of time.

Unconditional right to receive consideration are recognised as trade receivable.

Trade receivable and contract assets are subject to impairment as per Ind AS 109
‘Fmancial Instruments’.

The company recognises amount already received from customer against which transter
for goods and services are not made as contract Liability.

Interest Income

For all financial instroments measured at amortized cost and interest-bearing financial
assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Dividend

Dividend Income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive is established which
generally occurs when the shareholders approve the dividend.

Other Income

Other Income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when increase in future
economic benefits related to an increase in an asset op a decrease of a liability has arisen
that can be measured reliably.
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14, Employee Benefits

14.1.

Short Term Benefit

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under performance related
pay if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

14.2.

14.2.1.

14.2.2,

14.2.3.

Post-Employment benefits

Employee benefit that are payable after the completion of employment are Post-
Employment Benefit (other than termination benetit). These are of two type:

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are those plans in which a group pays fixed contribution
into separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are Defined Contribution
Plans in which company pays a fixed contribution and will have no further obligation.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan.

Company pays Gratuity as per provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. The Group’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earmed in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of
Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the
same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a liability to the company, the present
value of liability is recognized as provision for employee benefit. Any actuarial gains
or losses are recognized in OCI in the period in which they arise.

Long Term Employee Benefit

Benefits under the Group’s leave encashment constitute other long term employee
benefits.

Leave Encashment is determined based on the available leave entitlement at the end
of the year.

15. Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Curmrent tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.
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Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current income taxes are
recognized under ‘Income tax payable’ net of payments on account, or under ‘Tax
receivables” where there is a debit balance.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable group, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax) is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent it
is probable evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax and will be able to
utilize such credit during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit
to the Statement of Profit and loss and is included in Deferred Tax Assets. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date and if required, writes down the carrying
amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer probable that
Company will be able to absorb such credit during the specified period.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at
the same time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

16. Leases As Lessee

Ind AS 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reporting period beginning April
1, 2019. The Company has adopted the standard beginning April 1, 2019, using the modified
retrospective approach for transition. Accordingly, the company has not restated the
comparative information. Further, in respect of leases that were classified as operating leases
applying Ind AS 17. There is no impact on Opening Retained Earnings.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset
(“ROU™) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates
payments in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-

alone prices and applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives
received. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased assets
or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-use assets are

depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance
fixed’ payments) and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease
incentives receivable. ‘In-substance fixed” payments are payments that may, in form, contain
variability but that, in substance, are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date

if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of
variable leases which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the
guaranteed amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in
the initial calculation of the lease liability. Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are

charged against the lease liability.

Consequently in the statement of profit and loss for the current period, the nature of expenses
in respect of operating leases has changed from lease "Rent” / "Other expenses" in previous
period to "Depreciation and amortisation expense” for the right of use assets and "Finance
cost” for interest accrued on lease liability. As a result the "Rent” / "Other expenses”,
"Depreciation and amortisation expense” and "Finance cost” of the current period is not

comparable to the earlier periods.

17. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the
provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, then the

asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs to disposal and its value in nse. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value nsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups

of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU”).
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts
of goodwill of that CGU, if any and then the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

18. Operating Segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the operating segments used to
present segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the
Group’s Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.
The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s *Chief Operating Decision Maker’
or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. For management purpose company is
organized into major operating activity of hoteliering in India. The indicators used for
internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection with performance assessment
measures put in place.

19. Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable to a Group’s shareholders are recognized as
changes in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders’ meeting
and the Board of Directors respectively.

20. Material Prior Period Errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred
before the earliest prior period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and
equity for the earliest prior period presented, are restated.

21. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial vear.
Diloted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.
22. Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Ind AS-7 “Statement of cash flows.
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23, Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one group and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another group.

23.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are
met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b} Contractnal terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the fair value through other comprehensive income
if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

(b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the fair value through other comprehensive income
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit
and loss. On derecognition of the asset, camulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding fair
value through other comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and less

Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as at fair valve through
profit and loss.
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In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit and loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or
eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch™). Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured
at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value
through profit and loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify
the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit and loss. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, then all fair value changes on the instruments, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer cumulative gain or
loss within the equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair valoe through profit and loss category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are measured at cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s
balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)} the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Lease Receivables under Ind AS 116

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on:
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Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind
AS 115, if they do not contain a significant financing component

* Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of and
Ind AS 115 that contain a significant financing component, if the Company applies
practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly
attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and any material transaction that are any integral part of the EIR. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses forwards to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates, exchange
rates and commodity prices. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are also
subsequently measured at fair valne. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which
is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss
when the hedged item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged
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forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial assets or
non-financial liability.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

a) Cash flow hedge

The Company designates derivative contracts or non derivative financial assets /
liabilities as hedging instruments to mitigate the risk of movement in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates for foreign exchange exposure on highly probable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability or forecast cash transactions. When a
derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve
being part of other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If
the hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains
in cash flow hedging reserve until the underlying transaction occurs. The cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the underlying transaction. If the
forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in
cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Fair Value Hedge
Changes in the fair valne of hedging instruments and hedged items that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the
hedging relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to
the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is
amortised to Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of maturity.

24, The company discloses certain financial information both including and excluding
exceptional items. The presentation of information excluding exceptional items allows a
better understanding of the underlying trading performance of the company and provides
consistency with the company’s internal management reporting. Exceptional items are
identified by virtue of either their size or nature so as to facilitate comparison with prior
periods and to assess underlying trends in the financial performance of the company.
Exceptional items can include, but are not restricted to, gains and losses on the disposal of
assetsfinvestments, impairment charges, exchange gainfloss on long term borrowings/
assets and changes in fair value of derivative contract.
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C. Major Estimates made in preparing Financial Statements

1. Useful life of property, plant and equipment

3.

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic
factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological advances) and the
level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from
the asset.

Useful life of the assets other than Plant and machinery are in accordance with Schedule
IT of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of property, plant
and equipment, and are adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of
a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option
is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on
a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any
options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term,
the Group considers factors such as any signiticant leasehold improvements undertaken
over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of
the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future
periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic
circumstances.

Post-employment benefit plans

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which
include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The
Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate
and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material
impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been
made in accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best
judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Shonld
circumstances change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

Impairment Test of Non-Financial Assets:

The recoverable amount of investment in subsidiary is based on estimates and
assumptions regarding in particular the future cash flows associated with the operations of
the investee company. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on
the measurement of the recoverable amount and could result in impairment.
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2. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Land Building :;;:tpf‘m is ;“;:11: ::e & ::::il:;e“ ‘ Vehicles | Computers Total (a) :l?ﬂljﬁ;t‘:nb?*& Total (a) + (b)
Gross Block (at Cost)

As at 01.04.2022 2,637.28 11,329.43 2,403.55 1,498.32 261.45 42.05 255.99 18,428.07 10,867.85 29,295,932
Additions during the year - 63.25 133.96 57.17 26.12 1.00 3318 314.68 7433 389.01
Dhsposal/deductions during the vear - - - - - - - - - -
As at 01.04.2023 (Before scheme) 2,637.28 11,392.68 253751 1,555.49 287.57 43.05 289.17 18,742.75 10,942.18 29,684.93
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement {2,637.28) {10,541.95) {1,911.30 {921.59) {139.48) 23.86 {192.46) (16,320.20) {7.752.63) {24,072.83)
As at 01.04.2023 (Afiter Scheme) - 850.73 626.21 633.90 148.09 66.91 96,71 2,422.55 3,189.55 5,612.10
Additions during the year - 26.80 3.64 3.75 0.73 12.25 47.17 2,778.31 2.8254%8
Disposal/deductions during the year - - - - - {17.00) - {17.00) {138.13) {155.13)
As at 31.03.2024 - 850.73 653.01 637.32 151.84 50.65 108.96 2,452.72 5,829.73 8,282.45
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at 01.04.2022 - 6471.21 1477.47 1,195.57 229.84 261 205.00 9,581.70 3,120.46 12,702.16
Charge for the year - 675.12 177.25 126.00 15.27 6.64 20.56 1,020.84 995.86 2.016.70
Disposal/deductions during the year - - - - - - - - -
As at 01.04.2023 (Before scheme) - 7.146.33 1,654.72 1,321.57 245.11 9,25 225.56 10,602.54 4,116.33 14,718.86
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement - (6,396.93) (1,233.74) (718.74) (103.16) 44.21 (145.61) (8,553.97) (3,978.20) (12,532.17)
As at 01.04.2023 (After scheme) - 749.40 420.98 602.83 141.95 53.46 79.95 2,048.57 138.13 2,186.69
Charge for the year - 17.02 38.36 12.00 2.74 3.22 11.26 R4.60 1,057.83 1,142.43
Dhsposal/deductions during the vear - - - - - {13.17) - (13.17 {138.13) (151.30)
As at 31.03.2024 - 766.42 459.34 614.83 144.69 43.51 91.21 2,120.00 1,057.83% 3,177.82
Net Carrying Cost |

As at 31.03.2023 2,637.28 4,246.35 882.79 233.92 42.46 33.80 63.61 8,140.21 6,825.85 14,966.03
As at 31.03.2024 [ - 84.31 193.67 22.49 7.15 7.14 17.75 33272 4,771.90 5,104.63

Right of Use assets mainly comprise hotel properties and office. Leases contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

* Amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars 31st March, 2024
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets 1,057.83
Additional Lease Payments shown as Lease Rent * 341.04
Interest on Lease Liabilities 593.15
Total 1,992.02

‘*Additional Lease Payments are based on the performace i.e. Gross operating profit, revenues etc. of the Hotel property leased and for which no lease liability has been recognised as it is contingent & variable in namre.
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3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

(Amoeunt in Rs. Lakhs)

Asat
. As al Balance transferred - s
Particulars DLD4.2023 pursuant o scheme Additien Capitalised 31.03.2024
Capital work in progress 90 52 .52 £392 - 8352
Total 90,52 9052 83.92 - 83.92
{Amwunt in Rs, Lakhs)
. &g al . . As at
Particulars DLI4.2022 Additions Capitalised 032023
Capital work in progress 133 .52 133 9052
Total 133 9052 133 90,52
3.1 The amount of expendilures recognised in CWIF during construction period
{Amount in Bs Lakhs)
- For the year Ended| For the year Ended
Particulars asen 31032024 | as on 312023
{a) Expenses Recognised in P/L
Employee Benefits Expenses - -
Total expenses - -
(b} Capital Inventory and sores £34092 90.52
Taal additions during the year (a) + () 83492 40.52

3.2 Capital-Work-in Progress |CWIP} Aging Schedule

{Amonnt in Rs Lakhs)

Amennt in CWIP for petiod
More than 3
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs FATE Taotal
Year 2023-24
Projects in progress
Project Name - Bhopal Hetel 5392 5392
Total 831.92 - - - 83.92
Projects temporarily pended
Project Name - - - - -
Total 2023-24 23.92 - - - 23.92
Yenr 2022-23
Projects In progresa
Project Name - SUITE ROOMS 90.52, - - - 90,52
Total 90.52 - - - 90.52
Projects temg ily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -
Total 2022-23 90.52 - - - 90.52
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4, Intangihle Assets

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March,2024 March,2023
Software and Licences

Gross Block (at Cost)
Opening balance 254.52 252.12
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement (121.94) -
Additions during the year 4.08 2.40
Disposal/deductions during the year - -
Closing balance 136.66 254.52
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance 252.43 251.70
Adjustment pursuant to scheme of arrangement (119.89) -
Charge for the year 054 0.73
Disposal/deductions during the year - -
Closing balance 133.48 252.43
Net Carrying Cost 318 2.10
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Nen-<Current Finamcial Assets

5 lnvestment in Associate [Rs. ln Lakhs
Number of shares Face ¥alue per share
Parti Current As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
articulars . Current
Year/[Previous Year/(Previous Yaar) 2024 023
Year] ar
lovestment in Associate
[Accounted for using Equity Method)
EBarbeque-Nation Hospitality Ltd, [1,16,02,528} [5.00} 11,670.19 11,940.78
Total = = 11,670.19 11,534.78
& Nom - Current Financial Assets: Investments [Rs. In Lakhs)
Number of shares Face ¥alue per share
Parti Current As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
articulars . Current
Year/[Previous ¥ Previous Yaar) 2024 023
Year) war/[Previous Yaar'
A. Trade Investovent [Ungquoted At FYTPL)
Genex Hotels Puts, Led, 1,100 10,00 711 o1l
(1,100} [10.00}
Lezs: Faovision for L - - - -
Sub-Total [A) - - 0.11 .11
B. Other [nvestments (Unquoted At FVTPL)
Tniellistay Hotels Pvt Lid 2256850 10,00 225.69 -
Less: Frowision for ioopai ment [2256,850} [10.00} [225 649} -
Eharat Equity Services Ltd. 100,000 10.00 . 0.10
Sub-Total (B) - - .1 .14
Total [A+E) - - 0.2 0.21
7 Other Non Current Financial Assets [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, Ag at 315t March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Froed Deposits Againstlien & Bank Guaranbee® 882 48263
Fixned Deposlits Others - 037
Unsecured, Considered good
Securtty Deposits# 109757 1,270.40
Other Loans & Advances - -
Less: Recefvaldes credit ingsaired - {200}
Total 1,106.40 1,751.44

*Maturity after 12 months & pledged with bank against margin money,
#As on 31.03.2024 Include R5827.59 1akhs (Previous year Rz 1000 1akhs} deposit given to Prinite Hespitality Pvt Ltd and Rs.88.10 lakhs (31 March, 2023 Bs.79.07 Lakhs} given to M/s ¥Vicon Imperial

Private Ld.
74
202324 2022-23
Amountofleanor | Percentage to the
f Borro
Tipeo wer Am?:x:::::';n:::::imo Percentage to the total Lean and advance in tha total Loan and
tstandi Advances in the nature of loans nature of loan Advances im the
outstanding. vutstanding. nature of loans
Promoter
Directors
KMPs
[Retated pardes 91569 83.43% 107907 85.07%
Oter 18188 16.57% 189.33 14.93%
Totzl 1097.57 100.00% 1,Z68.40 100.00%
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# Deferred Tax assets [net) [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particul As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
artiowiare z0z4 2023
Deferred Tax assets
Ou account of Timing Difference in
Carry Forward Josses & Depreciation - 293
Expenses Disallowed under LT, Act, 1961 11267 228,73
Drepreciation on fived assets 106,52 1,036.46
Right of wse Asssets[Met of lease liahility} 237.04 45800
Other Ind &5 Adjustments - 604
Total Delerred Tay Assets 456.23 1,733.0
Cther Ind AS Adjustments 340 103,22
Security Deposit 107 -
Transaction cost on borowings - -
Total Deferred Tax Liakilities 347 103.22
Net Deferred Tax(Liability) /Assets® 452.7¢ 1,629.78
452.76 1629.78
Ealancs transferred pursnant to scherme of anangement {refer notz 1o, 573 1,266.48 -
Amount deblted/(Credited]) to Profit & Loss Statemeant (Bo4€) 279.86
* Deferred tax assets for the year have been arrived at by taking the tax rabe of 25.17% [ 31 March, 2022 251734} which is inclusive of surcharge & education cess.
9 Other non-current assets [Rs- In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2073
Capital Advances*
Unsecured 3041 966.09
Advances Other Than Capital Advances -
Security Deposlt - -
MAT Credit Entitlement - -
Prepaid Lease Charges 20175 127 22
Deferred Lease Expenses - -
Electivity Deposit 9.93 7291
Raipur Lease- Stamp Duty payment Linamortized 3280 3748
Total 27489 LZ03.70
*Given for business purpose.
10 Invemtories [Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 315t March, | Asat 31st March,
Patticulars 2024 2073
[valued at cost or NRY whichever is less & certified by management)
Operating Supplies 19563 72932
Food & Beverages 6134 15627
Shopping Arcade Stock® - -
Total 25687 $85.59
Dhizclosure As pec [nd AS Z, Inventories
i) Amount of inventories recognised as expense during the year is as under: [Rx. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, As at 31t March,
Particul
arttelars 2024 2023
Operating Supplies 529,00 84590
Food & Beverages 167664 199191
Total 7, 30069 283781
11 Invesiments [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, As at 31t March,
Particul
arfienars 2024 2023
Measured ol F¥YTFL
Imeestments in SBT Maroal Fund - 101072 a4z
{22377, 2899 Units & 35233020 NAY as an 31.03.202%)
Total T0I072 7HEAT
12 Curremt Financial Assets: Trade Receivables [Rs. In Lakhs)
- Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
A Trade Receivables Conidered pood- Secwved (A)
Total {4} . _
E. Trade Raceivables Cotidered god- Unsecured 257 106375
Less : Provision for doubiful debrs -
Total {(B1 5T 1375
C.Tiade Receivable which Fave sigrificant incvease in caahit visk 59.05 5471
Less: Frowsion for doubiful debis [59.05} (54,71}
Total {C) - 109.42
T Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Total Dy
Tutal (A +B +LHD) 70257 1,063.75
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13.1 Trade Receivables apeing schedule

Orotstanding. for following periods from date of transaction as at 31-00-2024

Particulars Leass Tham 6 months 6 Month - 1 Year 1-2 years 2.3 years More thax 3 years Total

1] Undisputed Trade receivables - S1T48
|considered good ) 787l T.3% .46 {.53 TO2 5T
iii) Undisputed Trade receivables -
which Feve significant increase

am credht isk

1iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
credit | ned

i) Disputed Trade Racsivables -
comsiderad good
1) Disputed Trade Recervables -
which bave significant increase 15.04 3945
in credit 1 - 4221 1.4 .56

lincraditvisk
1) Disputed Trade Recervables -
|etedit irnpaired

Total 3172 671 45,640 1.50 109 Tol82

Less - Allowance for doubiful tade [15.24) W22 L 0.5 (59.03)

receivables -
| Total w17.48 T6.71 4 D40 0.53 TOLS?

(8] Tor Ellowing periods from date of i thon as o 31-05-202%

Particulars Leags Than 6 wonths 6 Mouth - 1 Year 1.2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

1i] Undisputed Trade receivables - 953,53
|eonsideved rood i} 32.34 4242 1512 0.3 L(M3.75
{ii] Undisputed Trade receivables -
which have significant increase

5337 0.15 1% - 54.71

{iti] Undisputed Trade Receivablas -
eredit impenred

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
considered mood

) Disputed Trade Receivables -
which Feve significant increase

lin g editvick
i) Disputed Trade Receivables - .
Jeredit impaied - - - -

Total #5153 3571 4257 16.31 0.3 1,118.46

Lezs - Allowance for doubiful iade - _ {54711
recervables, {5337 (.15} (1.19%)
| Total 952,53 13908 4242 1812 .34 1,063.78
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13 Cash and Cash Equivalents [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
2024 2023
Cash on Hand 1534 44.19
Balan ces with Bank -
In current Aceounts With Scheduled Bank 256.11 18535
Investment in Axis Liquid Mumual Fund Growth Plan - 011
Total 27149 230.65
14 Bank Balances Other than Cash amd cash equivalents [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
artied z0z4 2023
Fived Deposits Against lien 1954 52694
Fixed Deposits Others - 115621
Taotal 19.56 643.19
15 Currant Financial Assets: Loans [Rs. In Lakhs)
K Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Unsecured, Conddered good
Staff Advances & Loan 5,28 15,52
Intercorponate Deposils 19822 24510
Tniellistay Hotels Pvt Lid (Unsecured Loan ) - -
Excess TS Racaverable - -
Other Loans & Advances* 923.44 53192
Total 1,137.58 786,54
*Leans and advances have been given for business purposes.
16 Other Current Financial Assets [Rs. In Lakhs)
n As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
Farticulars 2024 2023
Others 16,03 239
Total 16403 a.349
17 Current Tax Assets [net) [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, Ag at 315t March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Advance lncome Tax 129.14 B7.09
Provision for cucrent vear Tax - -
Total 139.14 57.08
18 Otheér current assets [Rs. In Lakhs)
K Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Prepaid Expenses 62,30 125.88
Prepaid lease charges 16,14 -
Telephone reposit - 0.3z
Other curgent assets 175.23 224
Adwvance to suppliers for goods & services* 37749 99.64
Ealance with Govt: authorities 33281 643361
Current portion of Unamortised Stamp Duty Paymeot of Raipur Lease 4,69 4,69
Income 1ax receivakble FY 2013-14 - -
Security Deposit - D60
Total 629.45 106698
*Adwvances to suppliecs for goods & services include advances against purchases & services which is receivable inkind in next 12 Months & are for business purpose,
EDUITY
19 Equity Share Capital [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
artied z0z4 2023
AUTHORISED
2,20 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 /- each 2,205.00 2,000.00
[Previous year 3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10 /- each)
1005000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/ - each 1.005.00 1.000.00
{Previous year 10.00,000 Preference Shares of Rs, 100/~ each}
Total 3,210400 4000.00
1SSUED
1,75,17,977 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 175130 1,751.80
Cancelled 24,55,000 Equity shaves of Rs 10 each [245.50} -
Tssued povsuant to scheme of arcangement 24,54,977 Equity shaves of Rs. 1) each 24550 -
(Previous year 1,75,19,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each}
Total 1,751.80 1,751.80
SUBSCRIBELD & PAID-UP
1.75.17,977 Equity Shares of Rz, 10/- each 175180 1.751.80
Cancelled 24,5500 Ecuity shaces of Re 1 each [24550} -
Tssued pursuant to scheme of anangement 24.54,977 Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 24550 -
(Previous year 1,75,18,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10,/ each}
Total 1,751.80 1,751.80
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19.1 Recomxiliation ofthe number of shares and amount owtstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year =~
As at 315t March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars
Number of Shares Rs.in Lakhs Number of $hares Rs.in Lakhs
Outstandlng at the beglnnlng of the vear 1,75,18,000 1,75180 1,75,18,000 1,751.80
Less : Cancellation of shares pursuant to scheme of arcane gement 124, 55,0007 [245.50} - -
Add . Fresh issue during the year 24,54 07 24550 - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,75,17,977 1,751.80 1,75, 18, 000,00 1,751.80
19.2 Dietails of shares held by Promotecs ax at 31st March, 2024 is as undec:-
Namie of Promoters/Promoter Group No.of shares Held % of Total Shares :"wm'a"ge during the
Late Sajid Razak THanaon - -B.55%
Amsha Raoof Dhanant 2501708 12.28% -
Raoof Razak Dhanani 1527630 ET2% -
Suchirra Dhanani 3G705T9 20.95% 12.25%
Kayurm Razak Dhanani 1546048 BEI% 343
Azhar Yusuf Dhanani £44003 L% x 00 -
Sharnim Sheikh L - 343%
Saduya Kaoof Dhanam H)5598 2R -
Saba. Raoof Trhanani 5082 2B
Sumera. Racof Dhanani 5338 ZER® -
Zoya Dhanani T2 1 4.16% 4 &%
Sanya Dhanani Ta761 4. 164 A,16%
Bipasha Dhanani SHHI 0.29% -
Rafiqa Magsood Merchant 17378 0% -
Manzaor M Memon 130
Zubet Yusuf Dhanani 2 -
Abilya Hoels Lirmired 140 1%
Total 13129583 T
Aue W baemssion o Sajid Razak Dhanam and schers of anangenent
*#{nft of shares from Shamim Sheikh
#Ahilya Hotels Led {AHL) has been amealgamated into Saxaji Hokels Led (SHL) consequential 2455000 shares beld by AHL stands cancelled and 2454977 shaves of
20 Other Equity [Ils.lll]ak.hs!
. As at 315t March, | Asat 31st Macch,
Particulars Note No. 2024 2023
Equlty Compaonent of Cummulative Preference Shares 201 - 940.01
Securities Premium 20,2 523472 594460
General Reserve 203 64148 641.48
Retalned Earnings 20.4 745905 1582343
Capita] Reserption Resenve 205 1,000.00 -
Other comprehensive share 206 [234.58} [202.25)
Total 14100.27 23146.27
. Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Other Equity
Z0.1 |Equity Comp of Comp d fi ial ingtrument
Opening at beginning 344,01 494001
Addition during the year - -
Redempticn of preference shares [340.01} -
Closing at end - 940.01
202 |Secwri Premium
Opening at heginning 594460 5,944.60
Balancs pursuant & shares issued o shareholder of AAL as per the schee (refer note 5T) 6.262.65 -
Balance pursuant o shaves issued to shaveholder of AHL as per the scheme ivefer note 57 [6,:272.53} -
Redenyion of pref: shanes during the year [700.00} -
Closing at end 523472 5.5943.60
203 | General Raserve
Opening at beginning 641,48 641,44
Addition during the year - -
Utllised during the year - -
Closing at end 64148 64144
20.4 |Retained earnings
Opening at beginning 15820843 12,394.70
Addition during the year 143266 3,509.49
A djustments relating to preference shares*+ 1,566.60 -
Other Adjustments relating to Associate 15435 [51.78}
Transfer pursmant to Scheme of Arcangement [9,600.75} -
Transfer to CRR [1,000.00} -
Prafesence Dividend Paid [B91.67} -
Met acturial Gain / [Loss} on defined benefit plan (3157} (2398}
Closing at end 745905 15828.43
20.5| Capital Resemption Reserve
Opening at beginning - -
Addition during the year 1,000,00 -
Utilised during the year - -
Closing at and 1,000.00 -
20.6|Other comprehensive Income
Opening at beginning [208.25} [186.01)
Addition during the year [26.73} [22.24}
Transfers to profit and loss - -
Closing at end (23455 [ ns.%
Total Other Equity 14,100.27 23,146.27
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21 Non- Current Financial Liabilities: Borrowings [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2024 2023
A. Unsecured Borrowing
i) Preference shares
1,000,000 10% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/ - each 102 1,79797
[Previvus ear L0000 104 Cumulatlve Redeemable Prefereme Shares of B 104~ vach)
Related Farties - -
} Other Farties - -
Total 0402 1,797.97

[a) Terms/rights attached Lo preference shares ;

21.1 That during Finacial year 2014-15 company had issued 10,080,000, 10% Cumulative Redeemable Freference Shares of Rs, 100,/ - each at a premiwm of B£.50/- each Out of above, pending 83338 shares

were subscribed & paid up duringthe year 2015-16(P.Y. 1000000 Preference Shares) of Rs. 100/ - cach)

21.2 That above shares has been redeemed during the vear at the rate of Rz, 220/- per preference share.

21.3

These shares are in the nature of compound financial instruments. And 5o they are bifurcated into equity and liability compcnent in accerdance with |nd &5 32, Equitycempaonent is computed as below:

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs)
Preference Shace Capital [Subscribed and paid up) 1,000,00
Add: Securities Premium on issue 500.00
Less. Liabihity component [Present value of Contractual Cash Outflows) [559.99}
Equity Componemt 94001

Z21.4 That above Freference share holders are having preference over payment of dividend to equity share holdecs and accordingly arrears of p

is required to be de.

aced before payment

to Equity Share holders. &nd on the date of Balance Sheet, dividend on preference shares for more than 2 years are in arrears. And accordingly vide Second Proviso to Section 47(2} of the Companies
Act, 2013,in case company ks unable to pay dividend on preference shares for two years or more then such class of preference shareholders shall have a right to vote on all the resolutions placed hefore

the company.

Z1.5 Dwetails of Share holders helding wore thaw 5% of 10% Cumulative Freference Shares are as wndear:=

Name Category As at 31st March, 2024 As at 3 1st March, 2023 |
Mo of Shares %4 of Shareholdi Mo of Shares| % of Shareholdi

Saba Dhanam Fromater - 125000 12.50%|
Azhar Dhananl Promoter - 125000 12.50%)
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani Promoter - 125000 12,500
Sadiya Dhanam Promater - 125000 12.50%)
Kayum Dhanani PFromoter - 125000 12508
Sara Ihanani Promoter - 125000 12,500
Sanya Dhanam Promater - 125000 12.50%)
Suchitra Ghananl Promoter - 125000 12.50%)

[turing the year preference shares has been redesmed
As per recards of the company, including its register of shaceholders/members and other declarations received from
shareholders regardingbeneficial interest, the above sharehelding represents both legal and beneficial ewnerships of shares.

21.6 Reconciliation of the number of shares and ling at the beg x and at the end of the year =
n As at 31st March, Ax at 31st March,
Farticulars 2024 2023
Outstanding atthe beginning of the year 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00
Add - Redeem during the vear [1Q.00,000.00} -
Outstanding at the end of the year - 10.00.000.00
21.7 Details of shares held by Promoters as at 3]st Warch, 2024 15 as undet -
Namie of Promoters/Promoter Group No.of shares Held % of Total Shares :"wm'a"ge during the
Saba Dhanam - - 125%
Azhar Dhanam - - 12.5%
Zuber Yusuf Dhanani - - 12.5%
Sodisra Dhanam - - 12.5%
Kayum Dhanani - - 125%
Saa Thanani - - 1L5%
Sanya Dhanan - - 125%
Suchura Dhanam - - L2.5%
Totzl - - .
During the year preference shares has been redeemed
a3 Registration of Charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies [ROC): Listed below
Name of Bank’NBFC/FLiothers Armoune Reason Date of
creation/modificati
ou/satisfaction
Adicya Birla Finance Litmited 38000 Satisfacton of charge 2002204
Karnataka Bank Limited 0000 Satisfaction of charge 05-09-2023
221 Lease Liability {Rs. In Lakhs)
- Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Lease Liability Payable 4.5068.66 5505248
Total 4,588.66 5.505.28
23 Other Nom Current Fimancial Liabilities {Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
[reposits Frem Tenants 769 71.13]
Others - 2167
Total 749 102.80
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24 Provisions

[Rx. In Lakhs)
. As at 315t March, | Asat 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Pr for Empl B
Gratuity 124.14 259,34
Leave Encashment® 13478 232404
Total 268.592 481.40

24.1 *The provision of leave encashment have been made on outstanding privilege leave of employees at the end of year and calculated on the basis of basic pay of employees. Attrition rate taken same as

Actuarlal valuation report of gratuity lablity.

25 Deferred Revenue

[Rs. In Lakhs)
. Az at 315t March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
[a) Subsidy received from M.F. State Tourism Development Corp. Ltd. *
Opening Balance 291,39
Balaokse trans feared pucsuant bo scheene (efer ote oo, 57) [2491.349} 27121
Add: Received During the Year -
Less: Amortised During the Year - [23.02}
Closing Balance - 332.2¢
Less . Current Portion - [40.89)
Non Current Balance at the end of the year - 291.3¢
[b) Life Membarship Fees

Qpening Balance 1552
Balance nansferred pursuant to scheme (refer note no. 57) [15.62} 29.00
Add; Received During the Year -
Less- Amortised Turing the Year - £69
Closing Balance - 2331
Less : Current Portion - 6,69
Nom Current Balance at the end of the year - 15.62

Closing at emd - 307.01

* During year 2016-17, company has recelved Capiml Subsidy under M.E. Tourism Polley, 2010 [as amended in 2014) amounting to Rs. 729.92 Lacs agalnst its " Amber Conventlon Centre®, Indore. s per
IND A5-20 "Accounting fer Government Grants and disclosure of Government assistance”, the above subsidy is treated as deferred income and is recognised in profitand loss acceunt on a systemmatic

and rational basis over the useful 1ife of assets. Such allocation has been made over the periods and in proportions in which depreciation on "&mber Convention Centre” is charged.

26 Current Financial Liahilities: Borvowings [Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
Partlculars 2024 2073
Unsecured
Loans From related parties 366 18236
Loans From others 667 160.20
Totl .53 3256
27 Lease Liability [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, Ag at 315t March,
Particul.
artewar 2024 2023
Lease Liability Payahle 574.40 325.00
Total 87440 329.00
28 Current Financial Liabilities: Trade Payakles [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, Ag at 315t March,
Particul.
artewar 2024 2023
Trade Payables*
[a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 4020 2471
(b} Total cutstandlng dues of ereditors other than miero enterprises and small enterprises. 39052 1,263.69
Tolal 531.12 1,2648.10

*Trade payables are for goods purchased and services aken during the normal course of business,
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29.1 Addiional Information - Ageing of Trode Payoble

Qutstanding (or [ollowing perieds from due date of payements F.Y, 23-24

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

30

Pantioolars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than ¥ years Total
[i] MSME 40.20 - - - 40.20
[il) Others 459.03 5485 120 19.09 488.17
iiii} Dtis puted dues - MSME - - - - -
iv] Disputed dues - Others - - .11 2.64 2.76
Total 199.23 $.45 131 21.73 53112
Qutstanding Vor lollowing periods from due date of pavements F.¥. 22:23
Parlicolars Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2.3 years More than § years Total
[i) MSME 34.21 - - 3421
ii] Others 1,062.56 1244 158 2149 1.096.07
[iii} s puted dues - MSME -
i) Disputed dues - dthers 3642 2277 1964 86.59 16582
Total 1,133.19 3521 2122 10848 1,298.10
Other Current Fimancial Liakilities [Rx. In Lakhs)
] As at 31st March, | Asat 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Others
Creditors for capltal Expenditure 092 575
Prepaid Lease Income 021 5,04
Provision for expenses - 206
Others 12.0 2.
Total (B) 13.1 16.15 |
Total 13.1 146.
Provigions [Rs- In Lakhs)
K As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2024 2073
Provision for
[aratuity 16.98 100,75
Leave Encashment 17.07 9028
Eonus 85,66 190,22
Audit Fess - -
Expenses 4,18 229,12
Previous |ncome Tax - -
Total 203.89 £05.47
(ther Current Liakilitiex [Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, Ag at 315t March,
Particulars 2024 2023
Current portion of deferced revenue - 4758
Advance recepved from customers 159.25 444.72
Statutory Dues 21245 64216
Book Dverdrafts - 226,56
Others 11761 70.28
Total 48931 143131
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32 Revenue From Operations {Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
Rooms 3,616.55 3,230.22
Food amd Beverages 4,936.47 575952
Dther Services* 2,623.30 2,50847
Total 11,176.32 11,49821
*Ravenue from othars services inchides income from management fees, rantal income and income from banguet service ete.
33 Other Income (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
Interest Earned 17203 142.86
QOther Non -Operating Income 19998 68,05
Excess/(Short) Provision of Earlier Year Written Back .06 2,39
Lease Rent Concession - (1.02)
Profit on Redemption of Mututal Funds - 1912
Other 0.02 -
Finance income on security deposit 106,99 24,28
Total 48608 31568
34 Food & Beverages Consumed {Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
QOpening Stock 52.81 3668
Add : Purchases® 1,684.22 2,008.04
1,737.03 2,044.72
Less : Closing Stock 61,34 52.81
Total 1,675.69 1,991.91

*Includes vagetable & non-vegetable items, grocery items, dairy products, tobacco products, slcoholic & non-alcoholic

beverages ete.

35 Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
Salaries, Wages and Allowances 2,386.43 2,096.30
Contribution to P.F. and other Funds 129.03 106,99
Waorltmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 44.56 3396
Workmen and Staff Uniform Expenses 5567 53,83
Total 2,616.74 2,341.13
36 Finance Cost {Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31stMarch,2024| 31stMarch,2023
Interest onterm Loan - 57.06
Interest on Others 40,07 5570
Interest on statutory dues - 013
Fmance cost on lease payable 59315 47376
{Other expenses 071 932
Finance cost on Freference Share 104.82 192,65
Total 73875 78862
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37 Operating Expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
Stores & Operating Supplies® 29345 41626
Rapairs and Maintenance
Building 185,89 205,14
Plant & Machinery 10909 99,63
Others 11596 124.89
Laundry Expenses 86.02 89.25
uest pick up Expenses 2253 33,08
Cable TV Expenzes 1034 8.10
Banquet Service expenses 250,59 271,19
Other Operating Expenses ** 335,55 429,64
Power and Fuel 766.03 765,33
Total 2,175.45 2,442.47
*Stores & operating supplies includes crocktery & cutlery, linen & other consutnables etc.
**Other Operating Expenses includes house keeping & upkeeping axpenses, axpenses for F&E operations & club.
38 Other Exp (Rs. In Lakhs)
. For the year ended| For the year ended
Farticulars 31st March,2024| 31st March,2023
Lease Rent 341.04 48815
Bank Charges 003 003
Rates & Taxes 16,52 12,78
Insurance 6.25 B.569
Travelling and Conveyance 61,78 6838
Postage, Telegram and Telephones 1931 2492
Advertisernent and Pubhcity 35.59 4496
Legal & Professional 123,26 270,84
Dremerger Expenses 10,00 -
Printing and Stationery 1681 1866
Credit Card Commission 4476 40,75
Commission & Discount 14947 12883
QOther Expenses 76.44 174,83
Auditors’ Remuneration
Statutory audit 4,30 10,07
Certification other matters 100 -
Sundry Balances W /off 7.03 (2.11)
Provision for doubtful debts - 43,82
Bad Debts Wioff 2890 73.68
Liss On Disposal /Retirement OF Assets - 260
CSR Expensas 49.83 -
Total 992,32 1,409.94
39 Earnings Per Share
For the vear ended | For the vear ended|
Particulars Unie 31stMarch,2024 |  31stMarch,2023
a) Amount used as the numerator profit after tax from continuing
aperations Rs Inlacs 1,433.66 1,052.45
b) Amount used as the numerator profit after tax from
discontinued operations Rs Tnlacs - 245604
¢} Amount used as the numerator profit after tax from continuing
and discontinued operations Rs. lnlacs 1,433.66 3,509.49
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares & Income Tax Thereon Rs Inlacs - 120,56
Wet Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shate holders Rs Inlacs 1,434.66 3,38893
d) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the Neos. 1,75,17,977 1,75,17,800
denominator in computing basic earning per share,
Add: Potential no. of equity shares that could arise on conversion
of warrants inte equity shares. Nas, - -
Welghted average number of shares used in comnputing Diluted
Earning per Share Nos. 1,75,17.977 1,75,17.800
&) Nominal value per share Rs 10 10
Eaming per share {FF'S) from continuing eperations
Basic and diluted Rs. 818 533
Earning per share (EPS) from discontinmed operations
Basic and diluted Rs, - 1333
Eaming per share (EFS) from continuing and discontinued
aperaticns
Basic and diluted Rs. 8.18 18.66

220



SAYAJ HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

40 Discloswre As pey Ind AS-12 Income Taxes

4 _—

i) Income Tax rec in it of profit & loss accowrt {Amount im Rs. Lakhs)
Partlculars Fox the year ended 202324 Fox the year ended 202223
Current Tax Expansas
Current year 59248 117380
Adjustment for earlier year {25.44) 37.45
Tatal curvent Tax expenses 567.04 121135
Deferred Tax Evpenses {78.84) 7862
Total Income tax expenses 433.20 1,289.57
1) Income tax recognised In ather comprehansive incame {Amount iin Rs. Lakhs)
Far the year ended 2023-24 For the year ended 2022-23
Par ticular Tax expensef Netaf Tax expense/ Netof
Before tax Benfit tax Bofowe tax Banefit o
Met actuarial gain/| defined benefit
p:;n uarial gain/lass on defined benef (42.18 1062 {3157 061 0.44 105
Changes incash flow hedge reserve - - - - - -
|Reoonclllatlm of tax expense and the acccunting profit multipliad by India’s tas rate: {Amount #n Rs, Lakhg
Farticulars Far the year ended Far the year ended
Mawch 31, 2024 Mawch 31, 2023
Prafit hafore tan 1,921.86 2,335.00
Tax ising company’s domestic tax rats 25.17%{P.Y. 25.17%) 483.73 S82.72
Addf{Less) Earlier Year tax {25.44) 37.45
AddsiLess): Expenses not Allowed inincome Tax 7375 3827
AddfiLess): Deferrad Tay - 7362
Add/{Less): Adjustment on accourt of Associate Share - -
Addf{Less): Carry forward loss & depreciation {134.51)
Add/f{Less): Exempt Income {3.82) -
AddsiLess); Profit or Loss charged at different tax rate 0.04 -
Addf{Lessh: Ind AS Ad|ustment 337 -
Addf{Less): Others 97.4% 34751
Tax as per of Prafit & Loss 488.20 1,289.57
Effactive Rate Of Tax 25.80% EE.24%|

41 Discloswe as per md AS-116, Leases

"The Company has taken land on operating lease, The lease of botel properies are generally long term in nature with varying terms and renewal rights expiring within five years to one
hunderd & ninety eight years, On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegatiated

The averall lease rentals for the perlod are as follaws:

{Amount im Rs. Lakhs)

Farticulars
For the year ended 315t March, 2024
ininurn Lease payment/ Fixed Rentals 1408.55
cantingent rent recognised In Froflt or Loss as Lease Cost, 341.04
Tatal 1749.59]

The mirimum future lease rentals payable in respect of non-cancellable |leases entered into by the Company tothe extent of minimum guarantee amount are as follows:-

{Amount i Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2024
Minlmum Lease payment

Mat [arer than ane year: [including notional [nrerest component) 1,001.82
Later than one year aned not [ater than five years; 3,006.14
Later than five years; 2,527 .75
Tertal 6,535.71

The bifurcation of tatal lease liabilities Into Current and Non-Current Is as follaws:

{Amount i Rs. Lakhs)

Partloulars

31st March, 2029

MNon - Current

Current (excluding |mterest companent an lease liability)

274,40
4,088 .66

Total

5,453.06
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42 Discloswe a5 per d AS5-19, Emplayee bepefits

{a) Deflned benefit ptan

The Company makes annual contributions to the Employee’s Group Gratuity scheme of the SBI Life Insurance Co, Ltd,, afunded defined benefit plan for the qualifying employees, The
stheme provides for lLmp sum payment ta vested employees at retirement, death while in ermployment or on termination of emplayment as per the terms of the scheme, Vesting

occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The present value of the deflned benefit obligation and current service cost were measured using the Prajected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out &t each
balance sheet date. The following table sets out the status of the funded gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the company’s financial statements as at March 31, 2024.-

Changes In Present Value of Chiligati {A in Rs. Lakhs)
| Par ticulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
|Present value of ohligation as on [ast valuation 403 68 377.58

Balance ransferred pursuant bo scheme (refer note 37) {254 69} -

Current Service Cost 23.94 38.58

Intenest Cost 561 13.20

Participant Contribution - -

Plan Amendments: Vested portion at end of period{Past Service) -

Plan Amendments: NoreVested portion at end of period{Past Serviee] - -

actuarial gaingloss on obligations due to Change in Financial Assumption 1.03 -

Actuarlal gainflass an obligations due to Change in Demographic assumption - -
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Unexpected Experence 41.15 3333

Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Cther reason - -

The effect of change in Foreigh exchange rates - -

Benefits Paid {25.99) {85.02)

Acquisition Adjustment - -

Disposal/Transter of Dbligation

Curtallment cost - -

Settlement Cost - -

Other{Unsettled Liability at the end of the valuation date] - .

Present value of obligation as on valuation date 196.73 402 68

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets {Amount im Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31Mar-23

Fair value of Plan Ascets at Beginning of period 42.58 30.18

Irerest Income 3.03 1.81

Ernployer Cantributlans - 10,14

Participant Contributions - -

Acquisition/Business Cambination - -

Settlement Cost - -

Benefits Paid -

The effect of ascet ceiling - -

The effect of change in Foreign Exchange Rates - -

Administrative Evpenses and Insurance Premium - -

Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income - 0.4%

Fair value of Plan Assets at End of measurement period 45.61 42 58

Takle Showlng Reconciliation ta Balanca Sheet {Amount # Rs, Lakhs)

Powrticulon s 31-Maw-29 ALl-Mar-23

Funded Status [186.73) {360.10)

Unrecognized Past Seryvice Cost - -

Unrecognized Actuarial gainfloss at end of the pernod - -

Post Measurement Date Employer Contribution{Expeacted) -

uUnfunded Aecrued/Prepaid Pension cost - -

Fund Asset 4561 42.58

Fund Liahillty {151 12) {402 65)

Takle Showlng Flan A pti

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-33

Discount Rate 6.96% I12%

Rate of Compensatlon Increase{Salary Inflation) 6.00% 6.00%

Pension Increase Rate /A /A

Average expected future service (Remaining working Life] MiA MiA

MMortality Table LALM 2012-2014 Ulimate 1ALM 2002-2014 Ulimate

Superannuation at age-MMale 58 58

Superannuation at age-Fermale 58 58

Early Retirement & Disablerment (A1l Causes Combined) 18-29 years 32%, 30-45 years 18% 18-2% years 32%, 30-45 years 18%

above age 45 5% 5%

Between 23-13 18% 18%
|below age 20 32% 32%
|\.-'|:|Iur|tar\|I Retiremermt lgnored lgnored
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Exp RAzcaghized in af Profit/Loss {Amount # Rs, Lakhs)
Powrticulon s 31-Maw-29 ALl-Mar-23
Current Service Cost 22.54 58.5%
Past Saryice Costivested) - .
Met Interest Cost 6.52 1620
Benefit Cost{Expense Recognized inStatement of Profitfloss) 2852 74 88
Expense Recognized in Cther Comprehensive Income {Amount #n Rs, Lakhg
Powrticulon s 31-Maw-29 ALl-Mar-23
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Change in Financial Assumption 1.03 0.20
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Change in Demographic assumption - -
Actuarial gain/loss on obligations due to Unexpected Experience 41.15 3785
Actuarial gainyloss on obligations due to Other reason - -
Tatal Actuarkal {gain)flosses 42,18 38.05
Return on Plan Asset, Excluding Interest Income 001 {0.4%)
The effect of asset ceiling - -
Ealance at the end of the Period 42.1% 37.56
Net{Incomel/Expanse for the Period Recognired in DCI 42.1% 37.56

|b) Dafined Contribution Flan

The Company has recognised the following expenses as defined contributian plan under the head “Cantribltion to Provident Fund and Other Funds™{net of recaveries),

{Amcunt i Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars For the year snded 31.03.2024 For the year snded 31.03.2023
Contribution towards Provider Fund and others 12803 106.5%
Total 129.03 10655

{c) Other Long Term Employee benefit

The provision of leave ercashment have been made on outstanding privilege leave of employees at the end of year and caloulated onthe basis of basic pay of employees. Attrition rate

taken same as Actuarial valuation report of gratuity liability.

The Company has recognised the following expenses as other long term employee benefit under the head “Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds®{net of recoveries).
{Amount i Rs. Lakhs)

Pax thoukonrs Far the year ended 31.03.2024 Far the year ended 31.03.2023
Leave Ecashment 32.53 52.54
Total 32.53 5254

43 Discloswe As pes Ind A5-21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Foreign Currency trans ations relating 10 monetary assets and liabilities as at the year end translated as per accounting policy no, 12, resultad In net gain/{Lass) of Rs, Nil {PY MNil which

has been accounted under relevant heads in tatemer of Profit and loss,

44 Disdoswre a5 Per nd AS-24, Related Party Disclosure
List of Related Parties
1 Axcoriate Companias
Barbeque-Mation Hospitality Limited

2 Key Managemsent Personnel

Parent Company

Mr_Raool Razak Dhanani
Mrs, Suchitra Sajid Dhanani,
Mr. Sandesh Khandelwal
Mr Ankur bincal

Managing Director
Whole Tlme Director
Chief financial officer
Compary SEtretary
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Subsidiary Company

Sayaji House Keeping Services Ltd
= Kayum Razak Dhanani
- Ranof Razak Dhanani
- Suchitra Dhanan

where Key
Vican Imperial Pvt. Ltd.
Prinite Hospitality Pyt Ltd
Kshipra Restaurants Pvt Ltd
Malwa Hospitality Put Ltd
Sayaji Hotels {Indore) Ltd
Sayaji Hotels {Pune) Ltd

mt Personnel has control finterest

4 Relatives of KMPs.

Zuber ¥ Dhanan
Azher ¥ Dhanani
Saba R Dhanani
Sadiya R Dhanani
Sara K Dhanani
Sanya S Dhanani
Rizwan R Sheikh
Versha Khandelwal
Sumeira Dhanani
lamee| Taheer Sayed

Directar
Director
Director

5r.No. Nature of Transactions For the year ended 31.03.2024 For the year ended 31.03.2023

A |KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Remuneration/ Salary 265,47 26547
Payable At The Year End 366 3.66
Payment Of Interest 1147 11.47

B |ASSOCIATE COMPANIES FIRMS/ RELATIVES
Sale of Vehicle 3.82 -
Sale of Services 1,056.01 1,238.55
Loan Keceived 185,03 -
Loan Given 1,310.00 -
Tnterest Expenses 12.02 -
Tnterest Tncome 5852 -
Lease Rent Expenses 146591 1,515.76
Income From Business Support Services 13.45 58.28
Business Support Services Expenses 5.24 54,61
Receivable At The Year End 335.04 7338
Payment Of Salary insg 44 8%
Royalty 50.20 55.20
Payment Of Professional Fee 6,00 8.10
Payment of preference dividend 85167 -
Bedemption of preference shares 2,200.00 -

C |Comp ion to Independent Directors
Sitting fees 11.10 5.75
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45 Discloswe as per md AS-37, Fravisions, Contingent Liabllides and Contingent Assats

Parert Company
| Contingent Liabillities not provided for
(0 Dizpured liabilicy of Ba 332 41 lakhs not provided for in respect of Tncome . The maers are pending before Sopreme Count (P.Y. NTL)
{1}  Disputed lizbility of Bz.21 36 lakhs not provided For in respect of Goods and Services Tax for the FY 2018-19.
II  Conmliments
Eztimated capital commmitments not trovided for Bs, Nil (P.Y. Mil lakhs )

46 Discloswe as per md AS5-108, Operating Segiment

The Company’s only business being hoteliering, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS108 - ‘Operating Segment” (Ind AS-108] notified by the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments therato.

Infoimation about majar custamers
Mo single customer contributes more than 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the years ended March 31, 2024 arwd March 31, 2023,

47 Earnings in Foreign Currency :

Partlculars For the year ended 31.03.2024 For the year ended 31.03.2023

Eainings in Faieign Clwrency
-Sale of Rooms and Food Beverages 275,54 243.17

OF Value of imports & Expenditme |on accrual basis)
-Import Walue of Capital Goods - .
=Impart Value of NoreCapital Goods - -

A% Disdoswre a5 per nd AS-107, Financial nstruments

A} Financlal Risk Managment

The Campany's principal financial abllities comprise Borrowlngs, trade payables and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilitles is 1o finance the Compary’s
operations. The Company's principal financial assets indude trade & other recewvables, loan gven, cash & cash Equivalent, Investment, deposits and derivative that derive directly from
its operations.

The Company's Financial Risk Management is an integral part of how to plan and execute s business strategies. The Company's financial risk management is set by the Managing
Eoard.

Company s
-Credit Risk
-Liquidity Risk
=Market Risk

posed ta following risk from the use of its flnandal Instrument:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Comparty i a customer or courterparty to a financial instrumernt fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Comparw. Credit risk arises principally from trade receivables, loans & advances, cash & cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions,

Trade Receivable

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
recefvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 7 days to 45 days credit term. Credit limits are established for all eustomers based on internal rating eriteria. Qutstanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored, The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base iz widely distributed both economically and geographically,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an indivldual basis for major chents Inoadditlon, a large number of minor receivables are grauped into homogenous
groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data, The maximum exposure 10 credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assers The Compary does not hald collateral as security, The Company evaluates the concentration of rlsk with respect to trade receivables as low The
requirement of impairment is analysed as each reporting date.

Other Finandial Instruments and Cash & Cash Equivalens

Credit rick from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department 1n accordance with the Compary™s policy. Investmems of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties who meets the minimum threshold requirements under the courderparty risk assessment process, The Company monitors 1he
ratings, credly spreads and financial strength of Its countarpanties, Based on its on-gaing assessmernt of countarparty risk, the group atl|Lsts its exposure ta various counterparties The
Compary’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the compenents of the Balance sheet as of March 31st, 2024 3 March 31st, 2023 is the carrying amount as disclosed in Note except for
financial guarantees. The Company’s maximum exposure for financial guarantee is given in Note 50.
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Carrying amount of maxinmum credit risk as on reporting date

1 {Amount in Rs. Lakhs}
[Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Mon-current Investment 0.21 0.21
Mon-current Loans - -
Other Non-Current Financial Assets 1,106.40 1,751.40
Cash & Cash Equivalent 271,49 230.65
Bark balances other than cash and cash eguivalents 1256 643.1%
Current Loans 1,127.58 78654
Other Current Financial Assets 16.03 8.39
Total 2,541.27 3,420.38
Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using Lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
Investment in Associates 1167019 11,540.78
Trade Receivables J02.57 1,063.75
Tatal 12,372.76 13,004.53

Provision for Expected Credit or Loss

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses.

The Company has assets where the counter-parties have sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where the risk of default is very low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for
impairment has been recognised.

{b] Financial assets far which lass allowance is measured using life time expected credit losses
The Company provides |oss allowance on trade receivables using life time expected credit loss and as per simplified approach.

{iv) Reconciliation of impairment loss provisions

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of financial assets during the year was as follows: (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Trade Receivables 'm? e in Advances Total

{il){Balance as at March 31, 2023 54.71 - 72.99 127.70
Impairment loss recognised 15.24 - 12.00 27.24
Balance transferred porsusnt to scheme (refer note 577 {8.41) - - (8.41)
Amounts written off 2.49 - 72.959 75.48
Balance as at March 31, 2024 58,05 - 12.00 7L05
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficuity in meeting the obligations associated with its financial llabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset, The Company's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on | undi: d pay 3
{iip {Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars On Demand ‘Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Mare than 5 years Total
Year ended March 31st, 2024
Trade Payables 531.12 - - - - 53L12
Other Payables 40.33 - - - 40.33
Other Financial Liabilties BE7.53 H45.54 2.457.14 1.489.27 5,483.88
Total 531.12 527.86 6545.94 2,457.14 1,489.27 5,055.33
Particulars On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Year ended March 31st, 2023
Trade Payables 1,298.10 - - - - 1,298.10
Other Payables - 32900 - - 1,787.596 2,126.96
Other Financial Liabilities - 358,71 263.24 1,514.04 3,830.80 5,966.79
Taotal 1,298.10 6E7.71 263.24 1,514.04 5,628.76 9,39L.85
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Market Rlsk

Iarket risk is the risk that changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange rates and inderast rates will affect the Company's income, The objective of market risk managemer is10
manage and contral market risk ewposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company, All such transactions are carred out within the guidelines set by
the risk management committes,

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign
currency risk on certain transactions that are denorvinated it a eurrency other than entify’s functional curreney, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the
functional currency value of cash flows will vary a3 a result of moverments in exchange rates, The comapany uses Torward contracts to hedge its exposure Trom foreign currency
fluctuatlans,

Interest Risk
Interest rate risk arises from the sensitivity of financial assets and liabllities to changes in market rates of interest, The Compary |3 expased ta interest rate risk arising mainly fram long
term borrowings with floating interest rates, The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the cash flows associated with floating rate borrowings will fluctuate with changes in
inferast rates.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

{Aamaunt in Rs. Lakhs]
315t March 2023

Particulars 315t March 2024
Flnanckal Assets
Flwed Rate
Loans - -
Security Deposit 1,106 .40 126840
Bank Deposit 15.56 1,00%.61
Tatal 1,125.56 2.278.01

Financial Liabllities

Flwed Rate

Working capital loans - -
Unsecured Loars 40.35 2,140.53
Sub-Total {i] 40,35 2,140.53

varable Rate Instruments
Term Loans - -
Sub-Taal (i) - -
|Tortal {1y + (i) 40.35 2,140.53

49 Capital Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficiert capital structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support ts business and
raximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capltal structure and makes adjustments ta it In light of changes in economic conditlons or its busingss requirgments To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 10 sharebolders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
whilch is net debr divided by total equity, The Company includes within net delbrt, interest bearing [oans and horrowings less cash and cash equivalents,

{AMoUNE in AS. Lakhs)

Fartioulars st March 2024 31st March 2023
Gross Dabit 40.35 2,14053
Less - Cash and cash equivalerits 271.45 23065
Net Debt |A) 231.14) 1,909.88
Total Erquity {E) 15,852.07 24.590.06
Gearing Ratlu [A/8) {0.01) 0.08
Finandal Instruments By Category {Amount im Rs. Lakhs)
Partculars As At 31-03-2024
FVTPL F¥TGCI Amartlzed cost
Flnancial Assets:
Inwestment

- Equity Instrument {urnquoted) 0.21 - -

- Dbt Tnstrument, {cquoted) 1,010.72 - .
Trade Receivables - - T02.57
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 271.4%
Other Bank Balance - 19.56
Other financial assets - - 1,122.43
Tatal Fi lal Assets 1,010.53 - 2, 116.05
Financial Liablllty:

BOrrowings - - 40.35
Trade Payable - - 531.12
Other Financial Liabilities - 5423 B2
Total Fii Ial Liahllity - - 5,055.35
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{Amount # Rs. Lakhs)

Farticulars

As At 31-03-2023

FTPL FVTCCl Amartlzed cost

Financial Acsets:
Irwestment

- Equity Instrument (unquoted) 021 - -

- Db Tnstcument (quoted) F83.42
Trade Receivables - - 1,063.75
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 230.65
Other Bank Balance - 64312
Other financial assets - - 1,758.78
Tatal Fi lal Assets 788.63 - 3,697.38
Finandial Liability:
Eorrowings - 2,140.53
Trade Payable - - 128810
Qther Financial Liabilties - - 3,853.23
Total Fi ial Liability - - 9,39L 86

50 Disclaswre as per md AS-113, Fair Value Measurement

Falr Valwe Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are :

fa] recogrised and measured at fair value and

[b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in financial statements, To provide an indication about 1he reliability of the inputs used indetermining fair value,
the Company has classified itsfinancial instruments into three levels prascribed under the accounting standard, An explanation of each level fallows underneath the table;

Axat 31t March 2004

Flnancial Instrument measured at Falr Valuwe - recuring Tair value

{Amount # Rs, Lakhs)

Farticulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toral

Flnanckal Assets

Inwestment

- Equity Instrument {urnquoted)
- Debt Instrument {quoted]

Financial Liablifties

Derivatives

- - 021 021
1,010.72 - - 1,010.72

Total

L0L10.72 - 0.2L 1,010.53

As at 31st March 2023

Flnancial asured at Falr Value - recurring fair valse {A

in Rs. Lakhs)

Partloulars Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tutal

Flsancil Assets

Irwestment

- Equity Instrument (unquoted)
- Debt Instrument {guoted)

Finandial Liabllhies

Derivatives

7BB.42 - - TEE.4

Tatal

7EB.A2 - 0.21 783.63

(&) Specific valuatlon technlque is used ta determine the fair value af the financial instrunestts which include:

i} For Investmerts in Equity Investments- Quoted Market prices are used and and for unquoted Equity Instrurments best possible inputs are taken to identify the fair value.
i) For financial Liabilities {vendor liabilities, domestic currency loans) ;- appropriate market borrowing rate of the entity as of each balance sheet date used.

iiil For financial assets (emplayes [0ans) s appropriate market rate of the entity as of each balance sheet date used,

{B) The financial instruments are categorized inta diferent bevels based on the Inputs used ta airhve at fair value measuremaints as described helow:

Includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices inan active market, This included listed equity instrumenis, traded debentures
and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments {including debentures) which are traded in the stock]
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at thereporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAY.

includes financial instruments that are not 1raded in an active market {for example, traded bondsfdebentures, over the courder derivatives),
The fair value [nthis hierarchy is determined Lsing valuation techiiques which maximize the use of ohservable market data and rely as [ittle
as possible on entrity-specific estimates,  all significant inputs required to fair value an imstrument are observable, the instrument is included
inlevel 2.

i one or more of the significant Inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Fair values are
determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are netther supported by prices from observable current)
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data, Financial instruments such as unlisted equity)
shares, loans are included in this hlerarchy,

228




SAYAJ HOTELS LIMITED

NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

{C) Inter level transfers:

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 as also between levels 2 and 3 during the year.

(D) Fair value of Ial assets and llablitias measured at amortised cost {Amount i Rs. Lakhs)
Fartculars As at 315t Maich 2024
Lavel Canmying Value Fair Value

Finandial Assets

Trade Receivables 3 70257 T02.57
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 27149 27140
Bank balances other 1han cash and cash equivalents 3 1456 19.56
Other Financial Assets 3 112243 1,122.43
Financial Llabllhes

Eorrowings 40.35 40.35
Trade Payables 3 531.12 231.12
Other Financial Liabilities 3 5,483.88 3,483.88

{Amount im Rs. Lakhs)

As at 31st March 2023

Farticulars Lave] Canylng Vale Faw Value

Flnandial Assets

Trade Receivables 3 106375 106375
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 23065 23065
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 643.1% 543.1%
Dther Financial Assets 3 1,739.7% 1,738.79
Finandial Liabilites

Eorrowings 214053 2.140.53%
Trade Payables 3 129810 128810
DOther Financial Liabilities 3 11883 11885

Ind AS 112: Disclosure of Interest In other Entitles

{a) subsidlaries

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March 2024 are set out below, Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the group, and
the praportion of ownership Interests held equals the voting rights held by the group The country of Incorporation or registratlan is also their princlpal place of business,

v ership mrerest Held by non-
O hip Interest Held by the group control ling hrterest
Mame of Ewthy Prindpal Place of Busl 31-03-2024 31-03-2023| 31-03-2024 31-03-2023|
IAalwa Hospitalty Private Limited India - - 100.00% J00.006)
Sayaji H ping Services Limiled *  |india 100008 100.00%) - -
Aries Hotels Private Limited Inwdia - - 100.00% 100.00%
| Sayaji HotelsiVadodara) Limited# Inelia - 100 00%) - -
Sayaji Hotels Management |imiteds Indiz - 100.00%, - -
Sayajl Hotels{Pune) Limited# India - 100.00%, - -

fPursuant 1o scheme of arrangement investment in Sayaji Hotels {Indore) Ltd, Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd and Sayaji Hotels {Pune] Ltd stands cancelled {refer note no.57)
* Prafrance share capital

[3ayaiji He

ping Services Limiled

[india

100%]

100%]

* Thwe share Capital of Sayaji Housekeeping Services consists of 10,000 Prefrence shares of Rs, 1 lakh,
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{h) Interest In Assaclate- Accounted For uslng Equity Method
v ership mrerest Held by non-
O hip Interest Held by the group control ling hrterest
Name af Esrthy Prindipal Place of Busl 31-03-2024] 31-03-2023 31-03-2024] 31-03-2023]
Barbeque-Nation Hospitality Ltd. India 26706 29.77%] 70.30%| 70.23%|
ised Flnancial Infi i

Pow thoukon s 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Balance sheet ltems
Current assets 4,173.51 5,5330.60
Mon-Current assets 18,656.03 31 584 51
Current Liabilities 2,152.18 402258
MNon-Current Liabilities 4.863.2% 819445
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27149 230,63
Current Financial Liabilities {Excluding trade and other payables and provisions| 914.73 67156
Mon-Current Fianacial Liabilties{Excluding trade and other payables and provisions) 4,586.37 7.406.05
Prafit and Loss Items

31-03-2024 31-03-2023|
Revenue 11,662.40 11,813.8%
Profit or Loss from continuing operations 1,433 66 1,053 45
Profit or Loxs from discontinued operations - 2,456.04
Other Comprehenswe Income {58.30) 121.19)
Total comprehensive Income 137536 3.463.27
Depreciation and armortisation 1,143 38 1,011.37
Interest Incame 172.03 142,36
Interest Expense - 57.06
Income Tax expense or income 43820 1,28155

Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013

Share in Profit or Loss for the Year

Share i Other Compretvensive Income

Net Assets, |.e., Tatal Assets mimus total Liabllltes as at Ended for the Year Ended
As a%of
As a % of consalldated Net Amount{Rs in lakhs) . .n:s‘a ’i?::mﬁt {Rs in lidated ather [Rs im
assets ar lass Iakhs) comprehenshre Iakhs)
Name of the Enthty in the group income

Sayaji Housekeeping Services Limited

31-03-2024 4.51%) F73.36 Q.73%| 1043 - -

31-03-2023 3.08% TE7 .21 0.53%) 32.5% - -
Barbegue-Nation Hospitality Lid,

31-03-2024 73.62% 11,670.15 =20 .72 %) {358.21) -45.85%, {26 73]

31-03-2023 47.896%, 11,540.78 S5 506.55 =5.52% {22 24)
Sayaji Hotels{Vadodara) Limited

31-03-2029 - - - - - -

31-03-2023 {0.00) 10.07) 0.07% 12.34) - -
Sayaji Hotels Management |imited _|

31-03-2024] - - - - -

31-03-2023 {0.02) {358 .67] -3.12%) {109.32) -
Sayaji Hotels{Punre) Limited

31-03-2024 - - - - -

31-03-2023 0.01%) 1.28 -0.06% {2.07) -

BPursuant to scheme of arrangement investment in Sayaji Hotels {Inders] Ltd, Sayaji Hotels Management Ltd and Sayaji Hotels {Pune] Ltd stands cancelled {refer note no.57)
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51 Disclosuwre a5 per md AS5-115, Aevenue firom Contract with Customers

{Amount im Rs. Lakhs)

Revenue fram contract with customess Far the period 202324 Far the period 202223

Roors 3,616.55 323022
Food and Beverages 4.936.47 2,738.52
Other Services 2,623.30 2,508 .47
Disaggregation of reveime -

Revenue is also disaggregated on basis of timing of revenue recognition i.e. At a point in time & ower the period of time,

{Amount im Rs. Lakhs)

At a pantin tme Oy the perdod of time,
Farticulars For the pariad  |For the parlod 2022 For the paricd 2023{Far the pariad 2022
2023-24 p<] 24 23
Raoms 3,616.55 3.230.22 - -
Food and Beverages 493547 5,758.52 - -
Other Services 2,623 30 250847 -
52 Corporate Social Besponsibility (CSR}
Details of Corporate Social Besponsibility (CSR) expenditure
. For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars ILst March, 2024 |31st March, 2023
a)&s per secuon 1353 of the Companies Act. 200 3 read with Schedule VIT thereol Gross amount requited to be spent by the company 41983 -
bf damount spem during the year @
(1} Constructionfacquisition of any assets - -
(11} On purpose other than (i) sbove 48,83 -
53 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
During the year company has not invested inany virtual currency.
%4 Ratios
Sr.No. Farticular Numerator D Unit Current Year Previous year Yari in %
| Current Katio Curment Azsels Current Liabilicy Times 1.54 .37 d1 045
X Deby-Ecurity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders equity % 0.25% 2 o -07 dn
. Average Shareholde
3 Rewm on Equity Net profi after tax "mgew:j‘:; ' % 7.04% 5174% 36.00%
Eaming I'ov Debt Service =
[Net Profit after taxes Dby service = Interest and
4 Diebt Service Coverage Ralio + Non-cash operating leaze payments + Principal Times 3407 223 3740%
expenses + Tnterest + Tepay ments
Other non-cash adjustments
5 Tnventory Turnover Rato Bevenue rom operations Average Tnventory Times i) 12 &3.03%:
L] Trade Receivable Tumover Ratie Eevenue from operations | Average wade receivables Times 13 25 48 8%
7 Trade Payublez Tummover Batio Total Purchases Average lrade payables Times 3 I -25. T6%
Working Capital (i.e,
& Ner Capital Turmnayer Ratio Revenue from operations | Current Aasers leas Current Times L] H S2T ARG
Liabilities)
o Wet Profit Ratio Profit Fov the year Bevenue from aperations % 12.83% o 16% A 01%
Tncome generated from Time Weighted Average
19 Retum on [nvestment . -
iy gstment Invgshments
. Earning before | d .
11 Beeturn on capital employed g ':;:Slmemm an Capital emyloyed 13.70% T A £323%

Remnark on Variances
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
Note No.
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59.8 - Increase in Revenue from Operation has resulted in an impreovement in ratio.
50.9 - Increase in Net Profitz has resulted in an improvement in ratio.
29.11 - Increage in EBIT has resulted in an improvement in ratio.

59.1 - Increase in Current Assetz mm F.Y, 202224 compared te F.¥. 202223 has resulted in an improvement in matic,
59.2 - Decrease in Debt in F.Y. 2023-24 compared to F.Y. 2022-23 has resulted in an improvement in ratic.

29.2 - Increage in Net Profits has resulted in an improvement in ratic,
9.4 - Increage in Net Profits has resulted in an improvement in ratic,
9.5 - Increass in Revenue from Operation has resultad in an improvemsnt in ratio.
S9.6 - Increass in Revenue from Operation has resultad in an improvemsnt in ratio.
59.7 - Decrease in Trade Payable has resulted 1n an improvement 1o rabion
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55 Scheme of Arrangement
The Honble Hational Company Law Tribunal (MCLT), Chennai, vide Order dated Inly 11, 2023 (O rler”} has approved the below scheme of ammangement with effect from Aprl (41,2022
(the appointed date ), The Scheme became effective from August 01, 2023 upon filing of the ovder with Registrar of Compames, Accordimgly, the NCLT erder has been considered in
preparing the lidated Nmancial and following are the effects as per the order ;
a} Amalgamation of Ahilys Hotels Lid {AHL} into Sayaji Hotels Ltd (SHL) and consequential cancellation and reduction of share capital of SHL :
The Company has accounted for the merger as per [nd A5 103 Business Combinations. Pursuant to the scheme, AHL stands disselved and the 24.55.000 number of shares of SHL held by
AHL standa cancelled and 24.54.977 chares of SHL issued o shaveholders of AHL as per the acheme. The ransaciion does not have any matetial impact on the profic and losa of the
Company.
k) Dm;ger of Baroda snd Pume business (Demerged Undertaking) of SHL into its whelly owned subsidiary, Sayaji Hotels (Fune) Lrd (SHFL) and Indore business (Demerged
Undertaking) of SHL into its whelly owned subsidiary, Sayaji How ls (Indore) Led (SHTL) and consequential reduction of share capital of SHPL and SHIL
Pursuant o the Scheme, all the assews, liabilities, income and expenaes of the Demerged underwking haa been rranaferred o SHIL and SHPL from the appointed dace

The details of assets and liablilties transferred to the resulting companies are as under : (A monnt in Rs. Lakhs}
Particulars Asad Aprdl 01,2022

ASSETS

MNon-current assets

Fraoperty. Plane & Equipment 12,360.55

Capital Work-In-Progress -

[nangible Assets 0ol
[nvestment In Subzidiary. Joint Venwre & Associate -
Emancial Assets -
(i) Investments -
(iiiy Loans 4586

fiii) Other Financial Azsets 232
Deferred Tax Aazers (Ner) 1.263.55
Oither Mon-Current Assats 7o14
Total Non-Corrent Assets 1376043
Current assels
[nventories 53004

Emancial Assets -
[in [nvestments -

(ii) Trade Receivablea 42071
(1iiy Cash and Cash Equivalents 10535
({ivy Bank Balances Other Than Gil) sbove 1043
() Loans 174 50
[vib Other Financial Assets 183
Current Tax Assers (Net) -
Other Current Assels 271.99
Total Current Assels 1,514.85
TOTAL ASSETS 15,275.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital -
Other Equity 6.053.63
LIABILITIES 6,055.63

Non-current Liabillties
[Financial Liakilities

(i) Bormrowings 2.5354a

(ia) Lease Liabilities 1.668.91

(i} Other Financial Lisbilities 1.581.90
Frovisions 30525
Dreferred Tax Liabiliries (Nety -
Deferred Kevenue 35273
Total Non-Corrent Liabilities 6,444.23
Current Liabilities

Financial Libilities

(i) Borrowings

(i) Lewse Liabilities 28372
(i} Trade Fayables -

A total cutstanding does of micro enterprises and small enterprises;, and 4330

B. sl omstanding dues of creditors other than micro enerprizes and amall emerprises. 57278

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 3227

Frovisions 23345
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) -

Other Current Liabilivies U000

Total Current Liabilities 187542

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1527528
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Profit after tax and Toral Comprehensive Income of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2023 after giving effact of scheme are as follows:

Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2023 3'::1335::&”
{Restated) earlier)
Profit after tax 1,053.45 350049
Total Comprehensive lnhoome 103226 3,463.27
The number published eatlier, referred to herelnbefore, were computed withaut considering the impact of the scheme,
The impact of above re-presentation on previous period figures is as follows:
. Year Ended

Farticulars 31.03.2023
Income
Revenue From Operations 15,204 43
Other [heome 178.40
Total Income 15352.83
Expenises
Foord and Beverages Conswimed 2811.84
Employee Benefits Expenses 294,47
Finance Costs 320.51
Depreciation And Amortization Expenses 1006.11
Operating Expetiges 4173.59
Cther Expenses 51105
Total Expenzes 12107, 84
Profit before tax 327499
Tax Expense 8145
Frofit from Discontinned operabions 246042
Balance sheet as ar March 31sr 2024 and Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31st 2024 are not comparable with the previous year Balance sheet and Statement of Cash
Flow since theze includs the Demerged undertaking's Figures.
The ner cash flows atribatable o the disco 1 operations are az follows ;

For the year
Porticulars ended 31st March,
2023

[Met cash flow [rom operating actvitics 1.035.96
Met cash fow from investing activides (T78.93)
[Met cash flow [rom financing actvitics (754,94}
et (decreaseMincTease in cash and cash equrivalenrs (497,913
Cash and cash equivalents ac Apweil 01,2022 56011
Cach amd cash equivalents ar March 31,2023 7120

o} Amalzamation of SHIYL imo SHL

The Company had accounted for the merger under the poeling of interest methed retrespectively o all periods presented as prescribed in Appendix C of TND AS 103 Business

Combinations for entities under commean cencrol. There ia no Tipact of the merger an the consolidated resuls.
The impact of amalgamation on the Balance sheet due to above scheme of arrangements are surnmarized as below :

. Demerger of Total As on
Particnlars SHL (Reported) | Merger of AHL SHPL snd SHIL March 31si,2023
(Restated)

ASSETS
Non-curtrent assets
Praperty, Plant & Equirment 14965.02 - 11.340.72 342529
Capital Work-In-Progress 90.52] - 90.52 -
[ ible Asssts 2.10) 206 0.04
Tnvestment Tn Subzidiary, Ioint Ventre & Associare# T1540.78 - 11,240,785
Financial Assets -

(i) Invesomens Qz - - 0.21

(i} Louns 0.0 _ _ _

(i) Other Financial Assets 173140 &da7 1,690.93
Creferred Tax Assers (Net) 1620.78] 1,272.08 35770
Othist Non-Current. Assits 1203.70) - 1.031.63 172.07
Total Non-Curreni Asseis F17581.51 - 13997.28) 17.587.02
Current assets
[oventories BG5S 244 34315
Financial Assets
(i) [nvestments TBR.42| - 788.42
(ii} Trade Receivables 1063, 75] - 42280 64095
[iriy Cash and Cash Equivalents ZH0.63) 368 11831 143.02
(ivh Bank Balancea Ocher Than (i) sbove S43,19) - 1099 32,20
() Loans* | - 230 87 2,546.71
(i} Other Financial Assets 839 171 B.ET
Current Tax Assers (Net) 5709 - 9.24 47.85
Oither Curment Assels 106598 045 53482 53261
Total Current Assets 730,60 31.13 lSF'Llil 5,681.58
TOTAL ASSETS 37115.12| 3113 15665.66] 23,265.60
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EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 175180 - - 1,751.80
Other Equiry* 231 46.27 (L1 43 9,340, 14 13,783.70
LIABTLITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Luabilities
(i) Borrowings 1797 97| - 1,797.97
(ia) Lesse Liabilities 5524 2,033.63 3471.65
(i} Other Financial Lisbilities 10280 o7 .00 4.50
Frovisions 481.40 36561 1579
Deferred Tax Linbilites (Met) Q.00 - -
Deferred Revenue syl 0T -
Toial Non-Current Liabiflities 519446/ - 2804.15] 5.390.31
Current Liabllties
Emnrial Liabilities
(i) Borrowing s* 3M2.56 K] 207195 27024
(ia) Lease Liabilities 229,00 - 320,00
(ii} Trade Payables -
A total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 34.21 - 18.61 15.60
B. total outatanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpmises and small enrerprizes, 128389 33T G565 89201
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 1615 - 1.5 4.65
Frovisions 1547 {08 429 3227
Cumrent Tax Lisbilives (New - - - -
Ocher Current Liabilities 143131 008 preky 7O8.02
Toial Current Liabilitley 022,59/ 12.56 3715.37] 2,320.79
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37115.1Z] 3113 15858.66' 73,268.60

#Pursuant to scheme of arrangement investment i Sayagi Hotels ([ndore) Lid, Sayaji Hotels Management Lid and Say aji Hotels (Pune) Ltd stands cancelled
*Adjustment pursuant to scheme

56 Additional Information

The Company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year clagsification.

Savaji Hetels Management Led (SHML) has invested Rs, 2,25.68,500¢- in Intellistay Hotels Pyt Led (THFLY in Angost 2021 towards the parchase of 48.5 % stake. Doe to iivegularities in
the Corporate Governance practices and  misreprne sentaton by the senior officialz of THPL. Company haz decided to exit [rom the strategic allisnce. Tn view of the same THPL has not beer
venisidered as an associate of the Company LHFL s avvumulated losses ate more than its net worth and hence company has alse made provision for impamment of its investment Compan’

is in the process of taking legal actions agamst THFL and its officials.

Significant Accounting Policies and othar Motes 1-558
These notes form an integral part of these financial statermerits

Inderm of our report attached

Fow Manish Joshi & Associatas
Charterad Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 011631C

Nikhll Upadhyay
Partner
M.No. 465758

Place: Indare
Dare: 28th May 2024
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